LONDON

Hillingdon
Planning
Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY 2 OCTOBER
2024

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -
CIVIC CENTRE

Meeting The public and press are welcome

Details: to attend and observe the meeting.

For safety and accessibility, security measures will
be conducted, including searches of individuals and
their belongings. Attendees must also provide
satisfactory proof of identity upon arrival. Refusal to
comply with these requirements will result in non-
admittance.

This meeting may be broadcast on the Council’s
YouTube channel. You can also view this agenda
online at www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Henry Higgins (Chair)
Councillor Adam Bennett (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Keith Burrows

Councillor Roy Chamdal

Councillor Elizabeth Garelick
Councillor Gursharan Mand
Councillor Jagjit Singh

Published: Tuesday 24 September 2024

Contact: Anisha Teji, Senior Democratic
Services Officer

Tel: 01895277655

Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk



http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
mailto:ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking \/
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station,

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a U,b,,d
1ube and b

short walk away. Limited parking is available at pw..m

the Civic Centre. For details on availability and S“c‘:‘:‘?,l“ Sicscons intu'y

how to book a parking space, please contact -

Democratic Services. Please enter from the B T

Council’s main reception where you will be cae gurk
directed to the Committee Room. Crickechd Rea

Accessibility

An Induction Loop System is available for use
in the various meeting rooms. Please contact
us for further information.

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode.

Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.
Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire

Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their
way to the signed refuge locations.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1 Apologies for absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

2
3  To receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-10
4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent
5  To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and the items marked Part Il will be considered in Private
Planning Committee Report Part 1_Standard Information 11-18
Applications with a Petition
6 | 19 Beacon Close Uxbridge Demolition of existing bungalow 19 - 62
and erection of two pairs of semi-
17969/APP/2024/845 detached dwellings to provide 2 x | 250 — 257
3-bedroom dwellings and 2 x 2-
bedroom dwellings plus
associated hard and soft
landscaping.
Recommendations: Approval
7 | 39 Parkfield Road Ickenham | Erection of a replacement 63 — 100
& South dwelling.
24825/APP/2023/81 Harefield 258 — 263
Recommendations: Approval
8 | 152-154 Uxbridge Yeading Erection of three storey mixed use | 101 — 146
Road retail and 9 residential apartments
with ancillary parking, 264 - 277
4482/APP/2022/213

amendments to dropped kerbs,
refuse and bicycle storage,
following the demolition of existing
buildings.

Recommendations: Approve +
Sec 106




Applications without a Petition

9 | Yeading Infant School | Yeading Installation of solar panels on the 147 - 172
school roofs.
17997/APP/2024/1610 278 — 292
Recommendations: Approval
10 | Pinkwell Primary Pinkwell Replacement of the existing timber | 173 — 190
fence with 3.0m high V mesh
11242/APP/2024/1302 security fencing. 293 — 298
Recommendations: Approval
11 | LBH Central Depot Colham & | Installation of an acoustic wall 191 - 208
Cowley around service yard.
4501/APP/2024/1618 299 — 304
Recommendations: Approval
Planning Committee Report Part 3_Policy Appendices 209 — 248
Plans for the Hillingdon Planning Committee 249 - 304




Minutes

HILLINGDON PLANNING COMMITTEE

Agenda Iltem 3

«
TR ORALS .

5 September 2024 <I\HLINGDON

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Henry Higgins (Chair),
Adam Bennett (Vice-Chair),

Roy Chamdal,

Keith Burrows,

Elizabeth Garelick,

Gursharan Mand, and

Jagjit Singh

Officers Present:

Katie Crosbie (Area Planning Service Manager — North),

Ed Laughton (Area Planning Service Manager — Central and South),
Chris Brady (Planning Team Leader),

Eoin Concanon (Planning Team Leader),

Alan Corcoran (Deputy Team Leader),

Dr Alan Tilly (Transport & Aviation Team Manager),

Jimmy Walsh (Legal Advisor),

Natalie Fairclough (Legal Advisor), and

Ryan Dell (Democratic Services Officer)

22. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
There were no apologies.

23. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)
None.

24. | TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED: That the minutes from the meeting on 16 July 2024 be approved.

25. AIY;ATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
None.

26. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE

CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THE ITEMS MARKED PART Il WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all items would be heard in Part I.

Page 1




It was confirmed that item 7 had been withdrawn from the agenda.

27.

36 MOOR PARK ROAD, NORTHWOOD - 77170/APP/2024/1240 (Agenda Item 6)

Officers introduced the application and noted the addendum, which referred to a
submission made by a Ward Councillor.

Offices added a verbal amendment to Condition 4, which related to restricted permitted
development rights. There was a reference in the condition to the third floor of the
building being restricted but it was clarified that the restriction would cover the entirety
of the building.

The lead petitioner addressed the Committee and made the following points:

The petitioner thanked the Committee for giving them the opportunity to explain
their position

The petition reflected the concerns of a large number of petitioners, many of
whom had been living in the neighbourhood for decades

The applicant had attempted to airbrush the use as comparative to a family
dwelling, but this was not true

The proposal would have a significantly detrimental impact on noise both inside
and outside of the property; parking; congestion; trip generation; CO2
emissions; and disturbance to neighbours due to comings and goings during the
day and also during evenings and weekends

The report stated that the property would cater for up to four children with
emotional and behavioural difficulties with a staff ratio of two adults to one child.
This implied up to eight carers plus managerial staff

The report assumed there would be only three car users. This overlooked the
2:1 ratio

There could be 14-16 people in the property at any one time

Further footfall from social workers, support workers, parents and friends of the
children had not been accounted for

All of this would add to the noise, parking, traffic and CO2 emissions

The report’s conclusions, that were based on three careers rather than eight,
were hence flawed

The application stated that there would be three parking spaces in front of the
property and two additional spaces which were essentially a garage. However,
once two cars were parked in the garage it would be difficult, if not impossible, to
open a car door to get out of a vehicle. This was impractical

One of the bays was blocked by another bay

The report stated that the site can potentially accommodate in excess of half-a-
dozen vehicles arranged in an informal fashion. The safety impact of jamming
cars into the driveway had not been considered. There was no consideration for
emergency vehicles to access the building. Displaced on street parking was
therefore inevitable

On noise, the application stated that the children would have behavioural and
emotional difficulties, and acknowledged that despite meticulous planning and
care, the children’s behaviour may occasionally fall below acceptable standards.
Staff may need to use restraint techniques. This would cause noise and
disturbance

The noise control plan was merely words. It gave an email address to register a
complaint which would aim to be resolved within three working days. The

Page 2




Council did not investigate domestic noises

e In addition to the noise, there would be disturbance from the comings and
goings to the property by four children; up to 8 carers; social workers; health
workers and four sets of friends and family.

e Petitioners disagreed with paragraph 7.32 of the report. Footfall and vehicular
traffic would lead to the property having a feel of a commercial enterprise rather
than a family dwelling. This would cause significant disturbance to the locality in
increased carbon emissions

e The property had a PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) score of 0 as per
the transport assessment report. Public transport was not a viable or convenient
alternative. Care home staff and visitors would have to rely on their own private
vehicles, thereby increasing the vehicle trips

e The nearest shops were 15 minutes away by foot, or a bus or car ride away

e Moreover, there were no state schools for children aged 11 plus in Northwood.
The nearest schools were in Northwood Hills, Pinner, or Watford. Not only would
this give rise to more vehicles, but was this location even an appropriate location
for a care home for 12 and 16 year olds?

e There was a profound and extensive opposition and concern from residents to
the proposal which did not comply with the Local Plan

e Petitioners requested the Committee put residents’ interests first, as per the
Hillingdon motto, and not the interests of a for-profit company.

e This proposal would alter the fabric of the neighbourhood

The applicant’s representatives addressed the Committee and made the following
points:

e The representatives thanked the Committee for giving them the opportunity to
share their views

e The directors of the children’s home had extensive experience working with
children and families

e Collectively they had over 35 years of experience working in various roles within
social care

e This experience demonstrated their commitment to promoting the welfare and
safeguarding of children

e They also had insights and the ability to understand what contributed to positive
outcomes for children looked after

e They understood the journey of the child and often the trauma they had
experienced before coming into care

e Children looked after came from diverse cultures and backgrounds and for
various reasons were unable to live with their birth families. Therefore, the
applicants had made it their responsibility to ensure they had the opportunity to
thrive, find happiness and lead fulfilling lives

e The goal was to provide children looked after with practical and emotional
support to help them map out their clear route to a prosperous, independent
future

e New Chapters Homes were driven to ensure that the children in their care feel
valued and safe, and they aimed to give them a childhood where they were no
longer experiencing significant harm

e They had reviewed the information shared within the petition

e They empathised with residents and recognised that the unknown can be
daunting

e The petition referenced children looked after being linked to increases in
antisocial behaviour and personal risk. In the professional capacity of the

Page 3




applicant, children looked after were often vulnerable and did not present a
greater risk to adults or children around them

e With the right support and environment, they can have the same outcomes as
children who were not in care

e The applicant wished to work with residents and not against them

e The representatives highlighted the lived experience of a young person currently
living in a children’s home, whose name had been anonymised:

©)
©)

o

My name is Lily and I'm 12 years old

| feel scared at home sometimes and don't always know how the adults in
my life are going to treat me

I'm worried about being at home, but | don't want anyone to know

Every night | would lie awake, dreading the sound of my bedroom door
creaking open

They told me to keep quiet, blaming me for everything, so | stayed silent
at school

At school | watched other kids laugh, feeling like there was a wall
between us

| pretended everything was OK, even though | was falling apart inside
One day, a teacher noticed how I flinched when someone touched me
She kept asking me questions, showing kindness | hadn't felt in a long
time

Eventually | broke down and told her everything. | was terrified she would
blame me, but she didn't

She held my hand and told me it wasn't my fault, that | was brave for
speaking up, and that's when | met my social worker

I moved in with a foster family, but they didn't understand me, and | felt
uncomfortable in someone else's home

| hurt myself and ended up in hospital

My social worker told me after that it would be difficult for me to be given
a placement with a foster family again

| felt like it was my fault and that | didn't deserve anything good

| was moved to a children's home and was really scared when | saw the
house. I'd never been in a house this big and quiet

| didn't feel like | belonged in this home or the area, and | wanted to run
away when | first got there, but | knew | couldn't go home to my family

| was given a key worker who helped me feel a little bit more at home and
| was able to have my own room and choose what colour the room would
be and now things are still hard but I'm not alone anymore

I'm learning that my past doesn't define me and that | deserve to laugh
and be happy too

| now have adults around me that | can trust at the home, But | miss my
home and hope to go back one day

Members asked about the staff numbers and ratios presented in the application.
Clarification was sought on the expected number of staff during the busiest days. The
representatives explained that while the capacity was for up to four children, it was
unlikely to have four children at once due to the need for matching and considering the
children’s needs. It was not expected for there to be more than four staff members in
the day, including senior management. Members replied that one of the petitioner’s
concerns was the number of car journeys, especially given the PTAL rating of O.
Members asked for further clarification on numbers of staff. The representatives noted
that due to the complexity of the children it was unlikely that there would be four
children at one time. It would be important to ensure that from the time the first young

Page 4




person was received in the home, any additional young people had to be matched. If a
young person had a high level of need and needed a staff ratio of 2:1 of 3:1, it was very
unlikely that the home would be able to take on another child.

Members asked for more clarity on the number of staff if there were four children. The
representatives noted that if there were four children, it would have to be four children
with low level needs where they could a 1:1 worker or no worker. Children came with
different complexities. For example, a child who struggled with sleeping at night but
was able to function in the day may not require a 1:1 worker. If there were children of
this nature then there could be up to four children and it would only require two to three
members of staff in the day. A child with more complexities may require 1:1 or 2:1
support. The work with children would involve things such as art therapy, music
therapy, talking therapy and this required space.

Members asked about the parking provision, noting concerns about accessing certain
bays when other bays were occupied, and the impact on local traffic. The
representatives explained that any on-site parking issues could be resolved as all staff
working there would know each other, similar to at a family home.

Members asked how the number of staff would translate into parking and vehicle
movements. The Highways officer noted that they would expect, and asked for a
condition for, the parking layout to be revised to ensure five usable spaces. Officers
referred to the development plan to determine how many car parking spaces proposals
can provide. The London Plan was silent on care homes, in which case officers had
referred to the Local Plan. The Local Plan would require two car parking space plus
one space per warden. It was taken that there would be three wardens. A minimum of
two spaces plus three for wardens gave five spaces. Therefore, officers took the view
that five was the maximum amount of car parking spaces that the policy would allow. If
the demand for parking exceeded supply, consideration would have to be given to
parking displacement. It was noted that this would not raise highways concerns.

The Chair noted that there were some parking restrictions on the road and it was
congested during school times.

The Chair noted the comments from Councillor Lewis as Ward Councillor which had
been noted within the addendum.

There was a need nationally and locally to look after vulnerable children. There was a
need for this type of accommodation and the challenge was to ensure that it was the
right development for the area and that residents’ concerns were listened to.

Members asked about the possibility of conditioning the ratio of parking to the
occupancy of the home and level of need of the children. Officers noted that it would be
unreasonable to condition the car parking on the basis of staff numbers. There was a
condition on a maximum of four children. A parking management plan could be
considered.

Members asked about potential noise and disturbance from the facility, particularly
during staff shift changes. Officers noted that conditions related to noise and
disturbance were typically covered by other legislation and may not be enforceable
through planning conditions.

Members further asked if conditions could be imposed on timing of staff shift changes.

Page 5




Conditions would need to be enforceable and precise. A condition on this would be
difficult to enforce.

It was highlighted that the parking scheme was nearby, not in the road in question.
These restrictions had been provided for road safety purposes such as double yellow
lines on the corners, the keep clear markings outside the school and the 20mph speed
limit.

Members noted some confusion around a number of aspects including the number of
staff and the parking provision. The Chair suggested that a site visit may help to
ascertain the parking situation. Members queried how a site visit would clarify the
numbers of staff. It was noted that if the item was deferred in that there was not full
information in front of Members, an additional benefit would be a site visit.

The petitioner had noted that the Council did not investigate domestic noise complaints
and Members asked if this would constitute domestic noise. It was noted that these
types of noise issues were covered by separate legislation and this would be outside of
planning legislation.

It was summarised that Members wanted additional information on how many staff
were going to be on site, and shift times.

The proposal to defer for further information and to undertake a site visit was moved,
seconded and when put to a vote, agreed.

RESOLVED: That the item be deferred

28. | 39 PARKFIELD ROAD, ICKENHAM - 24825/APP/2023/81 (Agenda Item 7)
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.
29. | 37 EDWARDS AVENUE, RUISLIP - 65680/APP/2023/2256 (Agenda Item 8)

Officers introduced the application. It was important to note that the assessment of the
proposal placed before Members for determination was restricted to the proposed
amendments and not matters which had already been benefited from planning consent.

The lead petitioner addressed the Committee and made the following points:

e The petitioner noted the 2011 application (65680/APP/2011/36)

e The current application reference was 65680/APP/2023/2256

e |t was disappointing that only the two conditions were being considered and not
the full application

¢ Residents had a lot of interest in this application given the history of the site

e The site was derelict and untouched

e One of the key points was that the parking management scheme should not be
negatively affected

Councillor Steve Tuckwell addressed the Committee as Ward Councillor and made the
following points:
e It was fully understood that the current application was on the basis of
determining the variation of Condition 5 and the removal of Condition 18 from
the parent planning permission that was granted in April 2011
e The Committee can only determine what was presented to it

Page 6




e However, points needed to be raised for public record and for clarification

¢ Residents believed that their opportunity to raise legitimate concerns using the
petitions process about the overall application has been denied. For this reason,
planning officers were asked to outline the following points:

o What was the underpinning logic of granting the Certificate of Lawful
Development on the 17 July 20247?

o What weight was applied to the planning application document contained
within today's application that expressly referenced that the development
of the site did not commence until the 01 May 2014, one month after the
2011 planning consent expired?

o Given that this petition was submitted by residents in September 2023
expressing concern over the overall development, why was the Certificate
of Lawful Development granted before the matter was brought before this
Committee this evening?

e Residents believed that the original planning application had expired and that
the new application with the full adherence to updated planning policies, should
have been submitted for full determination

e Whilst the Committee can only determine the variation and removal of
conditions, not having the ability to determine the full application render this
application devoid of the updated and refreshed planning policies, such as the
provision of family homes and electric charging points, air quality and the
excessive size of the dropped curb

Officers advised that they accepted an application for a certificate of lawfulness before
determining the current application because the more robust way to address the extent
of the original application was for the applicant to formalise and submit an application
for officers to consider all the information. This was done and granted in July 2024.

In terms of the weight given to this current application documents, the application form
did state that the dwelling had been demolished in May 2014. This was presumed to be
an error and it was corrected to the date of 01 April 2014 and that was submitted on 01
July 2023. The applicant had submitted the certificate of lawfulness.

Regarding the logic for granting the certificate of lawfulness, the planning permission
was granted in April 2011 and that was for the demolition of the bungalow and
construction of four back-to-back dwellings. All pre-commencing conditions were
discharged with the exception of Condition 18, which was being considering this
evening. Condition One on that planning permission required that the development
would have to begin within three years of that date, which brought it up to 04 April
2014. In terms of determining whether the development with the planning permission
had commenced, officers needed to evaluate, on the balance of probability, when the
existing bungalow had been demolished and had it been demolished prior to 01 April
2014. This was the evidence that the applicant submitted for the certificate of
lawfulness.

To clarify what was assessed when looking at certificates of lawfulness, paragraph six
of the MPG stated that in the cases of applications for existing use, if a local planning
authority had no evidence itself, nor any from others, to contradict or otherwise make
the applicant’'s version of events less than probable, there was no good reason to
refuse the application provided the applicant’s evidence alone was sufficiently precise
and unambiguous to justify the grant of a certificate on the balance of probability. As
part of the evidence that the applicant had submitted, they submitted a statutory
declaration from a local estate agent which stated that the demolition commenced on

Page 7




17 March 2014. The application form also said this. A second statutory declaration from
the applicant also confirmed when the site was purchased and that the sale of the site
included a demolition method statement which confirmed that the demolition of the
dwelling was programmed for the week commencing 17 March 2014. The demolition
method statement itself was also submitted. In respect to the Council's own records
and whether there was anything that was contrary to this, there were building control
records from an e-mail received on 14 April 2014, which advised that the demolition
had already commenced. While that date is slightly over, it did not contradict that the
demolition had happened during the week of 17 March 2014. It was noted that it was
not standard practise for the Council to also consult residents, but officers did post
letters to a significant number of residents within the street and the adjoining street to
see if anyone had any other evidence that would be contrary to the applicant’s version
of events. There was nothing that did contradict it. On the balance of probability, it was
determined that the bungalow was demolished before 14 April 2014, and therefore the
planning permission was valid. The application being considered this evening was a
variation, and it was not possible to revisit things that were already considered in the
determination of the original application, only the differences.

Members referred to the appendix, which referenced a time limit deleted condition.
Members asked for clarification of this. The time limit referred to the demolition having
to have commenced within three years of the permission. As it had already
commenced, the condition was deleted.

Members asked about Condition 18, noting other recent applications where it had been
specified that future occupants could not have access to parking permits if there was a
parking management scheme in the street. Members asked why this was not the case
for the current application. Officers noted that the parking that would be provided as
part of the application was four parking spaces for the four x two bed units, so one
parking space for each dwelling. This was a minor over-provision and so was
considered, on balance, acceptable. In terms of the mechanism, it would not meet the
test of the condition which would ordinarily be secured through legal agreement, which
had not been done at the time.

Members referred to the history of planning, noting an application approved in
September 2014. Members asked what the difference was between this and the
application approved in 2011. Offices clarified that the 2014 application related to the
discharge of conditions of the application that was approved in 2011. In order to
demonstrate that the development had been commenced, the applicant would have to
have discharged the pre-commencement conditions and this was the application which
came in in 2014 and was approved.

Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote, agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved

30.

ATLAS LODGE - 585/APP/2024/1558 (Agenda Item 9)
Officers introduced the application.
Members highlighted the need for affordable housing.

Members asked about the legal definition of primary occupants, and whether the
development would be restricted to over 55s only or just be primarily for over 55s. It

Page 8




was noted that the previous scheme had a similar arrangement whereby the primary
occupier was restricted to being a person needing assisted living. The current
arrangement would work in a similar way.

Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved

31.

3 ST MARGARETS AVENUE - 59652/APP/2024/1459 (Agenda Item 10)
Officers introduced the application.

Officers’ recommendations were moved, seconded and when put to a vote,
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.35 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Ryan Dell at democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk. Circulation of
these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank



Planning
Committee Report
Part 1:

Standard Information for
Members - Applicable to All
Applications on the Agenda

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



Contents

Section Content Page

Ref.

1. Statutory Planning and Human Rights Considerations

1.1 Development Plan 3

1.2 Equality Act 3

1.3 Human Rights 4

1.4 Development in Conservation Areas 4

1.5 Development Affecting Listed Buildings 5

2. Other Relevant Information for Members

2.1 Five Year Housing Land Supply 5

2.2 Planning Appeals / Risk of Costs Award 5
Against the Council

2.3 Use of Planning Conditions 6

2.4 Planning Obligations 6

2.5 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 7

2.6 Environmental Impact Assessment 8

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 12




Part 1: Statutory Planning and Human Rights
Considerations

1.1

Development Plan

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.2

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, require that applications for
planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan,
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The development plan for the London Borough of Hillingdon consists of the
following documents:

e Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strateqgic Policies (2012)
e Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies

(2020)
e Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Site Allocations and Designations (2020)

e The West London Waste Plan (2015)
e The London Plan (2021)

Equality Act

1.2.1

1.2.2

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering
planning applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster good relations
between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that Members
should consider whether persons with protected characteristics would be
affected by a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that
protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise, Members should
weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not
necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be
considered in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given
to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all
the circumstances.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 13


https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/west-london-waste-plan
https://www.london.gov.uk/programmes-strategies/planning/london-plan

1.3

Human Rights

1.3.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the key articles of the European

Convention on Human Rights into domestic law. These include:

o Article 8: Right to respect for private and family life.
Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his
home and his correspondence. This right embodies the right to a
name, the right to change one’s civil status and to acquire a new
identity, and protection against telephone tapping, collection of private
information by a State’s security services and publications infringing
privacy. This right also enables Members of a national minority to have

a traditional lifestyle.

. Article 1 of the First Protocol: Protection of property.
Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of
his possessions. No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in
the public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law and
by the general principles of international law.

o Article 14: Prohibition of discrimination.
The enjoyment of the rights and freedoms set forth in this Convention
shall be secured without discrimination on any ground such as sex,
race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, national or
social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth, or
other status.

1.3.2 Members must be aware of the rights contained in the Convention
(particularly those set out above) when making any planning decisions.
However, most Convention rights are not absolute and set out circumstances
when an interference with a person's rights is permitted. Any interference with
any of the rights contained in the Convention must be sanctioned by law and
be aimed at pursuing a legitimate aim and must go no further than is
necessary and be proportionate. Members must, therefore, carefully consider
the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

1.4 Development in Conservation Areas

1.4.1

Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires the local planning authority, in determining applications
affecting conservation areas, to pay special attention to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area. This
statutory duty needs to be considered alongside relevant heritage policies
contained in the National Planning Policy Framework and local plan.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 14



1.5

Development Affecting Listed Buildings

1.5.1

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires the local planning authority, in determining applications
affecting a listed building or its setting, to “have special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses”. This statutory duty needs
to be considered alongside relevant heritage policies contained in the
National Planning Policy Framework and local plan.

Part 1: Other Relevant Information for Members

2.1

Five Year Housing Land Supply

2.1.1

21.2

213

2.2

Land supply is a key part of planning and links plan policies and sites with
actual delivery. The need to demonstrate a 5yr rolling supply of sites, known
as 5yr housing land supply (5YHLS), is an embedded part of the planning
system.

When councils are unable to demonstrate a 5YHLS the National Planning
Policy Framework 2023 (NPPF) presumption in favour of sustainable
development - the so-called ‘tilted balance’ - is engaged. NPPF paragraph 11
(d) ii states that in these circumstances the development plan policies most
important for determining the application are to be treated as out-of-date.
Therefore, where the presumption applies, planning permission should be
granted unless:

1. The application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

2. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
Framework taken as a whole.

Hillingdon Council is currently able to demonstrate a Syr supply of deliverable
housing sites. Therefore, the ‘tilted balance’ is not engaged.

Planning Appeals / Risk of Costs Award Against the

2.21

Council

Members should be aware that in the event of an appeal, local planning
authorities are at risk of an award of costs if they behave unreasonably with
respect to the substance of the matter under appeal. For example, by

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 15



222

2.23

2.3

unreasonably refusing or failing to determine planning applications, or by
unreasonably defending appeals.

A further example includes imposing a condition that is not necessary,
relevant to planning and to the development, enforceable, nor precise or
reasonable in all other respects (and thus does not comply with NPPF
guidance on planning conditions and obligations). It should be noted that
planning conditions can be appealed.

Another example includes failing to substantiate each reason for refusal on
appeal. Therefore, should members determine to refuse an application
(contrary to officer recommendation for approval) planning reasons for refusal
should be provided.

Use of Planning Conditions

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.4

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions.
Planning consent should not be refused where planning conditions can
overcome a reason for refusal.

Planning conditions should only be imposed where members are satisfied that
imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the
development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other
respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide
full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

2.4.1

242

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) states that whilst
infrastructure requirements will be predominantly addressed through the
Council's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), planning obligations will be
sought on a scheme-by-scheme basis. Applications that fail to secure an
appropriate Planning Obligation to make the proposal acceptable will be
refused.

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation 2010 (Regulations issued
Pursuant to the 2008 Act) and the NPPF have put three tests on the use of
planning obligations into law. It is unlawful to request planning obligations that
do not meet the following tests:

i. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms,
ii. directly related to the development, and

iii. fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the development.

2.4.3 The effect of the Regulations is that the Council must apply the tests much

more strictly and is only to ask for planning obligations that are genuinely

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 16



244

2.5

necessary and directly related to a development. Should planning obligations
be requested that do not meet the policy tests, the Council would have acted
unlawfully and could be subject to a High Court challenge.

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by
way of an agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the
development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

2.5.1

252

253

254

2.5.5

2.5.6

2.5.7

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) allows local authorities to raise
funds from developers undertaking new building projects in their area. The
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge collected from new
developments.

The CIL applies to all proposals that add 100 square metres of new
floorspace or an extra dwelling. This includes bringing a vacant building back
into use. The amount to pay is the increase in floorspace (m2) multiplied by
the rate in the CIL charging schedule plus indexation.

The money raised from the Community Infrastructure Levy pays for the
infrastructure required to support development. This includes transport
schemes, flood defences, schools, health and social care facilities, parks,
open spaces and leisure centres.

The London Borough of Hillingdon adopted its CIL Charging Schedule on 10
July 2014 and it is applied to new developments in the borough since 1
August 2014. The use types that are charged borough CIL is large format
retail development (greater than 1,000sqm) outside of designated town
centres; offices; hotels; residential dwellinghouses; and industrial storage and
distribution.

The Mayor’s CIL (MCIL)

The Mayor's CIL applies to all qualifying developments approved on or after 1
April 2012. Hillingdon Council is a CIL collecting authority for the Mayor of
London.

The Mayoral CIL 1 (MCIL 1) rate was £35 per sgm plus indexation and is used
by the Mayor of London to fund the delivery of Crossrail.

For planning permissions granted from 1 April 2019, the Mayoral CIL 2 (MCIL
2) rate of £60 per square metre plus indexation applies. This rate may also
apply to some phased planning permissions granted before then.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 17


https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy

2.6

Environmental Impact Assessment

2.6.1

2.6.2

2.6.3

264

The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2017 (as amended) requires that an Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) is undertaken, and an Environmental Statement (ES)
produced for certain developments.

ElAis a procedure which serves to provide information about the likely
significant effects of a proposed project to inform the decision-making process
and whether the project should be allowed to proceed, and if so on what
terms.

An overview of the EIA process is provided as part of government’s Planning
Practice Guidance. An EIA is normally only necessary for a small proportion of
projects.

An EIA Screening Opinion can be obtained from the council to determine
whether a proposed development needs an EIA. Once it has been determined
that an ElAis required, an EIA Scoping Opinion can be obtained from the
Local Planning Authority to provide advice on the scope and content of the
Environmental Statement (ES).

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 18


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment

Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Rhian Thomas 17969/APP/2024/845

Date Application | 02/04/2024 Statutory / Agreed | 04/10/24

Valid: Determination

Deadline:

Application Full Ward: Uxbridge

Type:

Applicant: Mr Roda

Site Address: 19 Beacon Close, Uxbridge

Proposal: Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of
two pairs of semi-detached dwellings to provide
2 x 3-bedroom dwellings and 2 x 2-bedroom
dwellings plus associated hard and soft
landscaping.

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to section

Recommendation:

Reason Reported
to Committee:

LONDON

106 legal agreement and conditions

Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk




Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

1 Executive Summary

1.1 Planning permission is sought for the demolition of existing bungalows and the
erection of two pairs of semi-detached dwellings to provide 2 x 3-bedroom
dwellings and 2 x 2-bedroom dwellings, plus associated hard and soft
landscaping.

1.2  Planning permission was previously refused by the Borough Planning Committee
in February 2024 (application ref: 17969/APP/2023/1014) for the erection of four
terraced dwellings incorporating landscaping, parking provision, waste and cycle
stores following demolition of the existing dwelling. The application was refused
for 4 reasons which are set out in more detail within Section 4 of this committee
report. In summary concerns were raised regarding the design and its departure
from the existing pattern of development and character of the area, the excessive
provision of hardstanding and the lack of a legal agreement to prohibit future
occupiers from joining the local parking management scheme.

1.3  The current revised scheme seeks to overcome the previous reasons for refusal
by providing 4 new dwellings in the form of two pairs of semi-detached dwellings
(2x3 and 2x2 bed) with revised landscaping and parking arrangements. Notably,
the scale of the dwellings has been reduced and they have been set back so the
front building line does not protrude beyond the front elevation of No.24 Beacon
Close. During the assessment of the application the applicant submitted a
landscaping drawing which demonstrates that the frontages would no longer be
heavily dominated by hard surfacing. Finally, the applicant has submitted a
Unilateral Undertaking (UU) which demonstrates that future occupiers of the
development will not be eligible to join the local parking management scheme. It
is officer’s opinion that the changes set out above and described in further detail
within this report have satisfactorily addressed the concerns which previously
formed the reasons for refusal.

1.4  During the process of the application, a petition in objection to the development
was received.

1.5 The main issues which shall be addressed within this Committee Report relate to
the intensification of the site and the impact on the character and appearance of
the street scene.

1.6 The Committee Report seeks to provide a comprehensive assessment of the full
application and supporting documentation. All material planning considerations
have been considered.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 20



2 The Site and Locality

2.1 The application site is approximately rectangular in shape and is located at the
southern end of Beacon Close, which is a cul-de-sac. It comprises a detached,
single storey dwelling with a hipped roof and a detached garage with a flat roof
located to the north-east of the dwelling. There is a vehicle crossover to the front
of the detached garage which emerges onto Beacon Close. There is a second
vehicle crossover along the north-western site frontage. Parking on Beacon Close
is restricted by a single yellow line and is controlled by Car Parking Zone U8 which
restricts parking to allow only permit holders to park within the street parking bays
Mondays - Fridays between the hours of 9am to 5pm.

2.2 The street scene on Beacon Close is characterised by detached dwellings set-
back from the highway. To the west of the site is number 24 Beacon Close, an
adjacent detached bungalow that has been extended by single storey side and
rear extensions and a rear dormer. To the east of the site, and sited on
substantially higher grounds, are the backland developments at numbers 213B
and 213C Harefield Road.

2.3 According to the Council's GIS, the site is designated within the Colne Valley
Archaeological Priority Zone, Northolt RAF- 3km Buffer Zone and an Air Quality
Management Area. A section of the highway to the front of the site falls within a
Surface Water Flood Zone, although the application site itself does not fall within
this designation. The site is in Flood Zone 1 and has a Public Transport
Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1b (poor).

Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 21



Figure 2: Street View Image of the Application Property

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 22



3 Proposal

3.1 The application proposes the demolition of the existing bungalow and erection of
two pairs of semi-detached dwellings to provide 2 x 3-bedroom dwellings and 2 x
2-bedroom dwellings plus associated hard and soft landscaping. The existing
bungalow and its associated detached garage would be demolished.

3.2 All 4 dwellings would be market sale properties.
3.3 During the process of the application revised drawings were sought and received
to amend the front landscaping and parking arrangements and the applicant has

provided a Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment.

Figure 3: Proposed Plans (please note — larger version of plan can be found in
the Committee Plan Pack)

Proposed Site Plan

il

i w3
TR ~
U] i
; 1] “_ 2
i i o 2
h v
2 o |
8 1§ 1 L il I
it S e i: 3
| 3
8 T

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 23



Proposed Plans Plot 1 and Plot 2

Floor Plans and Elevations Pot 1 & 2

W J Macleol Vassiss |4
AT 19 BEACON CLOSE, UXBRIDGE. | | amceire: ar = ierain

Proposed Plans Plot 3 and Plot 4

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 24




4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Street Scene Elevation

Relevant Planning History

A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

The most recent application at the site was refused permission under planning ref:
17969/APP/2023/1014 for the erection of four terraced dwellings incorporating
landscaping, parking provision, waste and cycle stores following demolition of
existing dwelling.

The application was refused at the Borough Planning Committee in February 2024
for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development, by reason of the number of dwellings being
proposed, their terraced form, layout and siting, would result in an incongruous
form of overdevelopment of the site that would fail to harmonise with the existing
local context and prevailing pattern of development on Beacon Close. The
principle of intensifying the residential use of the site as proposed, would have a
detrimental impact on the street scene and character and appearance of the area
as a whole. The proposal is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity and
character of the surrounding area and contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMH 6, DMHB 11 and
DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020), Policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) and Chapter 12 of
the National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 25



4.5 2. The proposed development, by reason of its forward projection beyond the
established front building line in this section of Beacon Close, plot width, depth,
massing, bulk, scale and design, would fail to harmonise with the character and
architectural composition of surrounding properties, appearing as an awkward,
incongruous and cramped form of development which would be detrimental to the
visual amenity of the street scene and harmful to the character and appearance
of the surrounding area. The proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy BE1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMH 6,
DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020), Policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) and
Chapter 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

4.6 3. The proposed development, by virtue of the excessive area of hard standing for
the on-site parking provision, negligible soft landscaping and tree planting,
removal of the existing front boundary treatment and number and site coverage of
associated requirements for cycle stores and refuse bins in the front gardens,
would erode and be out of keeping with the existing pleasant, spacious and
suburban character of the site and the surrounding street scene on Beacon Close.
The proposal would introduce an urbanising form of development that would cause
harm to the open and verdant character and appearance of the area. The proposal
would therefore have a harmful impact upon the character, appearance and visual
amenities of the area, contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies DMH 6, DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHB
14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020), Policies D3, D4 and G7 of the London Plan (2021) and Chapter 12 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

4.7 4. In the absence of a legal agreement to cover the required highways work to
enable the proposed vehicle crossovers and on-site car parking provision and
preventing the issuing of parking permits to future occupiers of the proposed
dwellings which are located within a permit-controlled area, the proposed
development is likely to lead to an increase in pressure for on-street parking and
have a consequent adverse effect on highway safety, through inconsiderate and
potential hazardous parking and a risk to road users. The proposal would therefore
be contrary to Policy DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
2 - Development Management Policies (2020), Policies T4, T6 and T6.1 of the
London Plan (2021) and paragraph 115 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2023).

4.8 The main issue for the current application is whether these reasons for refusal
have been overcome.

4.9 This current application is a re-submission of the refused scheme. The application
seeks to overcome the above reasons for refusal. The main change within this
application is the development has been split into two sets of semi-detached
properties as opposed to one set of terraced properties with changes to the front
landscaping and parking arrangements.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 26



4.10 Overall, as discussed within the relevant sections of this Committee Report, the
proposed development is considered to have overcome all the previous reasons
for refusal.

5 Planning Policy

5.1 A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

6 Consultations and Representations

6.1 9 neighbouring properties and North Uxbridge Residents Association were
consulted on the application by letter dated 16-04-24. The consultation period
expired 08-05-24.

Internal and external consultations were also sent out and a summary of the
comments received are noted below in Table 2 of this Committee Report.

6.2 Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2
(below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made available
to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations | Summary of Issues Planning Officer
Raised Response

A petition of 22 1. Gross Discussed at paragraph

valid signatures Overdevelopment of 7.6 of this report.

has been the site.

received against
the application

2. Design is not consistent | Discussed at paragraph

with the street scene. 7.13 of this report.
7 individual letters | |. Disturbances due to Noise and disturbance of
of objection have building work. building work are governed
been received under separate legislation

and is not a material
planning consideration. As
such this matter has not
been discussed further.

II. Loss of privacy and Discussed in paragraphs
views. 7.26 to 7.30 of this report.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 27



IIl. Decrease in property This matter is not a

values. material planning
consideration. As such this
matter has not been
discussed further.

[\/. Increase in flooding and | Discussed at paragraphs
blocked drains. 7.67 and 7.68 of this

report.

V. Loss of suburban Discussed at paragraph
garden view that is out | 7.16 of this report.
of character with the
surrounding area.

\/I. Traffic and Parking Discussed at paragraph
Concerns. 7.38 of this report.

II. Overdevelopment of the | Discussed at paragraph
site. 7.6 of this report.

lIl. Impact wildlife, trees Discussed at paragraph
and biodiversity 7.57 and 7.65 of this

report.

|X. Semi-detached Discussed at paragraph
properties are out of 7.16 of this report.
character with the
detached properties in
the area.

X. There are no social, The proposed
community or aesthetic | development would
benefits. provide two new family

sized units (3 bed
properties) and two
additional two bed
properties which would
make a contribution
towards the Borough’s
needs for family sized
housing.

X|. Similar schemes have The proposed
been refused by the development differs from
council previously on previously refused
the plot. applications in terms of its

design, site layout and a

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 28




full assessment has been
made within this report.

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments

Planning Officer
Response

Statutory Consultation

Ministry of Defence:

No objection

Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service
(GLAAS):

GLAAS were
consulted on the
application as the
previous applications
had them listed as a
consultee. However,
they did not consider
it necessary to be
consulted and left no
further comment.

Access Officer:

This latest proposal for the erection of four terraced
houses with landscaping and parking has been
reviewed with reference to London Plan Policy D7.
No accessibility concerns are raised subject to
conditions pertaining to the submission of step free
access details, and compliance with the relevant M4
standards.

The comments from
the access officer are
noted and the
relevant conditions
will be added to the
decision notice.

Highway Officer:

The application site has a PTAL ranking of 1b
indicating access to public transport is poor
compared to London as a whole, suggesting that few
opportunities for trips to be made to and from the
application site by modes other than the private car
would be available. However, it should be noted that
the site is located within 10 minutes walking distance
the Uxbridge Metropolitan Town Centre which
benefits from a PTAL rating of 6. The Town Centre
accommodates a train station benefiting from access
to two different train lines and a bus station which
accommodates multiple bus links as well as
accommodating town centre infrastructure such as
retail, community space and public open space.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 29



Access

The application site has 2no. vehicle crossovers,
with 1no. single crossover serving the existing
dwelling and 1no. double crossover serving the
existing garage located on the eastern side of the
turning head adjacent to the stepped adopted
footpath that links Beacon Close to Harefield Road.

Drawing 24/3551/1 titled Land At 19 Beacon Close,
Uxbridge shows the proposed site layout which
provides a single vehicle crossover to Plot 4, extends
the existing vehicle crossover to serve Plot 2 and
Plot 3 and provides vehicular access to parking
spaces for Plot 1 over the existing vehicle crossover
to the garage which would be removed.

The shared vehicle crossover to Plot 2 and Plot 3
should concur with DVFC 4.2.2 Shared
Crossover/Shared Access.

Noted and a

Removal of the garage to provide parking for Plot 1 condition pertaining
may undermine the structure supporting the steps to | to the submission of a

the adjacent adopted footpath which would not be structural survey to
acceptable. Further details would be required, and be attached to the
The Structural Engineer should be consulted. decision notice.

Pedestrian visibility splays of 2.4m x 2.4m in which Noted and

there is no obstruction over 0.6m are required. conditioned.

Car Parking Noted and a

Drawing 24/3551/1 titled Land At 19 Beacon Close, | Unilateral

Uxbridge which is the site plan illustrates a total of Undertaking has

6no. car parking spaces for the development which been submitted to the
would be in accordance with the London Plan Council for review.
maximum standard and would be acceptable. The UU

The applicant should be advised that the Highway demonstrates that the
Authority would require that the applicant enter a applicant agrees to
legal agreement that prohibits future occupants of prohibit future

the proposed development from applying for a permit | occupiers from

to join any parking management scheme in the applying to join the
vicinity of the application site. local PMS.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP's) Noted and

Drawing 24/3551/1 titled Land At 19 Beacon Close, | conditioned
Uxbridge shows 1no. EVCP for each dwelling which
would be acceptable but should amended to show
1no. active 7Kw EVCP for each dwelling which
should be conditioned.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 30



7

Cycle Parking

Drawing 24/3551/1 titled Land At 19 Beacon Close,
Uxbridge, indicates that each of the dwellings would
benefit from 2no. cycle parking spaces however, the
locations are remote from the dwellings and are
accessed through narrow gated pathways of
approximately 0.8m wide and bound to both sides
which would not be acceptable.

Conclusion

The Highway Authority are satisfied that the proposal
would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or
parking stress and would not raise any measurable
highway safety concerns and would therefore offer
no objection to the application subject to conditions
pertaining to the delivery of EVCP provision, further
cycle storage details and the submission of a legal
agreement to prohibit future occupiers from joining
the parking management scheme.

Noted by Officers and
a response is set out
in paragraph 7.42 of

this committee report.

Environmental Specialist:

It is considered that a biodiversity net gain solution is
capable of being secured for the development and
therefore reverting to the statutory pre-
commencement condition would be

acceptable. However, the solution presented
remains unacceptable due to the unreasonable
demands placed on a future occupier to retain a
relatively high-grade habitat type within the useable
private curtilage of the property.

A future BNG solution will need to clearly set out how
habitat will be managed to retain its

distinctiveness. The higher the level of
distinctiveness, the more management will be
required.

It is therefore advisable that any landscaping plans
are not part of any subsequent conditional approval
as these may change with a future approach to

BNG.

The comments made
by the Ecology
Specialist are noted
and the relevant
conditions have been
added to the decision
notice.

Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

New Housing and Garden Land Development

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 31



7.1 The proposed development would be built upon garden land following the
demolition of the existing dwelling. As such, Policy DMH 6 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan (2020) would be relevant which states ‘there is a presumption against the
loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local character, amenity space and
biodiversity’.

7.2  Although located on garden land, the principle for residential use has been
established through the existing dwelling. Therefore, the intensification of the site
and housing mix must be assessed in accordance with Policy DMH 6. The loss
of garden land for development will be strongly resisted unless applicants can
demonstrate that the development proposal does not present a departure from
the existing pattern of development, is designed to compliment the character and
appearance of the area, would not result in significant harm to neighbour
amenity or the local highway network.

7.3  The previous application included the provision of four dwellings in terraced
form. This current application has amended the design to include 2 sets of semi-
detached properties creating spaces between the properties to maintain the
openness of the area. As set out within the character and appearance section of
this committee report, the design of the proposal is considered to have an
acceptable impact in terms of its impact on local character and would have an
appropriate area of amenity space for future occupiers. The impact on existing
ecology, trees and biodiversity has been discussed in more ecology and
biodiversity sections of this report.

7.4  Policy H10 on the London Plan (2021) and Policy DMH2 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan (2020) relate to housing mix and the need for family sized housing. The
proposed development would provide four new dwellings (2 x 2 bed and 2 x 3
bed) with a net gain of three dwellings. The development would provide 2 family
sized dwellings (a net increase of 1) which would make a contribution towards
the Boroughs needs for family sized housing. Accordingly, it is considered that
the proposal would consist of appropriate mix.

7.5 Overall, the principle of the proposed development is accepted and complies
with the relevant planning policies. These policies can be read in full in the
Committee Report Part 3 - Policy Appendix.

Density

7.6 Numerical densities are more appropriate to larger sites and what is considered
of greater significance to the determination of this application is the local
contextual factors. The key consideration is therefore whether the development
would acceptably integrate with the character and appearance of the area, and
would respect residential amenity considerations, rather than the consideration
of the numerical density of the proposal.

Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 32



7.7 Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development
proposals to be of high quality and to enhance the local context by delivering
buildings and spaces that positively respond to local distinctiveness

7.8 Policies BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 — Strategic Policies (2012),
DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 —
Development Management Policies (2020) in summary seek to secure a high
quality of design that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form,
scale and materials, is appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape
and would improve the quality of the public realm and respect local character.
These aims are also supported by Chapter 12 of the NPPF (2023).

7.9 Beacon Close is comprised of wide detached properties set-back from the
highway by front drives and front gardens. In terms of architectural style, the
properties along Beacon Close are characterised with gable end roofs, externally
finished mostly with brickwork on ground level and cladding at first floor level. The
site frontages of the existing properties are typically characterised with low level
boundary treatment with a mixture of hard and soft landscaping with space for off-
street car parking.

7.10 At the turning head of Beacon Close, are two bungalows at numbers 19 Beacon
Close (the application site) and 24 Beacon Close. Directly east of the application
site lies numbers 213B and 213C Harefield Road, a pair of semi-detached
properties approved under application reference 59140/APP/2011/1113.

7.11 At present, the application site is characterised by a bungalow property with a low-
level brick wall and soft landscaped front garden. There is an area of hard
surfacing along the western boundary of the application site for a single-width
driveway served by an existing crossover. In the northeastern corner of the plot
lies an existing garage structure served by a vehicle crossover.

7.12 Beacon Close is a cul-de-sac which features a reasonably uniformed front building
line despite the curved nature of the road and comprises of mainly two storey
detached dwellings. Whilst the front buildings lines are reasonably aligned, the
rear buildings line have become distorted which is mainly due to the construction
of residential extensions. Whilst not specifically within Beacon Close, there is an
examples of back land development constructed on a site immediately adjacent
to the application site which benefitted from permission to construct semi-
detached dwellings accessed off Harefield Road. Furthermore No.2F Beacon
Close was subject to a planning application for the construction of an attached 3-
bedroom house thus forming a semi-detached pair of dwellings. As such it is
considered that developments consisting of semi-detached dwellings do
contribute to the character and appearance of the area.

7.13 This application has been submitted in response to the previous refusal of
application reference 17969/APP/2023/1014 and involves the demolition of the
existing bungalow and the erection of two sets of semi-detached properties
comprising 2 x 2bed and 2 x 3 bed dwellings. In forming reasons for refusal 1 and
2 which relate to the design of the development, concerns were raised with

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 33



regards to the provision of a block of 4 dwellings which formed a terrace. As
terraces are uncommon within the immediate context it was considered that the
development would result in a departure from the character and appearance of
the area and that the design was led by a desire to over intensify the use of the
property rather than a development which complimented and enhanced the local
character.

7.14 In seeking to respond to the concerns raised regarding the proposal of a terraced
block, the revised proposal seeks consent for two pairs of semis. The dwellings
have been reduced in scale, bulk and mass to create additional space around
each pair and would be set apart by a separation distance of 2 metres.

7.15 In determining the previous application Officers raised concern with the location
of the proposed block as it stepped forward of the front building line at No.21
Beacon Close. The application site is located at the end of the cul-de-sac meaning
that the established building line is formed by the two adjacent properties only
which are No.24 Beacon Close and No.213c and 213b Harefield Road which a set
of semis constructed on a backland development site. The existing dwelling is
similar in scale bulk and mass to No.24 Beacon Close and features a small front
projection towards the western elevation. The proposed site plan illustrates that
the dwellings would be set back further so that they do not protrude beyond the
front elevation of No.21 Beacon Close and would be set behind the front elevation
of No’s 213b and 213c Harefield Road. As such Officers consider that the revised
proposal would not result in a departure from the existing pattern of development
as shown in figure 3. Furthermore it should be noted that the front building line of
No.22 sits well behind the front building line of No.20 Beacon Close meaning that
the established building lines within this part of the cul-de-sac are restricted to the
to adjacent sites only and in the event that the set back of the front elevation of
plots 1 and 2 behind 213c and 213b Harefield Road is no different to the
relationship between No.22 and No.20 Beacon Close. As such Officers consider
that the revised design responds to the concerns raised when refusing the
previous applications.

7.16 This proposal is revised in terms of the bulk, scale, mass and general appearance
of the proposed dwellings. Although the properties along Beacon Close are
detached in nature, they appear very wide as many have benefitted from large
extensions and have the appearance of being semi-detached. The proposed
dwellings would appear similar in size and design to the surrounding properties
and as such would integrate with the character and appearance of the street
scene. Furthermore, the elevations indicated that design features from the
surrounding properties have been adopted when designing the proposed
dwellings. Notably most of the dwellings which form the street scene are two
storeys in height characterised by gable ended and tiled roofs, a mixture of brick
and tile hung front facades and generous sized front and rear gardens. As referred
to earlier in this report, most properties also benefit from various side and rear
additions as well as porches some of which are reasonably large in scale. The
proposed elevations illustrated the dwellings are of a similar scale, bulk and mass
to the surrounding properties, they have been designed with gable ended, tiled
roofs, would feature centralise canopies over the front entrance doors and

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 34



additional soft landscaping is proposed to the front which is a similar design
feature to the other properties within the street scene. Although there would be an
uplift of 3 new residential units on the site, the plot is large and reduction in the
scale bulk and mass would result in a development which fits comfortably within
its context. The unit sizes (number of occupiers) have decreased from the previous
application, the design has been improved and the landscaping has been altered.
As such, it is not considered that the proposed development would be an
overdevelopment of the site

7.17 The proposed development would maintain adequate separation distances to the
surrounding properties. The dwellings would be set in from the side boundaries by
1m and the two sets of semi-detached properties would have a separation gap of
approx. 2m. Given the site levels, the building ridge heights would be staggered,
forming a bridge between number 213C Harefield Road and 24 Beacon Close
allowing views beyond the dwellings to the south. The building lines of the
development would not break the building line of Beacon Close. It is considered
that the proposed development would fit comfortably within the plot.

7.18 During the process of the application, revised drawings were sought to reduce the
width of the front canopy features. It is now considered that the proposed design
of the properties would fit in with the character and appearance of the street scene.
A condition has been added to the decision notice requiring the sample of
materials.

7.19 In terms of landscaping, the previous application included a refusal reason due to
the ‘excessive area of hard standing, negligible soft landscaping and tree planting,
removal of the existing front boundary treatment and number and site coverage of
cycle stores and refuge stores.” The proposed development has revised the front
landscaping with the relocation of the cycle stores to the rear gardens to maintain
the local character. The level of tree planting, hedges and planting beds has been
increased with the introduction of front lawns to break up the parking areas. It is
considered that the proposed front landscaping would fit in with the character and
appearance of the street scene given the surrounding properties have a mixture
of hard and soft landscaping. The application is supported by an Arboricultural
Implications Report which confirms that no trees of high landscape or biodiversity
value are to be removed as part of the development. The proposed removal of
individuals and groups of trees will represent no alteration to the main
arboricultural features of the site, only a minor alteration to the overall character
of the site and will not have an adverse impact on the arboricultural character and
appearance of the local landscape.

7.20 Overall, the proposed design of the development would fit in with the character
and appearance of the street scene. The proposed massing and layout is
comparable to the majority of dwellings along Beacon Close and retains space
and views around the development. The proposed front landscaping has been
improved; however, the provision of a detailed landscape plan has been
conditioned. It is considered that the proposed development has sufficiently
overcome refusal reasons 1, 2 and 3 of the previous refused application reference
17969/APP/2023/1014.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 35



7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

It is considered that the proposed development would comply with the overarching
aims of Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(2012), Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020), Policies D3 and D4 of the London
Plan (2021) and the NPPF (2023).

Heritage

The site lies in the Colne Valley Archaeological Priority Area which contains
archaeological remains dating from the prehistoric to post-medieval periods.
The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service were consulted on the
application and acknowledged receipt of the consultation request. No further
response has been received and the consultation period has now expired.

On this basis, it is considered that the proposed development would not cause
harm to heritage assets of archaeological interest. The proposal would therefore
accord with Policy DMHB 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020), Policy HC1 of
the London Plan (2021) and the NPPF (2023), in this respect.

Impact on the Green Belt

The application site does not lie within the Green Belt.

Residential Amenity

The previously refused scheme was not considered to have a significant harmful
impact on the neighbouring properties through a loss of light and outlook
(reference 17969/APP/2023/1014) This remains the case with this current
scheme. An assessment of the potential impact on neighbouring residential
amenity is discussed as follows.

Number 24 Beacon Close is a detached bungalow located to the west of the
application site. Plot 4 would be the closest of the proposed properties to this
neighbour. It would be sited approx. 1m from the side boundary and be two stories
in nature. The dwelling would contain no ground or first floor flank windows which
would face this neighbour and as such there would be no harmful level of
overlooking or loss of privacy. The proposed ground floor would extend marginally
beyond the single storey rear extension at No.24; however, it is not considered
that this would cause any harmful loss of light or overshadowing.

It is acknowledged that the proposed first floor rear windows would provide oblique
views into the rear gardens of No.24 Beacon Close and Nos. 213B and 213C
Harefield Road and long views towards the end of the rear gardens of the
properties fronting Harefield Road. However, a mutual degree of overlooking
between first floor windows and rear gardens of neighbouring properties already
exists, which is not uncommon in suburban locations such as this. It is therefore
considered that the proposed first floor rear windows would not result in such a
material loss of privacy as to warrant a reasonable ground for refusal on this basis.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 36



7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

Numbers 213B and 213C Harefield Road are two-storey properties located to the
east of the application site. These neighbouring properties sit on substantially
higher ground than the application site. The rear building line of the proposed
dwelling on Plot 1 would not breach the 45-degree line of sight taken from the
nearest first floor rear habitable window at No. 213C Harefield Road. There would
be ground and first floor flank windows within the dwelling at plot 1, however due
to the high ground position of no0.213C, there would be no level of overlooking or
loss of privacy. Taking these factors into account, and the south facing aspect of
Nos. 213B and 213C, it is considered that the proposal would not result in an
unreasonable loss of light, outlook or sense of enclosure for these neighbouring
occupiers and their associated private amenity space.

Plot two would include the provision of two ground floor flank windows and one
upper floor flank window facing Plot 3. However, as Plot 3 does not contain any
flank windows there would be no level of overlooking or loss of privacy.

Having regard to the above, it is considered that the proposed development would
not unduly impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers. It would
therefore comply with Policy DMHB 11 part B) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
- Development Management Policies (2020).

Quality of Residential Accommodation (Internal and External)

Regarding internal accommodation, Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) sets
out the requirements for the gross internal floor area of new dwellings at a
defined level of occupancy. Table 3.1 of the London Plan (2021) set outs the
same gross internal area space standards set out in the technical housing
standards - nationally described space standard (2015). Policy DMHB 16 of the
Local Plan (2020) Aligns with this policy.

The proposed development comprises 4 new dwellings (2x2 bed and 2x3 bed)
The proposed 3bed semi-detached properties would have a GIA of approx.
102.5sgm and would house up to 5 people.

The proposed 2bed semi-detached properties would have a GIA of approx.
79sgm and would house up to 4 people. All properties would meet the internal
space standards of the London Plan (2021). It is considered that all habitable
rooms would have an adequate source of light and outlook. As such the
proposed development complies with Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) and
Policy DMHD 16 of the Local Plan (2020).

With regard to external amenity space, Policy DMHB 18 of Local Plan (2020)
states that all new residential development and conversions will be required to
provide good quality and usable private outdoor amenity space. Amenity space
should be provided in accordance with the standards set out in Table 5.3, which
requires houses with two and three bedrooms to provide a minimum of 60
square metres of private genuinely usable amenity space.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 37



7.35 Plots 1 and 2 would have approx. 70sgm of rear garden space each and plots 3
and 4 would have approx. 64sqgm each complying with Policy DMHB 18. The
proposal would provide the future occupiers of the proposed dwellings with
external private amenity space provision that is of a sufficient size, usability and
functionality, in accordance with Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(2020).

Highways and Parking

7.36 The application site is located at the end of the turning head on Beacon Close, a
residential cul-de-ac with 30mph speed limit which is subject to a single yellow
line parking restrictions Monday-Saturday between 8am and 6:30pm. An
adopted stepped footpath runs from the northeastern corned of the turning head
to Harefield Road.

Access

7.37 The application site has 2no. existing vehicle crossovers with one serving the
existing dwelling and one serving the existing detached garage located on the
astern side of the turning head adjacent to the stepped footpath. Drawing no
24/3551/1 Rev A shows the proposed site layout which shows an additional
crossover to serve Plots 2 and 3. Upon review of the proposal the Local Highway
Authority requested that the crossover to the front of x be located at least 1
metre away from the existing lamppost column. In response to this drawing
reference 24/3551/1 Rev A illustrates that the crossover is located 1 metre away
from the lamp column which complies with The London Borough of Hillingdon
Domestic Vehicle Footway Crossover policy (DVFC) 2022 4.9 Street Furniture
and Traffic Calming document. Subject to the submission of a plan indicating
pedestrian visibility splays of 2.4m x 2.4m in which no obstruction over 0.6m can
be implemented which will be secured by way of condition, no objections are
raised to the provision of new crossovers to serve the proposed development.

Parking

7.38 The London plan table 10.3-Maximum Residential Parking Standards allows
dwellings in outer London with a PTAL of 1b to have a maximum of 1.5 spaces
per dwelling. The proposed development would provide 2no car parking spaces
each for the 3-bedroom dwellings and 1no car parking spaces each for the 2-
bedroom dwellings which would be in accordance with the London plan
maximum standards. Plot 2 would benefit from a tandem parking space, whilst
this is not the ideal parking situation, the property would be for one single family,
and it is considered that the need for 2 parking spaces for the 3-bed dwelling in a
PTAL ranking area of 1b outweighs the negatives of the tandem parking space.
On balance the layout of car parking spaces is considered acceptable.

7.39 As per the Local Highway Authority comments, due to the limited provision of off-
street parking and prevention of parking stress in the local area it is necessary to
restrict future occupiers of the dwellings entering parking permit schemes. A
Unilateral Undertaking has been drafted and will be reviewed by the Councils

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 38



Legal Team. The Unilateral Undertaking will need to be submitted and reviewed
before the decision of the application is released. Although yet to be signed, the
provision of the agreement in draft form is adequate demonstration that the
applicant will agree to a restriction on future occupants joining the parking
management schemes in the local area.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points

7.40 The published London Plan (2021) required that 20% of car parking spaces have
active Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP) and 80% of spaces have passive
EVCPs. Drawing 24/3551/1 Rev A shows 1no. EVCP for each dwelling which
would be acceptable, however this should be amended to show 1no active 7Kw
EVCP. This is to be secured by condition.

Cycle Parking

7.41 The Published London Plan (2021) Table 10.2 Maximum Cycle Paring
Standards requires dwellings with two or more bedrooms to have a minimum of
2no. cycle parking spaces which are shown on Drawing 24/3551/1 Rev A. The
cycle storage is located within the rear gardens accessed by individual paths. It
is considered that the number of cycle storage is acceptable for the
development.

7.42 ltis noted that the Highway Authority has concerns regarding the location of the
cycle storge to the rear of the properties due to the 0.9m wide footpaths.
However, from reviewing the revised block plan showing revised landscaping
and parking arrangements it is considered that the cycle storage located in the
rear gardens of the dwellings form a better design compared to a front garden
position. If the cycle storage were to be located to the front of the dwellings it
would require additional hard surfacing which was raised as a design concern
when refusing the previous application and cycle storage in front gardens is not
a common feature within the street scene. In fact, the location of cycle parking
within rear gardens is a common arrangement for residential properties.
Therefore, it is considered on balance an acceptable arrangement. A condition
has been added to the decision requiring the details of the cycle storage
including their dimensions, materials and location.

Other Matters

7.43 The application is bounded by a public right of way which adjoins the western
boundary. As there is a land level change which slopes away as you travel east,
steps are located towards the bottom of the footpath. In assessing the proposals,
the Local Highway Authority have suggested that a structural survey is
undertaken to ensure the structural integrity of the wall is not compromised
during the construction of the development. A condition pertaining to the
submission of a structural survey is to be attached to the decision notice.

Conclusion

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 39



7.44

7.45

7.46

7.47

7.48

7.49

The Highway Authority have been consulted on the application and are satisfied
that the proposal would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress
and would not raise any measurable highway safety concerns and officer no
objection to the application subject to certain conditions.

Noise

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) requires that proposals minimise noise
pollution and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(2012) promotes the maximum possible reduction in noise levels and seeks to
ensure that noise impacts can be adequately controlled and mitigated.

The site would be used in an exclusively residential capacity. As such, in terms of
the operational phase of the proposed development, no significant issues are
considered to be raised by the proposal, in respect to noise. A condition has been
added requiring the submission of a Construction Management Plan to minimise
noise and other emissions caused during the construction phase as far as
practicable.

Air Quality

Local Plan Policy DMEI 14 states:

Policies Sl 1 of the London Plan (2021), EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1
(2012) and DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) are all directly
relevant to the proposal. These policies can be read in full in the Committee
Report Part 3 - Policy Appendix, and in summary, seek to safeguard and
improve air quality to protect existing and new sensitive receptors. These aims
are also supported by the NPPF (2023) at Chapter 15.

The development site is located within an Air Quality Management Area. The
proposal would result in 3 additional homes at the site, their occupiers would have
access to 6 car parking spaces with 4 being served with active vehicle charging
points (covered by way of a condition). Whilst the development would result in a
net increase in trip generation, the number of trips would be de minimis and
therefore it would not be justifiable to require mitigation be secured by way of
condition. Notwithstanding this point given the constraints of the site and its
located within a cul-de-sac; the applicant will need to submit a Construction
Management Plan to minimise air and other emissions caused during the
construction phase. This condition is recommended to be added to the decision
notice.

Accessibility

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) seeks to ensure development proposals
achieve the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design. Policy D7 of
the London Plan (2021) requires at least ten percent of dwellings to meet
Building Regulation requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings', with all other
dwellings meeting Category M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 40



7.50

7.51

7.92

7.53

7.54

7.55

7.56

The Councils Access Officer has been consulted on the application and has no
objection to the proposed development in terms of accessibility subject to
conditions pertaining to step free access which have been added to the decision
notice.

Trees and Landscaping

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been submitted with the proposed
development. The submitted Arboricultural Report indicates that five trees would
be felled, all being 'Category C' specimens. In principle, the loss of these low
value trees is acceptable. However, consideration also needs to be given to the
proposed landscape scheme, and replacement tree planting.

The proposed development would include landscaping works to the front of the
site to include new areas of hardstanding for vehicle parking and soft
landscaping. The previous refused application states that ‘the proposal would
still introduce an urbanising form of development that would not integrate well
with its surroundings. The proposed replacement trees and landscaping would
not mitigate the harm caused to the character and appearance of the area.’

The current application seeks to overcome the previous refusal reason by a
revised front landscaping scheme. As discussed within the Character and
Appearance section of the report, the proposed design of the development would
not cause harm to the character and appearance of the street scene and would
integrate within the surrounding properties. The level of hard surfacing has been
reduced with the introduction of front lawn areas and trees to integrate with the
surrounding properties. Subject to a comprehensive landscape plan which has
been conditioned it is considered that the proposed development would comply
with Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020) and has sufficiently
overcome refusal reason 3 of planning reference 17969/APP/2023/1014.

Ecology

The site is in proximity to The Alderglade Nature Reserve and Frays Farm, which
is a designated Nature Conservation Site of Local Importance. It is therefore
considered that the site is located within habitat that matches that where bat
roosts have previously been found in the Borough.

A Preliminary Ecology Appraisal and Preliminary Roast Assessment has been
submitted with this application. The report methodology includes a desk top
survey and walkover survey to determine the potential presence of protected and
notable species. This concluded that the site was not suitable for, or no evidence
was documented of, a number of notable species.

In respect to bats, due to the small size of the site, small number of trees and
better-quality habitats at Alderglade Nature Reserve and Frays Farm, the site
was determined to be of limited value to foraging and commuting bats. In respect
to opportunities for bat roosts, the main dwelling was concluded to be of low
potential with limited entry points into the loft (for example lifted roof tiles) and no

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 41



7.57

7.58

7.59

7.60

7.61

7.62

evidence of bat activity found in the loft space (for example droppings, feeding
remains or urine staining). The garage and shed on site were considered to have
negligible potential for roosting bats due to the roofing felt on these structures
being in good condition and tightly sealed.

The proposal satisfactorily demonstrates that there would be no harm to
protected species and their habitats. The paragraphs below discuss issues
relating to biodiversity.

Biodiversity Net Gain

In England, Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) is mandatory under Schedule 7A of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the
Environment Act 2021). It became mandatory for major developments on 12
February 2024 and small sites on 2 April 2024. Developers must deliver a BNG
of at least 10%. This means a development will result in more or better-quality
natural habitat than there was before development. The landowner is legally
responsible for creating or enhancing the habitat and managing that habitat for at
least 30 years to achieve the target condition.

Policy 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2023) states that planning
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by
minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity.

Paragraph 8.6.6 of Policy G6 of The London Plan (2021) states that biodiversity
net gain is an approach to development that leaves biodiversity in a better state
than before. Losses should be avoided, and biodiversity offsetting is the option of
last resort.

Policy EM7 of Hillingdon Council's Local Plan Part One Strategic Policies (2012)
states that Hillingdon's biodiversity and geological conservation will be preserved
and enhanced, with particular attention given to improving biodiversity from all
development.

Paragraph 6.28 of Policy DMEI 7 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of
Hillingdon Council's Local Plan Part Two Development Management Policies
(2020) states it is important that planning decisions are appropriately informed by
the right level of survey and information on ecology features. The Council will
apply Natural England's standing advice at the validation stage. Applications will
only be validated if they have the appropriate information. Where initial
assessments recommend further surveys, these will be expected to be provided
as part of a planning submission. All ecological reports or information submitted
should adhere to nationally accepted best practice survey standards and be
consistent with the British Standard BS 42020: 2013 Biodiversity - Code of
Practice for Planning and Development or an updated variation. Where
appropriate, the Council will require the use of the approved DEFRA biodiversity
impact calculator (as updated) to inform decisions on no net loss and net gain.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 42



7.63

7.64

7.65

7.66

7.67

7.68

7.69

During the process of the application a Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment was
requested and provided. The Council’s Environmental Specialist has reviewed
the documents and concluded that the habitat proposed to be provided is not
appropriate for an urban setting and consequently has artificially raised the
biodiversity score. The introduction of ‘other neutral grassland’ will be located
adjacent to parking spaces and around the access tracks and will not therefore
operate in a manner that is captured by this habitat requirement. It is not
appropriate to select a higher scoring habitat type to artificially raise the BNG
assessment levels.

Notwithstanding the above paragraph, the Environmental Specialist believes that
a biodiversity net gain solution is capable of being secured for the development
and therefore reverting to the statutory pre-commencement condition would be
acceptable. However, the solution presented remains unacceptable due to the
unreasonable demands placed on a future occupier to retain a relatively high-
grade habitat type within the useable private curtilage of the property. A future
BNG solution will need to clearly set out how habitat will be managed to retain its
distinctiveness. The higher the level of distinctiveness, the more management
will be required.

As such, the application would be able to provide a 10% increase in biodiversity,
therefore the statutory condition has been added to the decision notice.
However, a comprehensive landscape plan would need to be provided to
ascertain how the 10% increase is met. No landscaping plans will be approved
within this application.

Flooding and Drainage

Policy SI12 and SI13 of the London Plan (2021) require, in summary, that flood
risk is minimised and mitigated, and that surface water runoff is managed close
to source.

The site lies within Flood Zone 1 of the Environment Agency's Flood Risk Map.
This means the site is classified as being at low risk and defined as having a less
than 1in 1,000 probability of fluvial and tidal flooding. As such, there are no
restrictions on development, including more vulnerable uses such as Use Class
C3 (dwellinghouses), in this location, in terms of fluvial and tidal flood risk.

A section of the highway to the front of the application site is designated within a
Surface Water Flooding Zone. A condition requiring the submission of a
sustainable water management scheme, that incorporates sustainable urban
drainage systems (SuDs) has been added to the decision notice.

Waste Management

Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020) states that
development proposals should make sufficient provision for well-designed
internal and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste,

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 43



7.70

7.71

7.72

7.73

7.74

7.75

7.76

with suitable access for collection. External bins should be located and screened
to avoid nuisance and adverse visual impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

The proposed landscape plan does not show any provision for refuse and
recycling storage. To conform with the Council's 'waste-collection' distance
parameter of 10 metres, refuse, recycling and food waste would need to be
deposited kerbside on collection day. It is assumed that the proposed dwellings
could store waste to the rear of the properties in individual gardens due to their
semi-detached design. A suitable condition has been added to the decision
notice requiring the provision and details of refuge storage to be provided.

Sustainability

Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020) requires all developments to
make the fullest contribution to minimising carbon dioxide emissions in
accordance with the London Plan targets.

The proposed development is of a minor scale therefore whilst the principle of SI
2 (carbon reduction) is applicable, the London Plan Policy applies more
specifically to major scale applications. The applicant is therefore not required to
submit an energy statement with the application or demonstrate a policy level of
on-site savings. Notwithstanding this point, the modern construction of the
development would be considered as providing sufficient energy savings itself
and therefore the development would comply with the principles of the carbon
saving development plan policies.

A condition will be secured requiring the proposed development to achieve as a
minimum, a water efficiency standard of no more than 110 litres per person per
day maximum water consumption (to include a fixed factor of water for outdoor
use of 5 litres per person per day in accordance with the option requirement
defined within Approved Document G of the Building Regulations).

The proposal would therefore be compliant with Policy Sl 2 of the London Plan
(2021) and Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020).

Airport Safeguarding

Policy DMAV 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (2020) states that the Council will
ensure that uses such as housing, education and hospitals are not located in
areas significantly affected by aircraft noise without acceptable mitigation
measures.

The application site is within 3km of the RAF Northolt Zone. However, as the site
is within an established residential area within this zone, it is considered that
visibility and audibility of aircraft operations associated with RAF Northolt would
not be of significant harm to the living conditions of future occupiers. It is
therefore considered that it would be unreasonable to refuse the application on
the ground of harm to the residential amenity of the future occupiers, in respect

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 44



7.77

7.78

7.79

7.80

8.1

8.2

8.3

to aircraft noise associated with RAF Northolt. The Ministry of Defence were also
consulted on the application and have no objection to the proposed
development.

Land Contamination

Policy DMEI 12 of the Local Plan (2020) states that for sites which are identified
as being at potential risk of land contamination a contaminated land report
detailing the history of contamination on site, relevant survey work and findings
should be submitted in support of the application.

The application site is not located on contaminated land therefore a survey is not
required nor are conditions pertaining to the submission of further information.

Fire Safety

Policy D12 of the London Plan states that all developments must achieve the
highest standards of fire safety.

The application is not supported by a fire safety strategy. A condition pertaining to
the submission of a fire safety strategy which is to be compiled by a suitably
qualified individual in accordance with the criteria set out in Policy D12 is to be
attached to the decision notice.

Other Matters

Human Rights

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1st August
2014. The Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square
metre of additional floor space. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of
£60 per square metre. CIL rates are index linked. The proposal involves the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 45



erection of new dwellings and is therefore CIL liable if planning permission is
granted.

9 Conclusion / Planning Balance

9.1 On balance, the proposed development would have a satisfactory impact on the
character and appearance of the area and would not give rise to any undue harm
to neighbouring amenities, or the local highway network. Additionally, adequate
living accommodation would be provided for future residents. The proposal would
contribute additional family sized dwellings to the borough's housing stock. The
proposal is considered to overcome all of the previous applications reasons for
refusal.

9.2 The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken. Consequently,
the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's
website here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this
report and using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to
inspect electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 46



APPENDICES
Planning Application

17969/APP/2024/845

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 47 10f 16



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2. RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on submitted plans numbers:

The Location Plan
24-3551-1 Rev A
24-3551-2 Rev A
24-3551-3
24-3551-5

Thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012), Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Prior to commencement of the hereby approved development (excluding demolition and site
clearance), a landscape scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage (including location, dimensions and materials)

2.b Cycle Storage (including location, dimensions and materials)

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including the provision of one 7Kw active Electric Vehicle charging

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 48 2 of 16



Points for each dwelling)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHBS, DMHB 11,
DMHB 12, DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and
Policy G5 of the London Plan (2021).

4. RES7 Materials (Submission)

Save for demolition and site clearance works, no above ground works shall take place until
details of all materials and external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

5. RES6 Levels

Prior to any works on site above damp proof course level, details of step free access via all
points of entry and exit shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority. Such provision shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure housing of an inclusive design is achieved and maintained in accordance with
Policies D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 49 3 of 16



6. RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

7. NONSC Block Plan

Notwithstanding the landscape arrangements shown on drawing number 24-3551-1A. The
approved drawing is to be read as a block plan only. The landscaping works would be
subject to review post permission.

REASON:

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies DMHB5, DMHB 11,
DMHB 12, DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and
Policy G5 of the London Plan (2021). and to ensure the development delivers a Biodiversity
Net Gain within the borough and secures the protection and effective management of the
remaining habitat on site in accordance with Policy 15 of the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy G6 of The London Plan, and Policy DMEI 7 (Biodiversity Protection and
Enhancement) of Hillingdon Council's Local Plan Part 2 Development Management Policies.

8. NONSC Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDs)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that sustainable
drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the development in
accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy SI5 of the London Plan and
will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout
its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 50 4 of 16



through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

V. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development; and

vi. Provide details of how the dwelling will achieve a water efficiency standard of no more
than 110 litres per person per day maximum water consumption (to include a fixed factor of
water for outdoor use of 5 litres per person per day in accordance with the optional
requirement defined within Approved Document G of the Building Regulations).

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies S12
and 13 of the London Plan (2021).

9. NONSC Ecological Enhancement scheme

No development shall take place until a Biodiversity Net Gain scheme to deliver a 10%
increase in biodiversity value relative to the pre-development value of the onsite habitat has
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include
full details of the measures to enhance natural habitats; this must include a robust
landscaping strategy which considers biodiversity value as well as the inclusion of features
such as bird boxes across the site.

The approved details shall be implemented prior to development and maintained for the life
of the development.

REASON

In order to encourage a wide diversity of wildlife on the existing semi-natural habitat of the
site in accordance with Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policy
G5 of the London Plan (2021).

10. NONSC Habitat Management Plan

No development shall take place on any part of the site until a written 30-year Habitat
Management Plan (HMP) for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

The approved HMP shall be strictly adhered to, and development shall commence and
operate in accordance with it.

The HMP should, as a minimum, include:

a) Description and evaluation of the features to be managed.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 51 5 of 16



b) Aims, objectives and targets for management.

c) Description of the management operations necessary to achieving aims and objectives.
d) Prescriptions for management actions.

e) Preparation of a works schedule, including an annual works schedule.

f) Details of the monitoring needed to measure the effectiveness of management.

g) Details of the timetable for each element of the monitoring programme and;

h) Details of the persons responsible for the implementation and monitoring.

i) Report to the Council routinely regarding the state of the Biodiversity Net Gain
requirements for development in years 1 (post-completion), 3, 5, 10, 20, and 30, with
biodiversity reconciliation calculations at each stage.

REASON

To ensure the development delivers a Biodiversity Net Gain within the borough and secures
the protection and effective management of the remaining habitat on site in accordance with
Policy 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy G6 of The London Plan, and
Policy DMEI 7 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of Hillingdon Council's Local Plan
Part 2 Development Management Policies.

11. NONSC Structural Survey

Prior to commencement, details of the proposed works to the embankment, including any
excavation, shall be confirmed in writing to the Local Planning Authority. This shall include a
conditions survey of the adjoining footway on Beacon Close, details of how the integrity of
this foot way will be maintained, and a commitment to the repair of any damage to this
footway as a result of adjacent works during the construction and operation of the
development.

REASON

To ensure that the development does not compromise the structural integrity of the
embankment adjoining Beacon Close and does not in turn compromise the safety of
pedestrians or highway users, in accordance with Policies DMT 2 and DMT 5 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020).

12. NONSC Fire Strategy

Prior to development a detailed fire safety strategy compiled by a suitably qualified assessor
shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure the proposed development complies with fire safety regulations and Policy D12 of
the London Plan (2021).

13. RES23 \Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions and

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 52 6 of 16



shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility which shall not exceed a height of
0.6m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with Policy DMT 2 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

14. RES14  Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) subject of this permission shall be erected without the
grant of further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers in
accordance with policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)

156. NONSC Construction Logistics Plan

Prior to development commencing, a demolition and construction management plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115 for
maximum permitted working hours).

(iiiMeasures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including
wheel washing facilities).

(iv) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust through
minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vi) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

16. NONSC M4(2) Compliance

The dwellings hereby approved shall accord with the requirements of Policy D7 of the
London Plan and shall not be occupied until certification of compliance with the technical

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 53 7 of 16



specifications for an M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building
Regulations (2010) 2015, has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. All such provisions must remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON

To not only allow the Building Control body to require the development to comply with the
optional Building Regulations standards, but to also ensure the appropriate quantity and
standard of accessible and adaptable housing is constructed and maintained in accordance
with Policy D7 of the London Plan.

Informatives

1.

The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is
that planning permission granted for the development of land in England is deemed to have
been granted subject to the condition "(the biodiversity gain condition") that development
may not begin unless:

(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and

(b) the planning authority has approved the plan.

The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a Biodiversity
Gain Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would be the London Borough of
Hillingdon.

There are statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that the
biodiversity gain condition does not always apply. These are listed below.

Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will require
the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because none of the
statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements listed below are considered to apply.

Statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements in respect of the biodiversity gain
condition.

1. The application for planning permission was made before 12 February 2024.

2. The planning permission relates to development to which section 73A of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (planning permission for development already carried out)
applies.

3. The planning permission was granted on an application made under section 73 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and

(i) the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning permission relates* was
granted before 12 February 2024; or

(i) the application for the original planning permission* to which the section 73 planning
permission relates was made before 12 February 2024.

4. The permission which has been granted is for development which is exempt being:

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 54 8 of 16



4.1 Development which is not 'major development' (within the meaning of article 2(1) of the
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015)
where:

i) the application for planning permission was made before 2 April 2024;

ii) planning permission is granted which has effect before 2 April 2024; or

iii) planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 where the original permission to which the section 73 permission
relates® was exempt by virtue of (i) or (ii).

4.2 Development below the de minimis threshold, meaning development which:

i) does not impact an onsite priority habitat (a habitat specified in a list published under
section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006); and

ii) impacts less than 25 square metres of onsite habitat that has biodiversity value greater
than zero and less than 5 metres in length of onsite linear habitat (as defined in the statutory
metric).

4.3 Development which is subject of a householder application within the meaning of article
2(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015. A "householder application" means an application for planning permission for
development for an existing dwellinghouse, or development within the curtilage of such a
dwellinghouse for any purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse which is not
an application for change of use or an application to change the number of dwellings in a
building.

4.4 Development of a biodiversity gain site, meaning development which is undertaken solely
or mainly for the purpose of fulfilling, in whole or in part, the Biodiversity Gain Planning
condition which applies in relation to another development, (no account is to be taken of any
facility for the public to access or to use the site for educational or recreational purposes, if
that access or use is permitted without the payment of a fee).

4.5 Self and Custom Build Development, meaning development which:

i) consists of no more than 9 dwellings;

ii) is carried out on a site which has an area no larger than 0.5 hectares; and

iii) consists exclusively of dwellings which are self-build or custom housebuilding (as defined
in section 1(A1) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015).

4.5 Development forming part of, or ancillary to, the high speed railway transport network
(High Speed 2) comprising connections between all or any of the places or parts of the
transport network specified in section 1(2) of the High Speed Rail (Preparation) Act 2013.

* "original planning permission means the permission to which the section 73 planning
permission relates" means a planning permission which is the first in a sequence of two or
more planning permissions, where the second and any subsequent planning permissions are
section 73 planning permissions.

Irreplaceable habitat

If the onsite habitat includes irreplaceable habitat (within the meaning of the Biodiversity
Gain Requirements (Irreplaceable Habitat) Regulations 2024) there are additional
requirements for the content and approval of Biodiversity Gain Plans.

The Biodiversity Gain Plan must include, in addition to information about steps taken or to be

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 55 9 of 16



taken to minimise any adverse effect of the development on the habitat, information on
arrangements for compensation for any impact the development has on the biodiversity of
the irreplaceable habitat.

The planning authority can only approve a Biodiversity Gain Plan if satisfied that the adverse
effect of the development on the biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat is minimised and
appropriate arrangements have been made for the purpose of compensating for any impact
which do not include the use of biodiversity credits.

The effect of section 73D of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

If planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (application to develop land without compliance with conditions
previously attached) and a Biodiversity Gain Plan was approved in relation to the previous
planning permission ("the earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan") there are circumstances when the
earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan is regarded as approved for the purpose of discharging the
biodiversity gain condition subject to which the section 73 planning permission is granted.

Those circumstances are that the conditions subject to which the section 73 permission is
granted:

i) do not affect the post-development value of the onsite habitat as specified in the earlier
Biodiversity Gain Plan, and

ii) in the case of planning permission for a development where all or any part of the onsite
habitat is irreplaceable habitat the conditions do not change the effect of the development on
the biodiversity of that onsite habitat (including any arrangements made to compensate for
any such effect) as specified in the earlier Biodiversity Gain Plan.

2.

The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of alterations to a vehicular
access. Prior to undertaking work on the adopted highway you will require a Section 184
licence from the Highway Authority. The works shall be to the specification and constructed
to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority. Fees are payable for the approval of the highway
details, and inspection of the works. Further information and an application form are
available on the London Borough of Hillingdon website
https://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/dropped-kerb-form

3. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

4, |15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 56 10 of 16



Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61
of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other
than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises.

5. 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads.
The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

6. 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure Levy

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 57 11 of 16



Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London Borough of
Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of
Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule
2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must notify the London
Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction works (by submitting a
Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by submitting an Assumption of
Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk. The Council will then issue a
Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL that is payable. Failure to submit
a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and Commencement Notice prior to commencement of
the development may result in surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan and national guidance.

DMCI 7 Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMH 6 Garden and Backland Development

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space
DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts
DMT 2 Highways Impacts

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 58 12 of 16



DMT 5
DMT 6
LPP D3
LPP D4
LPP D5
LPP D6
LPP D7
LPP GG2
LPP GG4
LPP H1
LPP H2
LPP SI12
LPP SI13
LPP T5
LPP T6
LPP T6.1
NPPF- 5
NPPF11 -23
NPPF12 -23
NPPF2 -23
NPPF4 -23
NPPF9 -23

Pedestrians and Cyclists
Vehicle Parking

(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach

(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards

(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Making the best use of land

(2021) Delivering the homes Londoners needs

(2021) Increasing housing supply

(2021) Small sites

(2021) Flood risk management

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

(2021) Residential parking

NPPF-5 2018 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 23 - Decision making

NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 59

13 of 16



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

17969/APP/2022/3338 19 Beacon Close Uxbridge

Erection of four terraced dwellings incorporating landscaping, parking provision, waste and
cycle stores

Decision: 25-01-2023 Refused

17969/APP/2023/1014 19 Beacon Close Uxbridge

Erection of four terraced dwellings incorporating landscaping, parking provision, waste and
cycle stores following demolition of existing dwelling.

Decision; 15-02-2024 Refused

17969/PRC/2022/75 19 Beacon Close Uxbridge
Redevelopment of site to incorporate 4 dwellinghouses
Decision: 05-10-2022 Objection

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 60 14 of 16



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

PT1.H1

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 7
DMEI 10
DMEI 2
DMEI 7
DMEI 9
DMH 2
DMH 6
DMHB 11
DMHB 12
DMHB 14
DMHB 16
DMHB 17
DMHB 18
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 5

DMT 6

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Housing Growth

Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
Reducing Carbon Emissions

Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
Management of Flood Risk

Housing Mix

Garden and Backland Development
Design of New Development

Streets and Public Realm

Trees and Landscaping

Housing Standards

Residential Density

Private Outdoor Amenity Space

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 61

15 of 16



LPP D3

LPP D4

LPP D5

LPP D6

LPP D7

LPP GG2

LPP GG4

LPP H1

LPP H2

LPP SI12

LPP SI13

LPP T5

LPP T6

LPP T6.1

NPPF11 -23

NPPF12 -23

NPPF2 -23

NPPF- 5

NPPF4 -23

NPPF9 -23

(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach

(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards

(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Making the best use of land

(2021) Delivering the homes Londoners needs

(2021) Increasing housing supply

(2021) Small sites

(2021) Flood risk management

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

(2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF-5 2018 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF4 23 - Decision making

NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS  Page 62

16 of 16



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report — Application Report

Case Officer: Emilie Bateman 24825/APP/2023/81
Date Application | 10-01-23 Statutory / Agreed | 04-10-24
Valid: Determination

Deadline:
Application Full Ward: Ickenham &
Type: South Harefield
Applicant: Mr L Chira
Site Address: 39 Parkfield Road, Ickenham
Proposal: Erection of a replacement dwelling
Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to

Recommendation:

Reason Reported
to Committee:

LONDON

conditions

Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (Petition received)

www.hillingdon.gov.uk




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Section 2 of the following committee report.

Deferred at Planning Committee on 13t March 2024

This application was deferred at the Planning Committee on 13t March 2024 for
members to visit the site and for an independent review of the submitted sunlight
and daylight report.

Member Site Visit

A member site visit was carried out on 27™ April 2023. This included viewing other
properties within the street from the footpath, to gain an appreciation of the
character and visual amenity of the street scene.

The key matters looked at on the site visit were:
e The relationship between the proposal and adjacent properties and the
impact on neighbouring amenity.
¢ Impact on the character and appearance of the street scene.

Sunlight & Daylight Report Review

The applicant submitted a report titled ‘Analysis of Site Layout for Daylight and
Sunlight’ (dated February 2024) by Stinton Jones Consulting Engineers, in support
of the application. This report concluded that the impact of the proposal would
comply with BRE (Building Research Establishment) recommendations and was
considered in planning officers’ recommendation.

Following the deferral at Planning Committee, this report has been independently
reviewed by LSH (Lambert Smith Hampton). LSH have confirmed that the tested
windows meet the target values for daylight and pass sunlight testing. LSH have
also confirmed that they are satisfied with the methodology undertaken and the
report conclusions.

Consequently, the committee report remains unchanged in its recommendation.
For transparency the committee report is attached in its original form considered
by members on 13" March 2024.

Consultation Update
Since the deferral of this application, a new petition has been received with 20

valid signatures. The outcome sought by the petition is refusal or reduction in scale
and height with conditions.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 2"4 October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 64



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: 39 PARKFIELD ROAD ICKENHAM
Development: Erection of a replacement dwelling.
LBH Ref Nos: 24825/APP/2023/81

Drawing Nos: 39PR/P100 Rev. B

39PR/P200 Rev. E

39PR/P300 Rev. B

39PR/P400 Rev. A

Arboricultural Survey to BS5837:2012 , Dated 2nd June 2023
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (reference wArbtech AIA 01)
Arboricultural Method Statement to BS5837:2012 dated 3rd July 2023
Tree Protection Plan (Reference 39PR/P200 Rev. B)

Date Plans received: 10-01-2023 Date(s) of Amendments(s):

Date Application valid  10-01-2023

1. SUMMARY

The application proposes the erection of a replacement dwelling. This application is being presented
at the Borough Planning Committee because a valid petition has been received (refer to Section 6 for
further details).

Following negotiations, revised drawings were submitted showing a reduction to the scale and
massing of the proposed crown roof profile. Also, the physical siting of the proposed dwelling has
been set-back to align with the front building line of the neighbouring property of No. 37 Parkfield
Road. Based on these revised drawings, it is considered that the siting, size, scale, bulk, massing and
design of the proposed replacement dwelling would not cause harm to the character and appearance
of the area. In reaching this position, significant weight has been afforded to the replacement dwelling
at No.29 Parkfield Road which is of a similar size to the current proposal, and

was allowed at Appeal in 2021 by the Secretary of State (Appeal Decision reference
APP/R5510/W/21/3278249). Also, the recently constructed replacement dwellings at Nos. 55, 54 and
54a Parkfield Road has also been taken into account as a material consideration.

The representations received from neighbouring residents have been duly noted. However, given the
separation distances involved, Daylight and Sunlight Assessment and noting the siting and
dimensions of the proposed replacement dwelling, it is considered that the development would not
adversely impact on the residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers. In the event of an approval,
a condition would be secured requiring the first floor floor side window and rear window serving a
bathroom and en-suite to be obscure glazed and non-opening up to 1.8 metres of the finished floor
level.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 65



Upon Officer's request, an Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Method Statement and Tree Protection
Plan was submitted by the applicant. Subject to a condition requiring the construction works to be
carried out with the mitigation measures detailed in the report, it is considered that the proposal would
not cause harm to health of the trees at the site (which includes a protected Oak tree). The Council's
Highways Department is satisfied that the proposal would not present a risk to road safety, hinder the
free flow of traffic, or lead to parking stress. It is therefore recommended that planning permission is
granted, subject to the imposition of relevant planning conditions.

2. RECOMMENDATION

APPROVAL subject to the following:

1. RES3  Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date
of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2. RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance with the
details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 39PR/P100 Rev. B (dated 24.11.23), 39PR/P200
Rev. E (dated 29.02.24), 39PR/P300 Rev. B (25.03.23) and 39PR/P400 Rev. A (dated 25.05.23) and
shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012),
Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. RES7 Materials (Submission)

Prior to the commencement of any work above damp proof course level of the development hereby
approved, details of all materials and external surfaces, including details of the roof lights, doors,
windows, guttering and fascia, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with Policy DMHB
11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

4. COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been completed in
accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 66



Analysis of Site Layout for Daylight and Sunlight dated February 2024
Arboricultural Survey to BS5837:2012 , Dated 2nd June 2023
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (reference wArbtech AIA 01)
Arboricultural Method Statement to BS5837:2012 dated 3rd July 2023
Tree Protection Plan (Reference 39PR/P200 Rev. B)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details for as long
as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies . Specify Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 (2020)

5. OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved, a demolition and construction
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115 for
maximum permitted working hours).

(iii) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including wheel
washing facilities).

(iv) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking provisions
for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce the numbers of
construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust through
minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vi) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the demolition
and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6. NONSC Sustainable Water Management Strategy

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (excluding demolition, ground
works and substructure works), a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management and
water efficiency shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall:

i. Provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to delay and
control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent pollution of the
receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. Include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 67



The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water through
water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. Provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. Provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development;

vi. Provide details of how the dwelling will achieve a water efficiency standard of no more than 110
litres per person per day maximum water consumption (to include a fixed factor of water for outdoor
use of 5 litres per person per day in accordance with the optional requirement defined within
Approved Document G of the Building Regulations).

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with these
details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with Policies DMEI 9
and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies SI2 and Sl 13 of the London
Plan (2021).

7. NONSC Air Quality Neutral

Prior to any works on site above damp proof course level, details of the heating system installed for
the new dwellings shall be submitted for approval. The heating system details shall only be
comprised of any of the following

- A heat pump or other zero-emission heat source.
- One or more individual gas boilers with NOx emissions rated at less than 40 mg/kWh.
- The development is connected to an existing heat network.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the proposed details and maintained for the
lifetime of the development.

Reason: In the interests of improving air quality and ensuring an air quality neutral development in
accordance with Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020), Policy S| 1 of the London
Plan (2021) and London Plan Guidance: Air Quality Neutral (2023).

8. NONSC Tree Protection Measures

The construction works for the development hereby permitted shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the protection measures detailed in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment
(reference Arbtech AIA 01), Arboricultural Method Statement to BS5837:2012 dated 3rd July 2023
and Tree Protection Plan (Reference 39PR/P200 Rev. B).

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy DMHB 14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

9. RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be damaged,
uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. If
any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during (or after) construction, or

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 68



is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree, hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same
place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to
disease, then the planting should be in a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and shall be planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork
shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS
3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work - Recommendations' and BS
4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The
agreed work shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to the
amenity of the area in accordance with policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)
and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

10. RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Prior to the commencement of any works above damp proof course level of the development
approved, a landscape scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100) which include a net increase of high quality
pollution absorbing trees

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage (including its location, dimensions, finish and design)

2.b Covered Cycle Storage (including its location, dimensions, finish and design)

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (including one active and three passive electric charging points)
2.e Permeable Hard Surfacing Materials

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously
damaged or diseased.

3.c Ecological and biodiversity enhancement plan

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the approved
details.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 69



REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the
locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12, DMHB 14,
DMT 5, DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies G5 and T5 of the London
Plan (2021).

11. NONSC Step free access

Prior to any works on site above damp proof course level, details of step free access via all points of
entry and exit shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Such
provision shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure housing of an inclusive design is achieved and maintained in accordance with Policies D5
and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

12. NONSC Category M4(2)

The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until certification of compliance with the
technical specifications for an M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building
Regulations (2010) 2015, has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority. All such provisions must remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON

To not only allow the Building Control body to require the development to comply with the optional
Building Regulations standards, but to also ensure the appropriate quantity and standard of
accessible and adaptable housing is constructed and maintained in accordance with policy D7 of the
London Plan.

13. RES13 Obscure Glazing

The first floor windows serving the rooms labelled as 'bathroom' and 'en-suite' on drawing number
39PR/P100 Rev. B (dated 30.05.23) shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass to at least
scale 4 on the Pilkington scale and be non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal
finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policies DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

14. RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England)Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed in the walls or roof
slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

15. RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 70



Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof alteration to any
dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers in
accordance with policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020)

INFORMATIVES

1. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should ensure that the
following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be carried out
between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British Standard
Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best Practice
Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit (www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise
Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you
anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours set out
in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

2. 47 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs, including
damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage occurs to the
verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not
override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the
satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central Depot -
Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895
277524).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 71



For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a private road and where
possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads. The applicant may be required to
make good any damage caused.

3. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The Human Rights Act
(1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention
rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

4. 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National Planning
Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have made available
detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from Local Plan Part 1, Local Plan Part 2,
Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as
offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the applicant has been given
every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably.

5. 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London Borough of Hillingdon
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
This will be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule
2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the
development parties must notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the
construction works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by
submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk. The
Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL that is payable.
Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and Commencement Notice prior to
commencement of the development may result in surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability perspective as a
scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement conditions have been
discharged/complied with.

6. ITO5 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb roosting bats,
nesting birds or any other protected species. Therefore, if applicable, it is advisable to consult your
tree surgeon / consultant to agree an acceptable time for carrying out the approved works.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 72



153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies and
proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including The London
Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016)
and national guidance.

DMAV 3 RAF Northolt

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 7 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1 Managing Transport Impacts

DMT 2 Highways Impacts

DMT 5 Pedestrians and Cyclists

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D5 (2021) Inclusive design

LPP D6 (2021) Housing quality and standards

LPP D7 (2021) Accessible housing

LPP G6 (2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP G7 (2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPP T6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land
NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places
NPPF14 NPPF 2021 - Meeting the challenge of climate change flooding
NPPF2 NPPF 2021 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 NPPF 2021 - Decision-Making

NPPF5 NPPF 2021 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF9 NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 73



3. CONSIDERATIONS
3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south-western side of Parkfield Road. It comprises a two and
half storey detached property that is characterised by its hipped roof profile and cream render
external finish. The property benefits from a garage which is attached to the host property by a front
canopy. The property is set back from the highway by an area of hard standing which serves as on-
site car parking provision. Access to the on-site car parking spaces is via the two existing crossovers
emerging onto Parkfield Road.

The surrounding area is residential in nature and is defined by single and two storey detached and
semi-detached houses of various architectural style. Over recent years, two and half storey
replacement dwellings have been built on Parkfield Road, which now forms part of the emerging
character of the street scene. No. 37 Parkfield Road is located to the south of the site, and comprises
a detached bungalow that is sited broadly in alignment with the front building line of the existing
property at the application site. No. 41 Parkfield Road is located to the north of the site, and also
comprises a detached bungalow. However, this neighbouring bungalow is set-behind the front
building line of the existing property at the application site.

The application site is not designated within a Conservation Area or an Area of Special Local
Character. The site does not contain any Listed Buildings. The site is covered by Tree Preservation
Order 514. The site lies in Flood Zone 1 and has a PTAL rating of 1a (very poor).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application proposes the erection of a replacement dwelling. It should be noted that revised
drawings were submitted during the course of this application showing the following key changes:

- Siting the main front building line of proposed dwelling in alignment with No.37 Parkfield Road.

- Reducing the scale and massing of the crown roof profile.

- Submission of an Arboricultural Survey report, and subsequent Arboricultural Impact Assessment,
Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan.

* Submission of a Daylight Sunlight report

In accordance with Hillingdon Council Statement of Community Involvement, neighbouring residents
were re-consulted on the revised drawings and were provided an additional 14-days to submit any
additional comments they wished to make. Refer to Section 6 of this Committee Report for further
details about the consultation.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

24825/78/0335 39 Parkfield Road Ickenham
Single storey extension for lobby and new wall.
Decision: 12-05-1978 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 74



24825/TRE/2006/140 39 Parkfield Road Ickenham

TO CARRY OUT TREE SURGERY (TO REDUCE BY 4M TWO OVERLONG LIMBS FACING
RECTORY WAY AND TO REDUCE BY 3M ONE OVERLONG LIMB, AND THIN BY 15% LOW
GROWTH UP TO A HEIGHT OF 9M) TO ONE OAK (T4) ON TPO NO. 514

Decision: 14-02-2007 Approved

24825/TRE/2021/146 39 Parkfield Road Ickenham

To carry out tree surgery, including a reduction of the longest limbs by up to 4m on the south side of
the crown, to One Oak, T4 on TPO 514

Decision: 12-08-2021 Approved

24825/TRE/2021/62 39 Parkfield Road Ickenham

To carry out tree surgery, including a reduction of the crown radius by approx. 6 metres, reshape
including height reduction in proportion, thin central growth by removal of epicormic shoots, lift to
height of lowest main limbs by removal of pendulous growth to one oak, T4 on TPO 514

Decision: 17-05-2021 Split Decision (P)

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The relevant planning history attached to this site is referenced above.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Development Plan:

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with
the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan for
the London Borough of Hillingdon currently consists of the following documents:

The Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)

The Local Plan: Part 2 - Site Allocations and Designations (2020)

The West London Waste Plan (2015)

The London Plan (2021)

Material Considerations:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) is also a material consideration in planning
decisions, as well as relevant supplementary planning documents and guidance.

Local Plan Designation and London Plan

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 75



Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

DMEI 7  Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement
DMEI9 Management of Flood Risk

DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
DMAYV 3 RAF Northolt

DMH 1 Safeguarding Existing Housing

DMH 2  Housing Mix

DMHB 11 Design of New Development

DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 16 Housing Standards

DMHB 17 Residential Density

DMHB 18 Private Outdoor Amenity Space

DMT 1

DMT 2

DMT 5

DMT 6

LPP D3

LPP D5

LPP D6

LPP D7

LPP G6

LPP G7

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards

(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2021) Trees and woodlands

LPP SI12 (2021) Flood risk management

LPP SI13 (2021) Sustainable drainage

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 76



LPP T5 (2021) Cycling

LPPT6 (2021) Car parking

LPP T6.1 (2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 NPPF 2021 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 NPPF 2021 - Achieving well-designed places

NPPF14 NPPF 2021 - Meeting the challenge of climate change flooding
NPPF2  NPPF 2021 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF4  NPPF 2021 - Decision-Making

NPPF5  NPPF 2021 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

NPPF9  NPPF 2021 - Promoting sustainable transport

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date: Not Applicable
6.2  Site Notice Expiry Date: Not applicable

6. Consultations

External Consultees
18 neighbouring properties were originally consulted by letters dated 13th January 2023.

Six objections were received (including from the lead petitioner), and their comments are summarised as
follows:

-This is a characterful, sound and well kept family dwelling which is not in need of demolition.

-The current house is perfectly habitable and does not require demolishing. It is a house full of character
and charm.

- Sitting between two bungalows, the proposed rebuild would dwarf both properties, not only affect their
light, undoubtedly cause distress to the residents and also look out of place.

- This proposal is simply exploitation of the local amenity to the detriment of all the residents.

- The proposal is totally out of keeping with the surrounding properties, overbearing and excessively
disproportionate.

- Its size and height will permit intrusive viewing into bedrooms, living rooms and gardens of adjacent
bungalows and those across the street.

- Issues with loss of light for neighbouring residential occupiers.

- This particular proposal will rob all the bungalows opposite of any late afternoon sunshine making any
future solar panel installations useless let alone casting a cold winter shadow into their rooms.

- The size and number of bedrooms would appear to indicate that this is intended to become a HMO in

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 77



which case parking would obviously be an issue.

- Concerns on whether adequate on-site car parking provision is being provided.

- The Planning Application states there are no trees and hedges on the site and no important habitats. This
is incorrect as there is a large oak tree at the bottom of the garden which backs onto Rectory Way.

- There is an oak tree in the garden which will be subject to a TPO (as may be the case for several smaller
trees - ash and plum) and must not be damaged.

-Bats are seen flying in the neighbourhood so a survey needs to be done to ascertain if they are nesting in
the property.

- Parkfield Road is currently being plagued by unnecessary demolition of perfectly good properties to be
replaced by high rise characterless buildings.

- Too many of the recent development on Parkfield Road are impacting on the individual character of the
original houses.

- There is ample room for the current property to be extended if this is required.

- The construction is not a residential construction, but a commercial one.

- A three storey building which includes a guest suite, 4 double bedrooms including en-suite plus 3
habitable rooms in the loft with Velux windows built amongst bungalows is any of the following:- a boarding
house, guest house, hotel or flats.

- In the event of planning permission being granted, the builders must adhere to the working hours as
stated on the council website.

- Any damage to the adjoining fences or properties must be made good.

- Could the development dates be confirmed? They are stated to be April 2022 to August 2022.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT:

It should be clarified that this planning application is for a family sized dwelling. The proposal is not for a
House in Multiple Occupation (HMO), boarding house, guest house, hotel or flats, nor does it constitute as
a 'commercial construction'. Planning permission is not required to demolish the existing property at the
site because the application site is not located within a Conservation Area.

It is noted that the proposed replacement dwelling would be sited between two bungalows. However, the
scale of the proposed dwelling at two and half storeys (with accommodation within the roof space) would
be in-keeping with the scale of the more recent replacement dwellings that have been constructed on
Parkfield Road. Please refer to Sections 7.07 of the Committee Report for the assessment of the
proposal's impact on the character and appearance of the area.

Due consideration has been given to the concerns raised about the impact the proposal would have on the
residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers. However, for the reasons discussed in Section 7.08 of the
Committee Report, it is considered that the proposal would not adversely impact on the living conditions of
neighbouring occupiers, in respect light, outlook or sense of enclosure. In the event of an approval, a
condition would be secured requiring the first floor side window (serving a bathroom) and the rear en-suite
window to be obscure glazed and non-opening up to 1.8 metres of the finished floor level.

The Council's Highways Officer was consulted on this application and has raised no objection to the
proposal, in respect to parking or highway safety (see previous section of this report for Highways Officer
comments). The proposal would provide up to four car parking spaces, which exceeds the Council's
maximum standard of two car parking spaces for new houses. Refer to Section 7.10 of the Committee
Report for the assessment on access, parking and highway safety. In the event of an approval, a
Construction Management Plan would be secured by condition, which would require details of construction
hours to be submitted to the Council for consideration.

It is acknowledged that the application site contains a protected Oak tree. Upon Officer's request, an
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan was submitted by the

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 78



applicant. The report has been reviewed by the Council's Trees Officer who has raised no objection,
subject to the construction works being carried out in accordance with the submitted details. No evidence
has been provided to substantiate the claim that the site forms part of bats' commuting routes.
Furthermore, Circular 06/05: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation- Statutory Obligations and their
Impact within the Planning System' makes clear that, ".. developers should not be required to undertake
surveys for protected species unless there is a reasonable likelihood of the species being present and
affected by the development." Refer to Section 7.14 of the Committee Report for further

details in respect to ecology impacts.

If planning permission was to be granted, a condition would be secured requiring the works for the
approved development to commence within three years of the date of the decision notice. The concerns
raised about the potential damage to third party buildings or fences is not a planning consideration.

Two representations were received which raised no objection, in principle, to the proposal, but raised the
following concerns:

- The rear elevation shows two skylights in the loft space. There is no objection to the roof lights, but this
was similar to the application at No. 43 Parkfield Road which was granted and almost immediately turned
into a large dormer window.

- Perhaps a 25 year moratorium on altering/improving light access to the loft area over and above the
skylights to the rear elevation would be appropriate saving my property being potentially overlooked.

- The plans show roof lights facing the front and rear of the proposed development. There would be an
objection to this arrangement, if this is in anticipation of further development to the roof space, due to
concerns of overlooking.

- The site contains a large Oak tree which is covered by TPO 514. This Oak is on the rear boundary line of
the property and with the size far reaching root system, any disturbance could endanger it's stability.

- Concerns that the foundations would interfere with the established root system of the tree certainly under
the canopy of the Oak.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT: The submitted drawings show that the rear elevation of the proposed
replacement dwelling would contain roof lights and not dormers. In the event of an approval, a condition
would be secured removing permitted development rights which means that planning permission will be
required should the applicant wish to erect any roof extensions or dormers in the future.

The submitted plans show habitable rooms within the attic space. However, there would be a separation
distance in excess of 21 metres between the proposed front and rear roof lights and the neighbouring
properties at Nos. 33 and 38 Parkfield Road and Nos. 42 to 46 Rectory Way. This would be in accordance
with the guidelines stipulated in paragraph 5.38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020). It is therefore considered that the proposal would not give rise to a loss of
privacy or overlooking issues for these respective neighbouring properties.

As previously stated, Arboricultural reports have been submitted by the applicant, and the assessment on
the protected tree at the site is covered in Section 7.14 of this Committee Report.

Four representations in support of the application were received, and their comments are summarised as
follows:

- Nice modern design, it goes very well with the other new and replacement houses which are being built
on Parkfield Road

- A number of developments have already taken place on the road, which have improved the stature and
quality of housing

-The development provides a modern and positive contribution to the road. The changes to add rear
dormers is in line with other properties along the road.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 79



- It is in-keeping with other recent new building developments on the road.

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT: For clarity, the proposed replacement dwelling does not include any
rear dormers in its roof face, instead roof lights are being proposed.

Following the receipt of revised drawings, neighbouring properties were re-consulted on 6th June and 5th
July. The consultation period expired on 27th July 2023. Six additional representations were received, and
their comments are summarised as follows:

‘Why is there a need to demolish and build a new dwelling?

- The road currently comprises predominately of bungalows; however, there is now a precedent of
demolishing these bungalows and replacing them with larger 2/3 storey dwellings.

- The new plans show the garage is being replaced by a 2 story building which will have a detrimental
affect on the light entering my property.

- Loss of outlook and light for neighbouring occupiers

- Has a bat survey been carried out? Bats have been seen flying in the vicinity of the dwelling.

- It is noted that the proposal is now for 6 bedrooms with the loft area now designated 5th bedroom with 4
on 1st floor and the en suite guest suite on ground floor.

- The "new" 5th bedroom on second floor still has 2 skylight type windows on the plan, but no windows
on the rear elevation. If that is a clever ploy to say "oops" we meant to put dormer windows in - then |
object in full on basis of being overlooked.

- The proposed amended drawing dated 23.05.2023 the top left view shows no roof lights to the rear, the
block plan in the bottom right still shows 2 roof lights facing rear.

- Concerns about trees being removed

- | trust that the tree survey report including the Oak, confirms my concerns regarding the root structure
and the need not to allow any building in this area.

- This building proposal is how a six bedroomed house not 5 as stated.

- Pleased to seek a detailed Arboricultural Method Statement and that tree protection for the oak will be in
place and monitored throughout the works

PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT: Refer to the previous responses noted above in respect to the points
raised about the demolition of the existing building, impact on neighbouring residential amenities, impact
on the protected Oak tree and ecology. It is noted that the proposed replacement dwelling would contain
six-bedroom plus occupancy. For the avoidance of doubt, the latest drawing (no. 39PR/P200 Rev. D,
received on 09.10.23) show roof lights on the rear elevation of the property.

Following the receipt of a Daylight and Sunlight Assessment, neighbouring properties were re-consulted on
6th February 2024. The consultation period expired on 21st February 2024. Three additional
representations were received, and their comments are summarised as follows:

- 41 Parkfield Window 1 in Figure 3 is a bedroom not a bathroom as stated in the report, therefore needs to
be considered with regards to light (reference to Daylight and Sunlight Assessment)

- Concerns regarding accuracy of Daylight and Sunlight Assessment as two windows were not assessed
for No.41

- The B.R.E. states that derived results are guidelines and not mandatory

- W2 does open into the hallway, but the loss of light into the main entrance of the property will make the
long and thin passage very dark and gloomy and should be considered due to the loss of amenity.

- Concerns regarding recently built property at No.29 Parkfield Road and similarities

- Over dominant

- Out of character

- Overlooking

- Overshadowing

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 80



PLANNING OFFICER COMMENT: Refer to the previous responses noted above and main report in
respect to the points raised. In regards to the Daylight and Sunlight Assessment, it is noted that the
assessment was revised to include the obscured glazed side window in the calculations. W3 serves the
hall area therefore there is no expectation of daylight, and there is no need to analyse as stated in the BRE
guidelines.

ICKENHAM RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION: No comments received.
PETITION:

A petition against the application with 21 signatories was received by the Council. The desired outcome
stated on the petition is as follows: "Planning application 24825-APP-2023-81, 39 Parkfield Road,
Demolition of original building- Erection of 3 storey 5 bedroom house. Rejection or Conditions."

DEFENCE INFRASTRUCTURE ORGANISATION - MOD SAFEGUARDING- RAF NORTHOLT:

The Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) Safeguarding Team represents the Ministry of Defence
(MOD) as a consultee in UK planning and energy consenting systems to ensure that development does not
compromise or degrade the operation of defence sites such as aerodromes, explosives storage sites, air
weapon ranges, and technical sites or training resources such as the Military Low Flying System. The
application is a proposal for the construction of a three-storey five bedroom dwelling (with maximum height
not exceeding 8.3m) to replace the existing two-storey three bedroom dwelling.

The application site occupies the statutory safeguarding zones surrounding RAF Northolt - in particular, the
aerodrome height, technical and birdstrike safeguarding zones surrounding the aerodrome - and it is
approximately 2.62km from the centre of the airfield.

After reviewing the application documents, | can confirm the MOD has no safeguarding objections to this
proposal.

The MOD must emphasise that the advice provided within this letter is in response to the data and
information detailed in the developer's documents titled "Application Form" and "Plans and Elevations"
dated January 2023 and May 2023 respectively. Any variation of the parameters (which include the
location, dimensions, form, and finishing materials) detailed may significantly alter how the development
relates to MOD safeguarding requirements and cause adverse impacts to safeguarded defence assets or
capabilities. In the event that any amendment, whether considered material or not by the determining
authority, is submitted for approval, the MOD should be consulted and provided with adequate time to carry
out assessments and provide a formal response.

PLANNING OFFICER RESPONSE: It should be clarified that since the consultation response from the
MOD revised drawings have been submitted showing a six-bedroom plus replacement dwelling, rather
than the five-bedrooms originally proposed. However, given that the revised drawings did not result in an
increase to the size or height of the proposed dwelling, it was not deemed necessary to re-consult the
MOD.

Internal Consultees
COUNCIL'S ACCESS OFFICER:

This proposal for a new 5-bedroom residential dwelling has been reviewed with reference to London Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 81



policy D7 with no accessibility concerns raised subject to the following conditions attached to any approval:
Prior to any works on site above damp proof course level, details of step free access via all points of entry
and exit shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Such provision
shall remain in place for the life of the building.

Reason: To ensure housing of an inclusive design is achieved and maintained in accordance with Policies
D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

The dwelling hereby approved shall accord with the requirements of Policy D7 of the London Plan and
shall not be occupied until certification of compliance with the technical specifications for an M4(2)
dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015, has been submitted
to, and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. All such provisions must remain in place for
the life of the building.

Reason: To not only allow the Building Control body to require the development to comply with the optional
Building Regulations standards, but to also ensure the appropriate quantity and standard of accessible and
adaptable housing is constructed and maintained in accordance with policy D7 of the London Plan.

COUNCIL'S HIGHWAYS OFFICER:
Site Characteristics & Background:

The site is located within a residential catchment in Ickenham. The surrounding properties exhibit extensive
frontages with generous on-plot parking facilities and the area is covered by parking controls operating for
one hour of the day. The address is positioned some distance from convenient access to a local network of
bus routes and local shops which is reflected by a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) rating of 3
which is considered as 'moderate’ and as such heightens dependency on private car ownership and usage.

The site is occupied by a substantive detached property with a double garage and generous frontage area
which is to be demolished and replaced with a 4/5-bedroom detached single tenure dwelling. The
established dual carriageway crossings that serve the site envelope are to remain unaltered.

Parking Provision:

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policy - DMT 6 requires that new development will only be permitted where it
accords with the council's adopted parking standards unless it can be demonstrated that a deviation from
the standard would not result in a deleterious impact on the surrounding road network.

London Plan (2021): Policy T6.1 (Residential Parking) requires that new residential development should
not exceed the maximum parking standards as set out in table 10.3.

The maximum requirement for a 3 bedroom 'plus' dwelling is for up to 2 spaces to be provided on-site in
order to comply with the adopted parking standard whilst the regional standard demands a lesser
requirement of 1 space.

The submission indicates an on-plot parking space provision of a single garage and several additional
spaces on the frontage area. This meets and exceeds both of the parking standards which, in this specific
case, is considered acceptable as it reduces the potential for untoward on-street parking displacement onto
the local roadways resulting from the higher dependency on the private motor car due to the moderate
PTAL rating.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 82



In terms of cycle parking there should be a provision of 2 secure and accessible spaces for this scale of
rebuild in order to conform to the adopted borough cycle parking standard. This provision is likely to be
located within the new garage which would be an acceptable arrangement however this has not been
confirmed by the applicant - hence a suitable condition should be applied.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCP's):

In line with the London Plan (2021), within the final parking quantum there is a requirement for a minimum
20% 'active' EVCP provision with all remaining spaces being designated as 'passive' provisions. In this
case, 1 'active' and 1 'passive' space should be provided but again this has not been confirmed by the
applicant thereby prompting a relevant condition to be applied.

Vehicular Access Provision:

The existing carriageway crossings are to remain and are considered fit for purpose. There are no further
observations.

Operational Refuse Requirements:

Refuse collection will continue via 'Parkfield Road' as is the case at present. In order to conform to
accepted 'waste collection distances' from the public highway, the storage area should be positioned within
10m of a refuse vehicle. The applicant has not provided detail on this aspect hence a suitable condition
should be applied.

Construction Logistics Plan (CLP):

A full and detailed CLP is a requirement given the constraints and sensitivities of the local road network in
order to avoid/minimise potential detriment to the public realm. A further planning condition is therefore
required.

Conclusion:

The application has been reviewed by the Highway Authority who are satisfied that the proposal would not
discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any measurable highway safety
concerns, in accordance with Local Plan: Part 2 Development Plan (2020) Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 & DMT
6 and Policies T4 and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

7.  MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development

Policy DMH 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that the net loss of existing self-contained housing, including affordable housing, will be resisted
unless the housing is replaced with at least equivalent residential floorspace.

Policy DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) adds
that the Council will require the provision of a mix of housing units of different sizes in schemes of
residential development to reflect the Council's latest information on housing need. The current
information on housing need indicates a substantial borough-wide requirement for larger affordable

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 83



and private market units, particularly 3 bedroom properties, as identified in the Strategic Housing
Market Assessment 2016.

The principle of residential use has already been established by the existing dwelling at the site.
Whilst an existing family sized dwelling (defined in the London Plan (2021) as a three-bedroom or
more unit) would demolished, it would be replaced by a two and half storey, five-bedroom plus
dwelling. The proposal would therefore not result in a net loss of family sized housing, in accordance
with Policies DMH 1 and DMH 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020).

Notwithstanding the above, there are other planning considerations that need to be considered which
are discussed in the following sections of this Committee Report, including the proposal's impact to
the character and appearance of the area (including trees), neighbouring residential amenity, parking
and highway safety.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states that all development must make the best use of land by
following a design-led approach that optimises the capacity of sites. Policy DMHB 17 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states that all new residential
development should take account of the Residential Density Matrix contained in Table 5.2.

The proposal is for a single replacement dwelling. Numerical density levels are considered to be more
appropriate to larger sites and are not typically used in the assessment of schemes of less than 10
units. The key consideration is therefore whether the development would acceptably integrate with
the character and appearance of the locality, and would respect residential amenity considerations.
Refer to the other sections of this report which assess these planning considerations in further detail.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character
Not applicable.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

Policy DMAYV 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that the Council will ensure that uses such as housing, education and hospitals are not located
in areas significantly affected by aircraft noise without acceptable mitigation measures.

The application site is within 3km of the RAF Northolt Zone. However, as the site is within an
established residential area within this zone, it is considered that visibility and audibility of aircraft
operations associated with RAF Northolt would not be of significant harm to the living conditions of
future occupiers. It is therefore considered that it would be unreasonable to refuse the application on
the ground of harm to the residential amenity of the future occupiers, in respect to aircraft noise
associated with RAF Northolt.

It should be noted that the Ministry of Defence Safeguarding Department - RAF Northolt was
consulted, and no objection was raised by this Government Body.

7.05 Impact on the green belt
Not applicable.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area
Paragraph 131 of the NPPF (2023) seeks the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 84



buildings. Parts b) and c) of paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2023) states that planning policies and
decisions should ensure that developments are visually attractive as a result of good architecture and
are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment.

Policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals to be of high quality
and to enhance the local context be delivering buildings and spaces that positively respond to local
distinctiveness.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies (2012) seeks a quality of design
in all new development that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale and
materials; is appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape; and would improve the quality
of the public realm and respect local character.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that new development will be required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate
principles of good design.

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that development should be well integrated with the surrounding area.

Parkfield Road is characterised by single storey and two storey dwellings. Over recent years,
bungalows on Parkfield Road have been demolished and replaced by two storey dwellings. These
replacement dwellings forms part of the character of the area and should be taking into account as
material consideration.

It is worth noting that planning application 14459/APP/2021/1343 was for the demolition of a
bungalow in replacement of a two and half storey replacement dwelling at number 29 Parkfield Road.
Although this application was refused by the Council on the grounds of harm to the character and
appearance of the area, this decision was overturned by the Secretary of State by allowed Appeal
Decision APP/R5510/W/21/3278249 on 12th November 2021. The Inspector for this allowed Appeal
states the following in respect to the effect of the proposed development at No.29 Parkfield Road on
the character and appearance of the area.

"4. The appeal property lies approximately mid-way along a long, and largely straight, residential cul-
de-sac. There is general agreement between the main parties that Parkfield Road has no distinct or
consistent architectural style or facing materials, whilst the scale of buildings is equally varied. Both
parties refer to other planning application and appeal decisions for development along Parkfield Road
which support this consensus.

5. Thus, although predominantly bungalow-style housing prevails closer to the entrance into Parkfield
Road, the scale of housing subtly changes along its length. Thus, bungalows, some oriented with
their gable-ends facing the road with first floor windows within the peak and other modest bungalows
with hipped roofs, to two storey houses with upper-floor windows set wholly or partly within the
roofline to the occasional, larger two storey house.

6. The appeal property and its immediately neighbours are a case in point in this respect. Nos. 27 and
29 are both modest hipped-roof bungalows, set close to one or, as in the case of No. 29 both, side
plot boundaries. To one side of No. 27 lie a pair of chalet-bungalows with their two storey gable ends
facing towards the road and their higher ridge lines extended rearwards, giving a sense of built depth
to their plots. On the other side are three, larger and more dwellings.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 85



7. Of a recognisably larger scale and massing, the latter present one-and-a-half storey (half-) hipped
elevations towards the road, flanked by large expanses of pitched hipped roofs, within which a
dormer window to each is positioned. However, despite the notable variations there are also some
consistent characteristics displayed along the road's length. There is therefore a consistent building
line along both sides of the road. Whilst not generous, this nevertheless ensures that there is a
pleasant sense of spaciousness and openness about Parkfield Road.

8. The proposed replacement dwelling would be an altogether larger proposition than the existing
bungalow and the neighbouring example at No. 27. Moreover, unlike the neighbouring properties to
the north, the appeal proposal's full two-storey elevations would mark it out as of a different scale to
Nos. 31, 31A and 33.

9. However, it would otherwise reflect other consistent characteristics found along Parkfield Road. It
would respect and maintain the building line established by properties along the western side of the
road and also maintain the gaps between frontages on either side of the road. The dwelling, despite
its substantial overall height, would feature sloping roofs to both side-facing roof planes giving it a
hipped-roof appearance, whilst the projecting two-storey bays would also incorporate hipped roofs
over.

10. Whilst the transition from the vertical emphasis of the proposed two storey facade to the extensive
sloping roof of No. 31 would be somewhat abrupt, it would not be harmfully so in the context of the
projecting bays at the front of those neighbouring properties where such juxtaposition is not
uncommon. Nor would the transition in scale from No. 27 to No. 29 be unduly harsh, despite their
very different scale due to the flat-roofed single storey element at the side of the proposed dwelling.

In the context of the street, such single storey flat roofed buildings, or parts of buildings, are not
uncommon and this element of the proposed scheme would not appear any more or less so

than others.

11. As a corollary of the proposal's greater scale, the Council are also concerned about the dwelling's
greater depth; greater in comparison with the existing property and greater in comparison with those
around it. It may well be the case that the proposed dwelling would have a deeper footprint in both
cases, although such a claim is not entirely clear from the submitted site and block plans. In any
event, even if that were the case, | am not persuaded that it would be harmful to the character or
appearance of the area.

12. As described above, amongst the mix of buildings, there are those with clear and apparent depth,
such as the chalet-bungalows whose gable elevations face the road and ridges run away
perpendicular to the road. Approaching from the south, the view towards the appeal property is
reasonably open above No. 27 from where the depth of the appeal proposal would be noticeable, but
it would not be disruptive to the pattern of development along Parkfield Road. Nor would it be
particularly evident when viewed from the north where the greater scale and bulk of Nos. 31 - 33
would screen its depth.

13. The proposed dwelling is not a beautiful or innovative dwelling, but nor does it purport to be. The
front elevation would be well articulated and provide interest to the streetscene whilst incorporating
features and details found variously along the road. It would not, as the Council assert, appear squat
or bland, whilst final details of construction and fenestration materials could be satisfactorily dealt with
by way of an appropriately worded planning condition.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 86



14. Local Plan: Part 2 (LP2) policies DMHB11 and DMHB12 set out the Council's approach to
securing high quality design. As | have set out above, the proposal would take account of the scale,
architectural style and character of the surrounding area. As a consequence, | am satisfied that the
proposal would not harm the character or appearance of the area and there would be no conflict with
LP2 policies DMHB11 or DMHB12. Nor would there be with the design aims of policies D3, 4 or 6 of
the London Plan or the Framework.

15. In noting the various appeal decisions and other schemes referred to by both main parties, | am
conscious of the particular contexts within which those properties and sites lie. | accept that the
properties at Nos. 2 and 58 lie more towards the opposite ends of Parkfield Road and are therefore
not seen in quite the same mid-street context as the appeal site. Nevertheless, this does not diminish
their respective assessments of the generally varied nature of Parkfield Road. | am satisfied though
that, for the reasons | have set out above, the proposed dwelling would not be in conflict with the aims
and provisions of LP2 policies DMHB11 or DMHB12. Nor would there be with the design aims of
policies D3, 4 or 6 of the London Plan or the Framework."

Turning back to the current application, the proposed replacement dwelling at No.39 Parkfield Road
would measure 15 metres wide, 16 metres deep and 8.6 metres high. Its dimensions would not be
dissimilar to the scheme at No.29 Parkfield Road, which was allowed at Appeal and recently
constructed. Additionally, it was observed during the Officer site visit that large replacement dwellings
have been constructed at Nos. 54, 54a and 55 Parkfield Road. Given this context, and attaching
weight to the above Appeal Decision, it is considered that the size of the proposed replacement
dwelling at No.39 would not be out of character to the surrounding area. It is acknowledged that the
proposed replacement dwelling would be two and half storeys and would be sited in between two
bungalows at Nos. 37 and 41 Parkfield Road. However, it is worth highlighting that the existing
dwelling at the application site is two storeys and approximately 8m in height. The scale of the
proposed development would therefore not be substantially different to the existing dwelling at the
site, albeit the proposed replacement dwelling would be larger in size. Furthermore, the proposed
replacement dwelling would be set-in from the side boundaries shared with Nos. 37 and 31 by 1 and
1.5 metres, respectively. It is therefore considered that the scale of the proposed dwelling would be
appropriate to its plot size and its surrounding context, noting the two storey dwellings at Nos. 33 and
43 Parkfield Road.

Following negotiations, revised drawings were submitted showing the proposed replacement dwelling
sited in alignment with the front building line of No.37 Parkfield Road. As such, it is considered that
the revised proposal would respect the pattern of development of the local area. The two storey rear
building line of the proposed dwelling would be partly set-back from the ground floor rear building line.
This helps to ensure that the overall bulk and massing of the proposed replacement dwelling is
proportionately sized in relation to its site context. Furthermore, the ridge height of proposed dwelling
would be the same height as the neighbouring two storey dwelling at No.43 Parkfield Road. Thus,
ensuring that the varied but established roof lines on Parkfield Road

remains intact.

Whilst crown roof profiles are generally resisted from a design perspective, the flat centre section of
the proposed crown roof profile has been reduced during the course of this application. This, in turn,
has helped to reduce its prominence when viewed from the street scene and from the rear gardens of
neighbouring properties. Also, there are existing properties on Parkfield Road that contain crown roof
profiles (notably Nos. 29, 55, 54 and 54a). It is therefore considered, on balance, that the proposed
crown roof profile would not be harmful to the character of the street scene.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 87



In terms of architectural style, the proposed replacement dwelling would include a two-storey front
projection with full height glazing on its upper level. Two-storey front gable features are not an
uncommon feature on the more recently constructed replacement dwellings on Parkfield Road. As
such, it is considered that the design of the proposed dwelling would be in keeping with the emerging
street scene character.

In the event of approval, a condition would be secured requiring details of the external finishes and
materials to be submitted to the Council for consideration.

For the reasons above, it is considered that the proposed development would not cause harm to the
character, appearance and visual amenities of the street scene or the surrounding area. The proposal
therefore accords with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies (2012),
Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) and Policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) and the NPPF (2023).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states: B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight
of adjacent properties and open space.

Specifically, paragraph 5.38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020) states: "The Council will aim to ensure that there is sufficient privacy for residents and it will
resist proposals where there is an unreasonable level of overlooking between habitable rooms of
adjacent residential properties, schools or onto private open spaces. A minimum of 21 metres
separation distance between windows of habitable rooms will be required to maintain levels of privacy
and to prevent the possibility of overlooking. In some locations where there is a

significant difference in ground levels between dwellings, a greater separation distance may be
necessary."

Paragraph 5.40 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states: "For the purposes of this policy (Policy DMHB 11), outlook is defined as the visual amenity
enjoyed by occupants when looking out of their windows or from their garden. The Council will expect
new development proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in order to ensure development
does not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss of outlook."

The main two-storey front wall of the proposed replacement dwelling would be positioned in
alignment with No. 37 Parkfield Road. It would project beyond the front elevation of No.41 Parkfield
Road by approximately 3.7 metres. However, the proposed front wall would be set-in from the closest
front elevation window at No.41 Parkfield Road by 4 metres, and would not breach their 45- degree
sight line. The proposed two storey front gable feature would have a modest depth, projecting
approximately 0.8 metre beyond the proposed main front wall. Taking these factors into account, it is
considered that the proposed replacement dwelling would not adversely impact on the levels of
natural light and outlook from the front elevation windows at Nos. 37 and 41 Parkfield Road.

At two storey level, the proposed rear building line would project beyond the extended rear wall of
No.37 by 0.7 metres. The proposed single storey rear building line would project an additional 2
metres; however, this element of the proposal would be set-in from the shared boundary with No.37
in excess of 7 metres. Also, No.37 contains a detached outbuilding along the shared boundary which
projects beyond the depth of the proposed single storey rear building line. Upon Officer's request,
revised drawings were submitted to demonstrate that the proposed two-storey rear building line would

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 88



not breach the 45-degree line of sight taken from the nearest windows at No. 37 Parkfield Road.
No.41 Parkfield Road is set deeper into its plot, which means its extended rear building line projects
beyond that of the proposed replacement dwelling. Given these circumstances, it is considered that
the proposal would not unduly impact on the levels of outlook and light from the rear elevation
windows at Nos. 37 and 41 Parkfield Road.

During the Officer site visit it was observed that both Nos. 37 and 41 contain habitable windows within
their respective flank walls which faces onto the side boundaries of the application site. However,
these existing side windows face directly onto closed boarded fencing, which means the outlook from
these windows is already limited. To support this, additional plans were requested (39PR/P100 Rev
B) with 25-degree sight lines from the habitable neighbouring windows which demonstrate that with
2m high boundary fencing, views from the windows would be primarily of the fencing. In addition, the
applicant has submitted a Daylight and Sunlight Assessment which demonstrates the proposed
development would be compliant with Building Research Establishment (BRE) guidelines. Concerns
regarding the assessment were raised by residents as it was established that the obscured glazed
side window also serves a bedroom. A revised Daylight and Sunlight assessment was submitted
which took this into account. Given Window 1 and Window 2 serve the same bedroom, the area
weighted average was used to confirm compliance with BRE guidelines. Notwithstanding this, given
the secondary flank window is already obscurely glazed, outlook is already compromised and it is
considered by Officers that the level of daylight lost would not warrant a reason for refusal. As the
applicant has also demonstrated that the bedroom as a whole would continue to comply with the
guidance set out in the BRE Research Establishment which allows for average daylight calculation to
be taken where a room is served by 2 windows on different elevations. It is considered that the
proposal would result in a minor reduction of daylight and sunlight to the neighbouring windows of
number 37 and 41 Parkfield Road. In all cases, the reduction remains better than the minimum
recommendations of the BRE guidelines and would therefore not unduly impact on the levels of
outlook and light.

In addition to this, the proposed replacement dwelling would be single storey along the mutual
boundary shared with No.37, with the proposed two storey flank wall set-in 3.4 metres from this
neighbour. Whilst the proposed-two storey flank wall closest to No.41 would be set-in 1.5 metres from
the mutual boundary, there would be a total separation distance of 4 metres between the proposed
dwelling and the side windows at No.41. It is therefore considered, on balance, that the proposal
would not result in a significant loss of light or outlook for the side windows at Nos.37 and

41 over and above the existing situation. As such, a refusal on this particular ground would be difficult
to defend in the event of an Appeal.

There would be a separation distance of approximately 23 metres between the front elevation of the
proposed replacement dwelling and the neighbouring properties at Nos. 33 and 38 Parkfield Road.
There would be a separation distance in excess of 30 metres between the rear elevation of the
proposed dwelling and the rear gardens of the properties at 42 to 46 Rectory Way. Given these
separation distances, it is considered that the proposal would not unduly impact on the residential
amenities of these particular neighbouring properties.

If planning permission were to be granted, the first floor side window (which serves a bathroom)
would be obscure glazed and non-opening up to 1.8 metres of the finished floor level. This condition
is required to prevent any issues in respect to loss of privacy or overlooking for neighbouring
occupiers. The condition would also be applicable to the proposed first floor en-suite window to
protect the modesty of future occupiers.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 89



The concerns raised by neighbouring residents have been duly noted. However, having regard to the
above, it is considered that the proposal would not cause undue harm to the living conditions of
neighbouring occupiers, in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers
INTERNAL AMENITY SPACE:

Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) sets out the minimum internal floor space standards required for
residential developments in order to ensure that there is an adequate level of amenity for future
occupants.

Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that all housing development should have an adequate provision of internal space in order to
provide an appropriate living environment.

Table 3.1 of the London Plan (2021) requires a three-storey dwelling containing a 3 bedroom, 5
person unit to have a minimum of 93 square metres. Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) states that
a one bed space single bedroom must have a floor area of at least 7.5 square metres, and a two
bedroom space double (or twin room) must have at least 11.5 square metres.

It is recognised that the proposed attic rooms labelled as 'Storage' would be in excess of 11.5 square
metres, and therefore could be used flexibly as additional double bedroom. Also, the proposed attic
room labelled as 'Medium Room' could be flexibly used as a single bedroom as it would be in excess
of 7.5 square metres. It is therefore considered prudent to assess their implications as bedrooms on
the quality of living accommodation.

Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) does not stipulate the minimum requirement for a house of the
occupancy size being proposed. However, with the proposed replacement dwelling benefitting from a
gross internal floor area of 449 square metres, its overall internal floor space is considered to be more
than sufficient.

It is also noted that the gross internal floor area of the proposed replacement dwelling meet the
minimum floor space standards in Table 3.1 of the London Plan (2021), i.e. 138 square metres for a
6 bedroom, 8-person three-storey dwelling. All the proposed bedrooms (including the habitable rooms
within the loft space) would exceed the minimum floor area standards set out in parts 3) and 4) of the
London Plan (2021).

It is noted that the habitable rooms within the loft space would be served by roof lights, and would
therefore not be afforded with direct outlook. However, bedrooms are primarily used for sleeping and
can be differentiated from the primary living space located on the ground floor level of the proposed
dwelling. The guest bedroom at ground floor level and the primary proposed bedrooms at first floor
level would be served by windows fitted in the front or rear elevation of the building. It is therefore
considered, on balance, that the overall internal amenity space for future occupiers would be
acceptable, in respect to outlook.

On the above basis, it is considered that the proposed replacement dwelling would provide a
satisfactory provision of internal amenity space for future occupants, in accordance with Policy DMHB
16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy D6 of
the London Plan (2021).

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 90



EXTERNAL AMENITY SPACE:

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that al new residential development and conversions will be required to provide good quality
and useable private outdoor amenity space. Amenity space should be provided in accordance with
the standards set out in Table 5.3, which requires houses with four bedrooms or more should provide
a minimum of 100 square metres of private usable amenity space.

The proposed replacement dwelling would be provided with private amenity space in the form of a
rear garden which would be in excess of 500 square metres. Thus, far exceeding the minimum
private amenity space standards found in Table 5.3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020). It is considered that the proposed rear garden would
provide a generous amount of space and opportunity for general outdoor activity that future
occupants of the proposed family sized dwelling could reasonably expect. The proposal would
provide the future occupiers of the proposed replacement dwelling with external private amenity
provision that is of a sufficient size, usability and functionality, in accordance with Policy DMHB 18 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020).

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety
ACCESS, PARKING AND HIGHWAY SAFETY:

Paragraph 115 of the NPPF (2023) states that development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

Policy T4 of the London Plan (2021) states that where appropriate, mitigation, either through direct
provision of public transport, walking and cycling facilities and highways improvements or through
financial contributions, will be required to address adverse transport impacts that are identified.

Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021) states that new residential development should not exceed the
maximum parking standards set out in Table 10.3. All residential car parking spaces must provide
infrastructure for electric or Ultra Low Emission vehicles. At least 20 per cent of spaces should have
active charging facilities, with passive provision for all remaining spaces.

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that development proposals will be required to meet the transport needs of the development and
address its transport impacts in a sustainable manner.

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that proposals must ensure that safe and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is
provided, schemes do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or safety
of all road users and residents. Also, that impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised and
there are suitable mitigation measures to address any traffic impacts in terms of capacity and
functions of existing roads.

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
requires that proposals comply with the Council's parking standards in order to facilitate sustainable
development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity. There are two vehicle
crossovers emerging onto Parkfield Road which serves the existing dwelling at the site. The proposal

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 91



does not seek to make any alterations to these existing crossovers, and it is considered by the
Council's Highways Officer that their current dimensions are adequate to
accommodate the vehicular activity associated with the proposed development.

The maximum requirement for a four-bedroom or more dwelling is up to 2 car parking spaces to be
provided on-site to comply with the adopted parking standard set out in Appendix C, Table 1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020). It is worth noting that
Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021) states that development comprising 3 plus bed units in outer
London with a PTAL rating of 3 should provide a maximum of up to 1 space dwelling, which is a
lesser requirement than the Council's adopted car parking standards. The submitted plans shows that
there is sufficient space to on the front court to accommodate three car parking spaces owing to the
generous plot size. An additional parking space would be provided within the proposed garage. The
proposal would therefore provide up to 4 car parking spaces. Whilst this would exceed the maximum
car parking standards set at local and regional level, the number of proposed car parking spaces
would not be dissimilar to the existing provision at the site.

The Council's Highways Officer has commented that in this individual case the proposed on-site car
parking is acceptable as it would reduce the potential for untoward on-street parking displacement
resulting from the higher dependency on the private motor car, due to the site's level 3 PTAL rating
(Moderate). In line with Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021), there is a requirement for a minimum
of 20% 'active' electric vehicle charging points provision within the final parking quantum of
development, with all remaining spaces being designated as 'passive' provisions. In the event of an
approval, a condition would be secured requiring 1 active and 3 passive electric vehicle charging
points (in compliance with Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021). When comparing the proposed
development to the scale and single tenure of the existing dwelling, it is considered that there would
be no significant difference in vehicle bound activity. As such, the vehicular generated activity
associated with the proposed development could be absorbed within the local road network without
notable detriment to traffic congestion and road safety.

In the event of an approval, a condition would be secured requiring the submission of a Construction
Management Plan to be submitted to the Council for consideration. This condition is considered to be
necessary in order to minimise/avoid potential detriment to the public realm and local highway
network. Accordingly, it is considered, on balance, that the proposed development would provide an
acceptable number of on-site car parking spaces, and that the demand for street parking would not
be exacerbated to such an extent that would prejudice highway safety.

The proposal would therefore accord with the objectives of Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020), Policies T4, T6 and T6.1 of
the London Plan (20201) and paragraph 111 of the NPPF (2023).

BICYCLE PROVISION:

Policy DMT 5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
requires development proposals to provide a provision of cycle parking in accordance with the
standards set out in Appendix C, Table 1 (i.e. 2 cycle spaces per 3 or more bed unit). Policy T5 of the
London Plan (2021) also requires two cycle spaces to be provided for a proposal development of this
housing size.

No details have been submitted in respect to on-site cycle store provision. However, Officers are fully
satisfied that this matter could be dealt with through a condition as there is more than sufficient space

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 92



within the rear garden to accommodate a cycle store, without undermining the minimum requirement
of 100 square metres of private external amenity space.

Subject to the above condition, it is considered that the proposal would provide covered, secure and
accessible cycle parking spaces for future occupants in compliance with Policy DMT 5 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy T5 of the
London Plan (2021).

7.11 Urban design, access and security
Covered in other sections of this Committee Report.

7.12 Disabled access

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should achieve the highest
standards of accessible and inclusive design. Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021) states that at least
10 per cent of dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the Building
Regulations applies) must meet Building Regulation requirement M4(3) 'wheelchair user dwellings'.
All other dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the Building Regulations
applies) must meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2) 'accessible and adaptable dwellings'.

In the event of an approval, a condition would be secured requiring the proposed replacement
dwelling to meet Category M4(2) of Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015.
Also, a condition would be secured requiring details showing step-free access via the entrance points
of the proposed dwelling to be submitted to the Council for consideration. Subject to such conditions,
the proposed development would comply with Policies D5 and D7 of the London Plan (2021).

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) states that housing provision
is expected to include a range of housing to meet the needs of all types of households, and the
Council will seek to maximise the delivery of affordable housing from all sites over the period of the
Local Plan. For sites with a capacity of 10 or more units, the Council will seek to ensure that the
affordable housing mix reflects housing needs in the borough, particularly the need for larger family
units. This is supported by Policy DMH 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -

Development Management Policies (2020).

The proposal is for a single replacement dwelling and therefore does not meet the threshold in order
to require affordable housing provision. As such, the proposal is not contrary to Policy H2 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) and Policy DMH 7 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) in respect of affordable housing provision.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology
TREES AND LANDSCAPING:

Policy G1 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should incorporate
appropriate elements of green infrastructure that are integrated into London's wider green
infrastructure network.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that landscaping and tree planting should enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 93



This is supported by Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020) which states:

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping, trees, biodiversity or
other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that includes hard and soft
landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which supports and enhances biodiversity and
amenity particularly in areas deficient in green infrastructure.

The site is covered by Tree Preservation Order 514. Upon Officers' request, the applicant submitted a
report comprising an Arboricultural Survey to BS5837:2012 report. The report states that a total of 4
No. individual trees, 1 No. group of trees and 3 No. hedges were surveyed. From the trees surveyed,
there was 1 x Category A tree (English Oak), 2 x Category C trees (Dappled Willow and Viburnum), a
group of mixed Category C trees and 1 x U Category tree (Japanese Cherry). Upon Officers' request,
an Arboricultural Method Statement, Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan was submitted.
The Method Statement no individual or groups of trees are proposed to be removed. A hedge would
be removed. There is no objection to the loss of this hedge, given its relatively low visual amenity
value. Replacement planting would be secured through a landscaping condition, in the event of an
approval. The Tree Protection Plan shows that the footprint of the proposed dwelling would not
encroach the root protection area of the retained trees, and the locations where protection fencing
would be erected. A compliance condition requiring the construction works to be carried out in
accordance with the tree protections measures outlined in the Arboricultural Method Statement,
Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan would be secured by condition, if planning permission
were to be granted. Subject to the above conditions, it is considered that the proposed development
would not cause harm to any trees of high visual amenity value, and that the proposed soft
landscaping would help to soften the overall appearance of the proposed development. The proposal
would therefore accord with Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy G1 of the London Plan, in this respect.

ECOLOGY:

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that if development is proposed on or near to a site considered to have features of ecological or
geological value, applicants must submit appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that
the proposed development will not have unacceptable effects. The development must provide a
positive contribution to the protection and enhancement of the site or feature of ecological value.

The site does not contain any ponds, open woodland or dense scrub and shrubbery. There are no
protected sites of ecological interest adjacent to the site. It is therefore considered that the likelihood
of protected species being present at the site is low, and as such, an ecology assessment is not
required. This position would be in accordance with 'Circular 06/05: Biodiversity and Geological
Conservation- Statutory Obligations and their Impact within the Planning System' which states that,
"...bearing in mind the delay and cost that may be involved, developers should not be required to
undertake surveys for protected species unless there is a reasonable likelihood of the species being
present and affected by the development.” In the event of an approval, an informative would be
secured advising that should protected species be found at the site, the applicant(s) must fulfil their
duties under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of
Habitations and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended)

7.15 Sustainable waste management
Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 94



(2020) states that development proposals should make sufficient provision for well designed internal
and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with suitable access for
collection. External bins should be located and screened to avoid nuisance and adverse visual
impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

The Council's Highways Officer has commented that in order to conform to accepted 'waste collection
distances' from the public highway, the storage area should be positioned within 10 metres of a
refuse vehicle. Whilst no specific details have been provided in respect to refuse and recycling
storage, Officers are satisfied that this matter could be dealt with by way of a condition, if planning
permission were to be granted. The servicing of the proposed replacement dwelling by the Council's
refuse collection crew would be in the same manner as the existing properties on Parkfield Road
(which includes the existing property at the application site). Subject to the above condition, it is
considered that the proposed development would be able to provide a convenient location for refuse
and recycling facilities in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
- Development Management Policies (2020).

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

In order to meet sustainability requirements a condition would be secured requiring the proposed
dwelling to achieve as a minimum, a water efficiency standard of no more than 110 litres per person
per day maximum water consumption (to include a fixed factor of water for outdoor use of 5 litres per
person per day in accordance with the option requirement defined within Approved Document G of
the Building Regulations). Further conditions are also outlined within the air quality section of this
report which would further contribute to reducing carbon and providing more sustainable energy
provision.

Subiject to the above conditions, the proposal would be compliant with Policies DMEI 2 and DMEI 10
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy Sl 2 of the
London Plan (2021).

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy SI 12 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should ensure that flood

risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is addressed. Policy Sl 13 of the London Plan
(2021) states that development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure
that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible.

Policy DMEI 9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk mitigation, or which would increase
the risk or consequences of flooding, will be refused.

Policy DMEI 10 states that development within areas identified at risk from surface water flooding,
which fail to make adequate provision for the control and reduction of surface water runoff rates will
be refused.

The site lies within Flood Zone 1 of the Environment Agency's Flood Risk Map. This means the site
is classified as being at low risk and defined as having a less than 1 in 1,000 probability of fluvial and
tidal flooding. As such, there are no restrictions on development, including more vulnerable uses such
as Use Class C3 (dwellinghouses), in this location, in terms of fluvial and tidal flood risk. In the event
of an approval, a condition would be secured requiring the submission of a sustainable water
management scheme, that incorporates sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDs), to be submitted
to the Council for consideration. Also, the landscaping condition has been worded in such a manner

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 95



to ensure that permeable hard surfacing is used for the parking areas serving the proposed dwelling.

Subiject to such conditions, it is considered that the proposed development would not increase the
risk of flooding on the site or elsewhere, in accordance with Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policies S| 12 and Sl
13 of the London Plan (2021).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues
NOISE:

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) states that in order to reduce, manage and mitigate noise to
improve health and quality of life, residential and non-aviation development proposals should manage
noise by avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life. The site would be
used in an exclusively residential capacity, as per the existing situation. As such, in terms of the
operational phase of the proposed development, no significant issues are considered to be raised by
the proposal, in respect to noise.

Notwithstanding the above, a condition would be secured requiring the submission of a Construction
Management Plan, in the event of an approval. This condition is necessary to ensure that noise and
pollution are minimised as far as practicable during the construction phase.

AIR QUALITY:

Policy DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020)
states that proposals should demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions. It adds that,
development proposals should, as a minimum:

i) be at least "air quality neutral";

ii) include sufficient mitigation to ensure there is no unacceptable risk from air pollution to sensitive
receptors, both existing and new; and

iii) actively contribute towards the improvement of air quality, especially within the Air Quality
Management Area.

The London Plan has produced further guidance on Air Quality Neutral in February 2023. Paragraph
2.3 of the guidance states that for minor developments

" a full air quality assessment will likely not be required. The guidance provides a simplified procedure
for developments in meeting Air Quality Neutral.

The simplified procedure states where minor developments include new heating systems, they can be
assumed to meet the Building Emissions Benchmark (BEB). These new heating systems could
include one of the following

* heat pump or other zero-emission heat source

* the new heating system includes one or more individual gas boiler with NOx emssions rated at less
than 40mg/kWh

*the development is connecting to an existing heat network.

The London Plan guidance also states in para 4.1 where minor developments include new parking,
they can be assumed to be meet Transport Emissions Benchmark (TEB) if the maximum parking
standards set out in policies T6 are not exceeded.

In regards the current application, the proposal involves replacing and existing dwelling with no net
increase in the numbers of units within the site curtilage. The development would continue to provide
similar parking arrangement to the existing dwelling and the overall parking movements associated

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 96



with the development would be limited. As such, the development is unlikely to have any significant
adverse air quality impact.

In terms of building emissions, a condition has been included requiring any new heating system to the
new dwelling to be from a zero-emission rated at less than 40mg/kWh; or to be connected to an
existing heat network. This would ensure an Air Quality Neutral minor development, in accordance
with London Plan Guidance: Air Quality Neutral.

Also, a condition would be secured requiring the submission of a Construction Management Plan (as
noted above) to minimise air and other emissions caused during the construction phase. In light of
these conditions, and noting the minor scale of the proposal, it is considered that it would not be
necessary, fair or reasonable to require an air quality contribution to be secured through a legal
agreement.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations
Covered in other sections of this Committee Report.

7.20 Planning obligations

Policy DMCI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) states
that to ensure development is sustainable, planning permission will only be granted for development
that clearly demonstrates there will be sufficient infrastructure of all types to support it. Infrastructure
requirements will be predominantly addressed through the Council's Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL).

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1st August 2014. The Hillingdon
CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional floor space. This is in
addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60 per square metre. CIL rates are index linked. The proposal
involves the erection of a new replacement dwelling and is therefore CIL liable, if planning permission
were to be granted.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action
Not applicable.

7.22 Other Issues
None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional and national
policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance with all relevant
primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use of land in
the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning applications
adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also the guidance
contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 97



Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent should not be
refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal. Planning conditions should
only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the conditions are necessary, relevant to
planning, relevant to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all
other respects. Where conditions are imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for
imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an agreement or
undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 are necessary to
make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations must be directly related to the
development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation
122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning applications to
have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster
good relations between people who have different protected characteristics. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should consider
whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a proposal when
compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where equalities issues arise,
members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals against the other material
considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive,
but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an
application. The weight to be given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to
determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in particular
the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the protection of property and
the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be proportionate and achieve a fair balance
between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set out in this Committee Report, it is considered that the revised proposal would
comply with the objectives of national, regional and local planning policies and guidance. It is
therefore recommended that the application be approved, subject to the imposition of the conditions
set out in Section 2 of the Committee Report.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023)

The London Plan (March 2021)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (January 2020)

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 98



Hillingdon Local Plan Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document (September 2017)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March 2015)
Circular 06/05: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation - Statutory Obligations and Their Impact

Within The Planning System

Contact Officer: Emilie Bateman Telephone No: 01895 250230

Hillingdon Planning Committee - 13th March 2024
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 99



Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2020 Ordnance Survey
100019283

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

Site Address:
39 Parkfield Road
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
24825/APP/2023/81 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Minor Page 100 | March 2024

LONDON




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Chris Brady 4482/APP/2022/213

Date Application | 24-01-22 Statutory / Agreed | 12/08/24

Valid: Determination

Deadline:

Application Full Ward: Belmore

Type:

Applicant: Sivakumaran,Yoganathan & Jeyakumar

Site Address: 152-154 Uxbridge Road, Hayes, UB4 OJH

Proposal: Erection of three storey mixed use retail and 9
residential apartments with ancillary parking,
amendments to dropped kerbs, refuse and
bicycle storage, following the demolition of
existing buildings.

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to section

Recommendation:

Reason Reported
to Committee:

LONDON

106 legal agreement and conditions

Required under Part 3 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (Petition received)

Page 101

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

That delegated powers be given to the Director for Planning, Regeneration
and Public Realm to GRANT planning permission subject to the following:

A) That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicant under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) or any
other legislation to secure the following:

1. Restriction upon future residents preventing them from obtaining an on-
street parking permit within the existing adjoining Parking Management
Scheme and any future expanded Scheme.

2. Air Quality Offsetting Contribution of £28,088.

3. Amendment to the traffic order to facilitate servicing and delivery to be
undertaken on street funded by the applicant.

4. Project Management & Monitoring Fee: A financial contribution equal to
5% of the total cash contributions.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant
meets the Council's reasonable costs in the review and preparation of the
legal agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That Officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of
the proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreements have not been finalised within 6 months of
02/10/24, delegated authority be given to the Director of Planning,
Regeneration and Public Realm to refuse the application for the following
reason:

"The applicant has failed to provide measures to mitigate the impacts of the
development in relation to the highway network and air quality as a
consequence of demands created by the proposed development. The
proposal therefore conflicts with the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, Policies DMEI 7, DMEI 14,
DMT 6 and of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020), the Council's Planning Obligations SPD and the Hillingdon

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 102



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012), the London Plan
(2021) and the NPPF.'

E) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed
subject to changes negotiated by the Director of Planning, Regeneration and
Public Realm prior to issuing the decision.

Executive Summary

Planning permission has been sought for the erection of a three-storey mixed use
building following the demolition of existing buildings on the site. The proposed
building would comprise a retail unit at ground floor with 9 residential apartments
above. The proposal also includes ancillary parking, amendments to dropped
kerbs and the provision of refuse and bicycle storage.

In terms of the principle of the development, the proposal includes a net increase
of 8 additional dwellings on the site, 4 of which would be family sized units
therefore contributing towards addressing an identified need within the Borough.
The provision of additional housing at the site is therefore supported. The
development would also include an enlarged retail space at ground floor. The
enlarged space would cater for a broader range of occupiers and would provide
them with a contemporary shop, with private service yard. The enlarged and
improved retail space would support the local economy as well as the vitality and
viability of the local shopping parade.

Turning to design, during the processing of the application, concerns were raised
regarding the design of the proposed new building. To address the design
concerns revised plans have been submitting which illustrate detailing has been
added to the gable ends and the external finishes of the building have been altered
to break up the bulk of its side elevation and to simplify its design. The design of
the building is now considered to be acceptable. The building has also been
carefully designed to imitate the existing building's appearance when viewed from
Uxbridge Road, it would therefore have an acceptable impact on the appearance
of the terrace in which it is sited. Furthermore, the building would replace the
unsightly rear service yard, fencing and signage that currently exist at the site,
cluttering and harming the areas appearance. The development is therefore
considered to enhance the appearance of the area.

Conditions (requiring obscure glazing and privacy screens in appropriate
locations) are recommended to ensure that the development causes no harm to
neighbouring amenities and that future occupiers of the building have acceptable
levels of privacy.

Adequate parking would be provided for the development and conditions are
recommended to ensure that the new and altered accesses meet the council’s
standards.

In the event, that the application is approved a legal agreement will be secured
securing air quality contributions and parking restrictions for future residents.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 103



1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Overall, it is considered that subject to the recommended conditions the proposed
development would cause no harm to the character and appearance of the area
or the host building, nor would it cause significant harm to neighbouring amenities
or the local highways network. Residents of the new flats would be provided with
an acceptable standard of internal and external living accommodation.
Additionally, the development would provide family sized housing on previously
developed land, which is supported by the Local Plan and London Plan.

The planning application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the
conditions set out in Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

The development site is located on the corner of Uxbridge Road and Brookside
Road.

At present the site comprises a three-storey end of terrace building. The ground
floor of the building is in retail use and its upper floors are in residential use as 1 x
5-bedroom apartment. The building is finished in a mixture of brick and tiling and
has high level gabled features. It is set back from Brookside Road and Uxbridge
Road and forms part of small parade of three storey buildings (No’s 124 -154
Uxbridge Road) which are of similar use, size and design. The development site
projects beyond the side elevation of the parade to the back edge of Brookside
Road and along this road frontage forms a yard area.

The area surrounding the development site is of mixed use. To the north are pairs
of two storey semi-detached dwellings. To the south is Uxbridge Road and beyond
that Hyatt Place Hotel and Springfield Road Retail Park. To the west of the site
are two storey semi-detached properties and terraces and to the east (beyond the
parade) are two storey terraces.

The site forms part of the 124 - 152 Uxbridge Road Local Parade, as designated
in the Local Plan: Part 2 (2020). It also forms part of Hillingdon's Air Quality
Management Area and is located within an Air Quality Focus Area. The site is
within a 250-metre buffer zone of a former landfill site and a gas pipeline runs
along Brookside Road.

Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 104



Fi

. ia‘\.\
Z

7 ?
4

N
S8

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16t" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 105



Proposal
3.1

Planning permission has been sought for the erection of a three-storey mixed use

building following the demolition of existing buildings on the site. The proposed

building would comprise a retail unit at ground floor with 9 residential apartments

above. The proposal also includes ancillary parking, amendments to dropped
kerbs and the provision of refuse and bicycle storage.

3.2

The proposed building mix is as follows:
5 x 2-bedroom units

4 x 3-bedroom units

Figure 3: Proposed Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be found in
the Committee Plan Pack)

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

emm
josputuin ety

ind Level

Proposed First Floor Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024
PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 106



1_First Level (Lower)
1100

Proposed Second Floor Plan

ond Level (Lower)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16t" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 107




Proposed Roof Plan

1 Level (Lower)

Proposed Ground Floor Landscaping Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 108

152-154 Uxbridge Road, Hayes

Proposed Roof Floor Plan
1:100 @A1
5008 203

_—
PLANNING SUBMISSION PT7



AT LR G A

vy
v Akt Area st
et v e
[y gty

B D —
S s e

NOTES

Tard ladacape decae and dranage - e &
Arctns 1 Gngrews Swnts For Seals on reERy
S e e s engeer: eres: o

TYPICAL IMAGES FOR THE HARD & SOFT PALETTE ON GROUND FLOOR

Proposed Front and Side Elevation

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16t" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 109

5 THOROLD ROAD
FARNWAN
SuRREY
aunm

TELASAXSI3ND
ERAIL: me@brastor

Project
152154 UXBRIDGER ROAD, HAYES,
U4 0

Cllent.
P T I ——
=y
Orawing The
Landscape Proposals Plan
- =3 C
g a o
e N S Sevace
WwAra PLANNING L]
" [ st
e [ ——
a e




Front Elevation

152-154 Uxbridge Road, Hayes

| S | | [ ] Proposed Elevations - Sheel 1
N [ |
[ | I | | [ | T 0 @ar
2 =5 NN mil 5005 400
B2

PLANNING SUBMISSION P8

vl
Side Elevation (Left) -
1:100

Proposed Rear and Side Elevation

Rear Elevation
1:100

152-154 Uxbridge Road, Hayes

—_————————————
Proposed Elevations - Sheet 2

T- 100 @A1

5005 a1

PLANNING SUBMISSION P8

i
— 3
g .
) =i 3 -
o 4
m
Side Elevation (Right) :
vy seax: 10100 poimingy
° £ -

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 There is no relevant planning history for the development site.
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16t" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 110



5.1

6.1

6.2

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be found in

Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

19 neighbouring properties were directly notified of the proposal on 09/02/22.

Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in Table 1
(below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2 (below). Full copies of

the responses have also separately been made available to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations

Summary of Issues
Raised

Planning Officer
Response

A petition of 28
signatures from a
total of 16
different
households has
been received
against the
application

1. Traffic/congestion

Discussed in section 7
paragraph 7.72

2. Noise pollution

Discussed in section
paragraphs 7.52 and 7.53

3. Late night disturbances
from the shop’s gym
and nearby hotel

Disturbances from other
properties are not material
to the assessment of this
application

8 Individual letters
of objection have
been received.

|. Traffic Discussed in section 7
paragraph 7.72
Il. Noise Discussed in section

paragraphs 7.52 and 7.53

[1l. Out of character

Discussed in section 7
paragraphs 7.17 to 7.26

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments

Planning Officer

ensure that the developer applies for a permit should
any ground water or surface water be proposed to be
discharged into the public sewer network and a

Response
Statutory Consultation
Thames Water:
No objection subject to a standard informative to Noted

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 111




condition pertaining to the submission of a pilling
method statement.

Cadent Gas:
Noted
No objection

Scottish Southern Electric:

No comments received

Internal Consultation

Highway Officer:

The Highway Authority is aware that this planning
application has generated several objections, with
regards highway matters this concerns traffic
congestion and vehicular noise. The Highway
Authority anticipates that the amount of road traffic
generated by the proposal would not be insignificant
and not have any noticeable impact upon the free
flow of traffic or road noise.

A total of 9 parking spaces, including 2 disabled
accessible spaces are proposed which is below the
maximum standards set out within the London Plan.
The parking proposed is therefore acceptable.

The proposal would include the carrying out of
alterations to a vehicular access. On page 12 of the
Design and Access Statement plan Ref: 5005_DAS
V1.0 (Design + Access Statement) shows that the
vehicle crossover would extend across the entrance
to the residents parking.

The initial proposal included a new servicing and
delivery bay within the site boundary which would
have required the construction of an additional
access. This has now been removed and deliveries
will take place on street. The applicant will be
required to apply to the Local Highway Authority for
an amendment to the traffic order to permit deliveries
to take place on street.

The Highway Authority requires a planning condition
that prohibits the occupiers of the new dwellings from
applying to join any car parking management
scheme in operation within the vicinity of the site.

The proposal provides a minimum of 2no. long-stay | The relevant
cycle parking spaces per dwelling or 18no. in total as | conditions have been
well as 2no. short-stay cycle parking spaces. The added

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 112



10no. proposed is significantly below this standard
and as submitted is unacceptable. However, the
Highway Authority considers that there is scope to
increase cycle parking provision thereby allowing this
issue to be resolved by way of a planning condition.
The long-stay cycle parking spaces should be
provided in accordance with the London Cycle
Design Standards for the short-stay parking Sheffield
stands are considered suitable.

Access Officer:

No objection subject to conditions pertaining to the
requirements to conform to the relevant M4(2) and The relevant

the provision of an evacuation lift in order to accord conditions have been
with D5, D7 and D12 of the London Plan (2021). added

Tree Officer:

There are no TPO's or Conservation Area
designations affecting the site. No trees or landscape
features of merit will be affected by the proposal. The
proposals include a hard and soft landscape strategy
and layout plans by Bradford-Smith Landscape
Consultants. The scheme introduces planting at
ground level and on green roofs - including an
intensive green roof providing amenity space for

residents and an extensive roof with wildflower The relevant
meadow. No objection subject to a condition to conditions have been
secure more comprehensive landscaping details. added

Noise Officer:

The noise assessment report ref Rep: 112421 / 152 -
154 Uxbridge Road, Hayes by Sonic Element dated
24 Nov 2021 has been reviewed. This characterises
the existing noise environment that would likely
affect the proposed development, in particular the
residential use. Existing noise levels during the
night/day periods are reported as around 60/63
dB(A) respectively and have been adjusted upwards
using the BS4142 approach. An attempt was made
to consider the noise from the existing electricity sub-
station, but this was not apparent, indicating that its
enclosure has been effective in mitigating any noise
it produces. This is a relatively noisy area affected by
traffic on the main roads, it is adjacent to a busy road
junction, and local commercial activity. The report
recommends a corresponding noise insulation and
ventilation design to mitigate the effects of noise
within the residential units to levels consistent with

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 113



7.1

7.2

7.3

relevant guidance following recognised methods. No
objection subject to a condition to restrict noise
levels to a specific level above background noise
levels.

The relevant
conditions have been
added

Air Quality Officer:

The proposed development is located within the LBH
Air Quality Management area (AQMA), and within
the Ossie Garvin LBH Focus Area (FA), bringing
additional traffic emissions which will add to current
poor air quality. Developments in these areas need
to be neutral as minimum and positive in Focus
Areas, contributing to the reduction of air pollutant
emissions in these sensitive locations.

The application is supported by an Air Quality
Assessment which has been reviewed. In this case
the level of mitigation does not result in an Air
Quality positive development, as such a damage
contribution of £28,088 will need to be secured by
way of a s106 legal agreement. Subject to the
agreement of the damage cost and conditions to
secure an exposure reduction strategy,
implementation of a mechanical ventilation system
and submission of a low emissions plan, no objection
is raised.

The relevant
conditions have been
added and heads of
term proposed for
approval by
committee.

Urban Design Officer:

The design is now accepted; however, | am against
the demolition of the existing building. Demolition
runs contrary to sustainability principles.

The existing building
is not considered to
be of any
architectural merit
and whilst the
demolition of the
existing building may
be regrettable it is not
a listed heritage
asset.

Planning Assessment

Principle of Development

Retail Impact

Policy SD7 and E9 of the London Plan and Policy DMTC 3 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 — Development Management Policies (2020) recognise the
contribution that retail properties make to local communities and infrastructure.
Furthermore, that seek to safeguard retail floor space within designated areas
such as town centres and local shopping parades. The policies require new retail

space to be designed to be flexible to enhance long term occupation.
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 114




7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

The application site is not located within a local town centre, or a local shopping
parade designated within the local plan. However, the site does form part of a non-
designated parade which fronts the Uxbridge Road and comprises of ground floor
commercial uses with residential above. As such the retention of the commercial
space is not only supported in principle but it's enhancement is considered to be
a benefit which weighs in favour of the proposal.

At present the site comprises approximately 180m2 of retail space at ground
floor. The application proposes 226m2 of retail space at ground floor level
therefore resulting in a net increase of 46m2. The existing frontage comprises of
an unattractive shop front which extends around the corner junction between
Uxbridge Road and Brookside Road. The existing retail unit occupies the entire
frontage with what appears to be storage to the rear in the form of a white
painted brick building which would have been active in terms of views across the
service yard at some point, but the windows have been boarded up adding to the
poorly maintained and decayed elevations which front Brookside Road.

In comparison, the proposal would result in an enlarged retail space with a
consistent fascia for signage, increased glazing thus making a more attractive
and active shop frontage. As referred to above the development would also
replace unsightly advertisements and an open service yard which is used for
storage. Above the enlarged retail space would be new residential units bringing
new customers to the local shopping parade. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would enhance and support the viability and attractiveness of the local
parade. Policy SD7 and E9 of the London Plan (2021) support the
redevelopment of out of centre retail space for mixed uses and the proposal
would achieve this.

Housing Provision

The site comprises a building in mixed use (retail at ground floor with 1x 5 bed
maisonette above). The site would remain in mixed used post development but
would be of higher density, comprising a larger retail unit and 9 dwellings
(resulting in a net increase of 8 dwellings at the site). Mixed used development is
supported in this location as mentioned in the retail impact assessment above.
Furthermore, new residential development is supported, subject to compliance
with other material planning considerations.

Housing Mix

The proposed residential mix is as follows:

- 1 x 2 bed, 4 person apartment at ground floor

- 2 X 2 bed, 4 person apartments and 2 x 3 bed, 5 person apartments at first floor
-2 x 2 bed, 4 person and 2 x 3 bed, 5 person apartments at second floor

The Councils Strategic Housing Marketing Assessment states there to be an
underlying need for family sized units which are 3-bed units and above in
accordance with the London Plan 2021 glossary definition.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 115



712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

Four of the nine proposed dwellings would be family sized (3 bedrooms or
more), therefore, not only would the proposal conform with DMH 1 and DMH 2 in
terms of providing a broad mix of unit sizes, but it would also contribute towards
addressing the identified need for family sized units within Hillingdon. As such
the proposed housing mix is therefore considered to be acceptable.

Density of Development

Numerical densities are more appropriate to larger sites and what is considered
of greater significance to the determination of this application is the local
contextual factors. The key consideration is therefore whether the development
would acceptably integrate with the character and appearance of the area, and
would respect residential amenity considerations, rather than the consideration
of the numerical density of the proposal.

Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development
proposals to be of high quality and to enhance the local context by delivering
buildings and spaces that positively respond to local distinctiveness.

Policies BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 — Strategic Policies (2012),
DMHB 11, DMHB 12 and DMHD 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 —
Development Management Policies (2020) in summary seek to secure a high
quality of design that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form,
scale and materials, is appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape
and would improve the quality of the public realm and respect local character.
These aims are also supported by Chapter 12 of the NPPF (2023).

At present the site comprises a three-storey end of terrace building with
associated yard to the rear fronting Brookside Road. The ground floor of the
building is in retail use and its upper floors are in residential use as 1 x 5-
bedroom apartment. The building is finished in a mixture of brick and tiling and
has high level gabled features. It is set back from Brookside Road and Uxbridge
Road and forms part of small parade of three storey buildings (Nos. 124 -154
Uxbridge Road) which are of similar use, size and design. The development site
projects beyond the side elevation of the parade to the back edge of Brookside
Road and along this road frontage forms a yard area.

The area surrounding the development site is of mixed use. To the north are
pairs of two storey semi-detached dwellings. To the south is Uxbridge Road and
beyond that Hyatt Place Hotel and Springfield Road Retail Park. To the west of
the site are two storey semi-detached properties and terraces and to the east
(beyond the parade) are two storey terraces.

The proposal seeks to demolish the existing building and to rebuild a
sympathetic more contemporary replacement building. The ridge height of the
replacement building would be of similar height to the existing building and to

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 116



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

other properties in the terrace where it would be sited. Its height is therefore
considered to be acceptable.

The frontage of the replacement building (facing Uxbridge Road) would comprise
a large gable end and dormer at roof level with a balanced first floor fenestration
below, finished with shopfront at ground floor. The new building would not extend
beyond the frontages of its neighbours; thus, retaining the areas building line.
Front elevation dormers are common features within the terrace, as such those
proposed would be in keeping with the appearance of the terrace and
neighbouring buildings. Furthermore, large gables exist on the existing building
and at either end of the terrace, the replacement building would have a similar
feature, retaining the visual symmetry of the terrace. The larger shop frontage
would be somewhat out of character with other shops in the terrace, however the
existing shopfront is out of character as it wraps around the building, unlike
others in the terrace. The new shopfront is therefore not considered to be
significantly harmful when compared with the existing situation at the site and in
fact any potential harm would be outweighed by the contribution the new building
would make to removing the existing shop front which is cluttered with signage,
some of which is no longer relevant to the use of the site and the poorly
maintained structure. The limited visual impact of the replacement building on
Uxbridge Road and the neighbouring terraces is therefore considered to be
acceptable.

The side and rear elevation of the building (facing Brookside Road) would be of
more contemporary design. The ridge height of the side and rear would be
consistent with the rest of the terrace and existing building. The lift shafts would
extend above the height of the terrace; however, they would be well set back to
reduce their visual impact from the street. The height and scale of the building's
side elevation is therefore considered to be acceptable.

During the processing of the application concerns were raised regarding the
complex material pallete of the building’s side elevation. To address these
concerns the zinc cladding window surrounds have been omitted and replaced
with glazed bricks, which are present within the upper floor feature panels of the
proposed building. This would bring continuity to the material palette of the
building, whilst also breaking up the visual bulk of the buildings side elevation by
having bricks of different colours. Mock Tudor beaming and render detailing
have been added to the side and front gable ends of the building to ensure that it
better matches the existing building and terrace.

A more active frontage would be introduced along Brookside due to the new
ground floor residential development and shopfront, improving the buildings
relationship with the road. Although the side elevation which would be
prominently viewed within Brookside Road particularly when travelling towards
the Uxbridge Road, the high-level windows would provide a reasonable degree
of articulation. The material pallet is indicated on the submitted drawings and the
external brick finish is welcomed. It is considered that this elevation is broadly
acceptable and a condition to secure high quality materials is to be attached to
the decision notice and this will include further improvements to this elevation.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 117



7.24

7.25

7.26

1.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

Furthermore, the existing site comprises no meaningful soft landscaping and is
dominated by hardstanding. Due to its set back along Brookside Road, the
proposed development allows for improved soft landscaping at the site, which
would be secured via condition, improving the areas appearance.

Additionally, the development would result in the removal of the unsightly raised
signage, including that which advertised services which are not relevant to the
uses of the actual site, the cages to the front of the commercial unit and exposed
service yard which are visible from Uxbridge Road and Brookside Road, further
improving the appearance of the area.

Overall and for the reasons outlined above, the proposal is considered to have
an acceptable impact on the visual amenities of the area and would therefore
comply with Policies D1, D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021), Local Plan Part
1: Strategic Policies (2012) Policy BE1, Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020) and
Paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2023).

Residential Amenity

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) seeks to ensure a satisfactory relationship with adjacent
dwellings with no unacceptable loss of outlook, amenity, daylight and sunlight to
neighbouring occupiers.

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) requires that proposals minimise noise
pollution and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(2012) promotes the maximum possible reduction in noise levels and seeks to
ensure that noise impacts can be adequately controlled and mitigated.

Paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2023) states 'Planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible
and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for
existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do
not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.'

Privacy

Due to their separation distance from the properties on the other side of Uxbridge
Road, the south facing windows of the proposed development would cause no
loss of privacy to neighbouring properties.

The site is bounded by 156 Uxbridge Road, which is in use as a business referred
to as DHOOT HGV LGV Training London. Although it has a residential
appearance, it is unclear whether the property is in use as a form of floorspace to
support a commercial operation or a residential property. Notwithstanding this
point, the first and second floor windows proposed would provide views into the
side facing windows of this property at a distance of approximately 19.5m. As set

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 118



7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

out above, Policy DMHB 11 and the pre-text to the policy set a guideline of 21
metres as an adequate separation distance between habitable neighbouring
windows. The proposal would fall 1.5 metres short of this separation distance,
however it is important to note that existing windows of the building look toward
the neighbouring property and that the second-floor windows would look
downward, toward the mentioned windows therefore increasing their distance
from the proposed second floor windows. Taking this into consideration and the
minor shortfall when measures as the crow flies, it is not considered that a reason
for refusal on this basis would be upheld at appeal.

The remaining west facing windows would look toward other properties on
Brookside Road at a distance well over 21m where they would cause no harmful
overlooking or adverse privacy impacts.

The proposed development includes north facing windows which would look
toward the side elevation windows of No.2 Brookside Road at approximately 5.5m.
It is important to note that the principles of DMHB 11 which refer to retaining
adequate levels of privacy between new and existing residential properties,
applies to habitable room windows. Photos of the site, as well as evidence
submitted by the applicant suggest that the 3 side windows serve a hallway,
bathroom and toilet, with the latter two being obscure glazed. Nevertheless, all
north facing windows proposed are secondary windows which are recommended
to be conditioned to be obscure glazed, therefore preventing any overlooking. The
development is therefore considered to have an acceptable impact on the privacy
of No.2 Brookside Road.

The proposed east facing windows (serving the bedroom and living rooms of Flat
01_02 at first floor and Flat 02_02 at second floor) would face toward the rear
service yard areas and would provide some views toward the rear elevations of
the flats above the shopping parade. Notably, the nearest habitable room window
(of the proposed development) would be 17m away from the rear habitable room
windows of No.148-150 Uxbridge Road. However the angle of the windows is such
that any overlooking would be very minimal. Therefore due to the separation
distance and fact that the habitable room windows do not directly face each other
the development would cause no loss of privacy to its occupiers. The east facing
windows of the development would therefore cause no unacceptable loss of
privacy to the flats above the shopping parade.

Furthermore, many of the first-floor windows of the shopping parade already have
limited privacy, as a roof garden exists at the development site, providing existing
views into these windows.

Conditions would be added to ensure that privacy screening is installed around
upper floor walkways and the terraces of Flats 1.04 and 2.04, to protect the
amenities of the flats above the shopping parade.

The roof level gardens would provide similar views and would therefore cause no
harmful loss of privacy to neighbouring properties. Revised plans have been
submitted which include a wildflower area are roof level which will be secured and

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 119



7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

1.47

7.48

inaccessible in order to provide a set back from the roof margins to reduce the
potential impacts from overlooking from the roof garden. Therefore the overlooking
of any gardens would be no different to the general overlooking of gardens which
most residential properties which have a direct neighbour to the east and or west
would experience.

Taking into consideration these points the development would cause no harmful
loss of privacy to neighbours.

Light and Outlook

A Day and Sunlight Assessment has been submitted in support of the proposal
(215516DAY-Rev1). The specialist report assesses the daylight and sunlight
impact of the proposed development on No.2 Brookside Rd, No.156 Brookside
Rd, and 148-150 Uxbridge Road, which are the nearest neighbours and therefore
would be the most likely to be affected.

The report provides an assessment in accordance with the most recent BRE
Guidance which was adopted in 2022. It should be noted that in terms of Vertical
Sky Component (VSC) which is a key indicator in the assessment of daylight and
sunlight impact, a proposed development should retain at least 80% of the existing
pre-development light values.

The assessment reviews 17 neighbouring windows across the properties
mentioned above and refers to them as receptors. Receptors 1-5 are windows
located within the rear elevation of No.156, the report concludes that the windows
tested would retain at least 80% of the existing light values therefore this property
would not be unduly affected by the development.

Receptors 6-10 are located at the front of No.1 Brookside Road; these would also
retain at least 80% of the existing light values therefore would not be unduly
affected by the proposed development.

Turning to receptors 11-13 these are located to the side elevation of No.2
Brookside Road; these windows would be subject to a reduction in light levels
below 80% (68-75%) therefore these windows would be subject to a negligible to
minor impact in terms of daylight.

Finally, receptors 14-17 are located to the rear of 148-150 Uxbridge Road which
adjoins the existing building on the site. These windows would retain at least 80%
of the existing light values therefore would not be unduly affected by the proposed
development.

Whilst the proposal would result in a minor loss of light below the guideline set out
in the BRE guidance 2022, the window which is subject to the minor loss is in the
side elevation of No.2 Brookside. Having considered the location of the window, it
is likely to serve either as a secondary window or a stairwell therefore would not
result in a detrimental loss of outlook or daylight/sunlight such as to warrant a
recommendation for refusal.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 120



7.49

7.50

7.51

7.52

7.53

7.54

7.55

7.56

7.57

In terms of outlook, the upper floors of the building would be set away from the
upper floor windows of No.148-50 Uxbridge Road (nearest flat above shopping
parade), by approximately 5m. Due to the separation distance as well as the fact
that the upper floor flats windows would still have direct views, north and east. The
ground floor west facing windows of No0.148-150 Uxbridge Road are obscure
glazed and receive limited light. They would be unaffected by the development
and still openable into the sites new parking area. The development would cause
no harmful loss of outlook to its nearest neighbour.

The habitable windows of No.156 and No.2 Brookside Rd (other nearest
neighbours) are a considerable distance from the new building and would
therefore not be subjected to any adverse loss of outlook.

Noise, Activity and Disturbance

The development site is located within a dense, busy, mixed-use area next to a
busy road where activity and noise levels within the area are high. The addition of
9 additional dwellings and a larger retail unit is therefore unlikely to cause any
significant increase in activity or noise at the site which would be harmful to
neighbouring amenities. The opening hours of the commercial unit would be
secured via condition. In terms of noise mitigation, a condition relating to materials
will be imposed however the detailed design stage which will be submitted for
building regulations review will include details to ensure the units appropriately
noise insulated. Additionally, a construction management plan will be secured via
condition to minimise construction disturbance.

Overall, when considering the proposal, it is clear the scheme has been designed
to fit the constraints of the site. The proposal would not lead to a significant loss
of outlook, daylight, or sunlight to neighbouring habitable rooms. Furthermore, the
development would not involve a significant increase in noise disturbance in an
area which is bounded by a busy road and a large retail/commercial park on the
opposite side of the road that generate significant levels of background noise.
Taking into consideration the above and subject to conditions the development
would have an acceptable impact on neighbouring amenities.

Quality of Residential Accommodation (Internal and External)

Internal

Policy D6 of the London Plan (2021) requires that all housing should be of high-
quality design and provide adequately sized rooms with comfortable and
functional layouts which are fit for purpose and meet the needs of all Londoners
without differentiating between tenures.

Policy DMHB 16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two — Development
Management Policies (2020) requires that all housing developments should have
an adequate provision of internal space in order to provide an appropriate living
environment.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 121



7.58

7.99

7.60

7.61

7.62

7.63

The proposed development comprises the following internal accommodation:
Ground Level:

Plot 00_01 (2b4p) 70m2
First Level:

Plot 01_01 (2b4p) 70m2
Plot 01_02 (3b5p) 87m2
Plot 01_03 (2b4p) 70m2
Plot 01_04 (3b5p) 91m2
Second Level:

Plot 02_01 (2b4p) 70m2
Plot 02_02 (3b5p) 87m2
Plot 02_03 (2b4p) 70m2
Plot 02_04 (3b5p) 86m2

The dwellings would therefore comply with or exceed required internal floor space
standards.

The ground floor flat would be set back from the street, creating a privacy buffer
for its future residents. Its northern windows would be obscure glazed, again
ensuring privacy. The habitable rooms within the ground floor flat that will have
obscure glazed windows, will have other windows providing light and outlook for
future residents. The development would provide future residents of the ground
floor flat with acceptable living conditions. The other new dwellings would also
have habitable rooms with good access to light and privacy.

In reviewing the internal spaces, it is noted that there are two bedrooms out of the
20 to be provided across the entire development which would feature partially
obstructed primary windows. The windows of bedrooms 2 of Flats 02 03 and
01_03 would be partially obscured by a privacy screen which is located 2m from
the window and would obscure views of the bedrooms from the external walkway
which runs along the outer wall of the unit. The principle of DMHB 11 which refers
to separation distances and DMHB 16 is to ensure that adequate levels of privacy
are reflected in the design. When assessing privacy officers consider the
overlooking which could potentially occur between habitable room windows. This
is due to the fact that these areas would be subject to longer timeframes of
occupation than an external non habitable area such as an external walkway
which provides access to a unit. Taking this into consideration it would not be
necessary to place a privacy screen to obscure views from the walkway into the
bedrooms. However, given that they are proposed and would only partially
obscure the views out of the windows and users of the flats would not be confined
to their rooms, but would have the entirety of the flat, where access to light and
outlook would be gained from numerous windows, the level of overall outlook to
these bedrooms is acceptable.

Overall, it is therefore considered that the new dwellings would provide future
residents with an acceptable level of internal living accommodation.

External Amenity

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 122



7.64

7.65

7.66

7.67

7.68

7.69

7.70

7.71

7.72

Policy DMHB 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management
Policies (2020) requires all new residential developments to provide good quality
and usable private outdoor amenity space. 25m2 of amenity space is required for
2bed flats and 30m2 for 3 bed flats.

The proposed amenity space provisions are as follows:
Ground Level:

Plot 00_01 (2b4p) 16.5m2

First Level:

Plot 01_01 (2b4p) 8.4m2

Plot 01_02 (3b5p) 16m2

Plot 01_03 (2b4p) 6.5m2

Plot 01_04 (3b5p) 9.4m2

Second Level:

Plot 02_01 (2b4p) 8.4m2

Plot 02_02 (3b5p) 16m2

Plot 02_03 (2b4p) 5.5m2

Plot 02_04 (3b5p) 3.4m2

Third Level:

Rooftop Communal Amenity Gardens - 155m2

Taking into consideration the proposed unit mix, 245sqm of amenity space is
required in total. The proposal would provide approximately 245sqgm which
complies with Policy DMHB 18. Whilst the bulk of the amenity space is provided
at roof level, the units would also be provided with modest private individual
amenity areas. The proposed amenity space provisions are therefore considered
to be acceptable and to provide residents with a good standard of external living
accommodation.

Highways and Parking

Policies T4, T6, T6.2 of the London Plan (2021), DMT 1 and DMT 2 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) are all directly relevant to the proposed
development. These policies can be read in full in the Committee Report Part 3 -
Policy Appendix, and in summary, seek to deliver development which is
sustainable in transport terms and safeguards highway and pedestrian safety.

These aims are also supported by the NPPF (2023) at Chapter 9, which states
that development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if
there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

Car Parking

The development site is located within PTAL 3, on the border of PTAL 2.

The London Plan (2021) advises that for residential development in this location
the maximum amount of car parking that should be provided is 0.75 spaces per

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 123



7.73

7.74

7.75

7.76

7.78

7.79

7.80

7.81

7.82

two-bed unit and 1no. space per three-bed unit. A maximum of 9 parking spaces
are therefore required for the proposed development. 9 parking spaces would be
provided, as such the proposed parking provisions are acceptable. Each of these
car parking spaces would be allocated to a specific unit which is supported. The
objections which have been received during the public consultation have raised
concerns regarding congestion, however the Highway Authority anticipates that
the amount of road traffic generated by the proposal would not be significant and
would therefore not have any noticeable impact upon the free flow of traffic or road
noise.

Electrical Charging Points

Part G) of Policy T6 and part C) of Policy T6.1 of the London Plan (2021) state
that all residential car parking spaces must provide infrastructure for electric or
Ultra-Low Emission vehicles. A condition has been recommended to secure
electric vehicle charging points for the new properties, in the event of approval.

Bicycle Parking

Appendix C, Table 1 of the Hilingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020) requires the provision of cycle parking facilities for
new residential units.

The London Plan (2021) would require that a minimum of 2no. long-stay cycle
parking spaces be provided per dwelling.18 spaces should therefore be provided,
as well as 2no. short-stay cycle parking spaces. 10 spaces are proposed, and 8
additional spaces will be secured via condition. Space exists within amenity
spaces to secure these.

Refuse/Recycling Collection

Policy DMHB 11-part (d) of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that development proposals should make
sufficient provision for well-designed internal and external storage space for
general, recycling, and organic waste, with suitable access for collection. Waste
storage for the residential building will be sited within the under-croft section of the
car park. Refuse storage for the retail unit will be located within the service yard.
Full details of the residential waste storage facilities will be secured through
condition in the event of an approval.

Access

The existing access would be altered and repositioned to create an access for the
new parking area. The works required to the public highway would be secured by
a separate application made to the Local Highway Authority. In terms of servicing
and deliveries for the retail unit, initially a delivery bay was proposed with a new
access set to be provided to allow vehicles to pull up to the delivery bay and
unload. However, this would have resulted in vehicles crossing the footway and
possibly obstructing pedestrian movement. As such an amendment has been

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 124



7.83

7.84

7.85

7.86

7.87

7.88

7.89

7.90

7.91

made to the plans to show no new access for vehicles to the delivery bay and
vehicles will now stop on street. Given the limited number of deliveries required to
service the retail space, this is not considered to give rise to a significant increase
in congestion and therefore subject to the applicant agreeing to fund the necessary
amendment to the traffic order, the proposal is acceptable.

Construction

A condition has been recommended for inclusion requiring a Construction
Management Plan. This would ensure that the development would have no
significant adverse impact on traffic and pedestrian safety during construction,
given the constraints of the site.

Overall, subject to the conditions, it is concluded that the proposal would not
discernibly exacerbate congestion or parking stress, and would not raise any
measurable highway safety concerns, in accordance with the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies (2020), Policies DMT 1, DMT 2
and DMT 6 and Policies T4, T5 and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

Noise

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) requires that proposals minimise noise
pollution and Policy EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(2012) promotes the maximum possible reduction in noise levels and seeks to
ensure that noise impacts can be adequately controlled and mitigated.

The provision of 9 additional residential units is not considered to lead to such a
significant change in the local noise environment as to warrant a refusal of
planning permission on this ground. The necessity to comply with Building
Regulation standards would ensure that the development is appropriately noise
insulated.

Air Quality

Local Plan Policy DMEI 14 states:

Policies Sl 1 of the London Plan (2021), EM8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1
(2012) and DMEI 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (2020) are all directly
relevant to the proposal. These policies can be read in full in the Committee Report
Part 3 - Policy Appendix, and in summary, seek to safeguard and improve air
quality in order to protect existing and new sensitive receptors. These aims are
also supported by the NPPF (2023) at chapter 15.

The development site is located within an Air Quality Management Area and Air
Quality Focus Area, as such the development should not only provide evidence to
demonstrate it would be air quality neutral, but it is required to demonstrate it would
be air quality positive. The applicant has submitted an Air Quality Assessment
which indicates the proposal would be air quality neutral but not air quality positive
in terms of onsite mitigation. The Borough's Air Quality Officer has advised that if
the application is recommended for approval, conditions and a legal agreement

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 125



7.92

7.93

7.94

7.96

7.97

7.98

7.99

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.5

securing a £28,088 damage cost to offset the on-site mitigation. The conditions
and damage cost are to ensure that the development causes no harm to its future
residents and that adverse air quality impacts are mitigated for.

The applicant has confirmed agreement to pay the damage cost, and this will be
secured via a legal agreement should planning permission be granted and the
recommended conditions will also be added.

Accessibility

Policy D5 and Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021) aims to provide suitable
housing for London’s diverse population including disabled people, older people
and families with young children.

The proposal has been reviewed by the Council's Access Officer who has raised
no objection to the principle of either uses or the overall design of the
development. As such subject to conditions to secure the implementation of an
evacuation lift the requirement for the units to meet the M4(2) accessible
standards in accordance with Policies D7, D5 and D12 of the London Plan (2021).

Security

The proposed development is not considered to compromise the security of the
application site or adjoining sites.

Trees and Landscaping

Policy D5 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should
integrate green infrastructure to contribute to urban greening, including the public
realm.

Policy DMHB 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two — Development
Management Policies (2020) requires that all development retains or enhances
existing landscaping, trees, and biodiversity.

The proposed development would result in no loss of trees and would therefore
have no adverse tree impact.

A good mix of soft and hard landscaping is proposed in and around the site, as
well as on the roof of the building. The landscaping would ensure that the proposal
integrates with its surroundings. To ensure that an appropriate level of greenery
is provided at the site, a landscaping condition is recommended for inclusion on
the decision - if the application is approved.

With regards to Urban Greening as set out above, Policy G5 of the London Plan
relates to developments of a major scale only. As this is a minor scale
development the applicant is not required to provide an Urban Green Factor
assessment or achieve the 0.4 score applicable to major developments.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 126



7.1.10

7.1.11

7.1.12

7.1.13

7.1.14

7.1.15

7.1.16

The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable.

Ecology

Policy DMEI 7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that if development is proposed on or near to a site
considered to have features of ecological or geological value, applicants must
submit appropriate surveys and assessments to demonstrate that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable effects. The development must provide a
positive contribution to the protection and enhancement of the site or feature of
ecological value.

The site comprises buildings and hard surfacing. It does not contain any trees,
ponds, open woodland, dense scrub, or shrubbery. There are no protected sites
of ecological interest adjacent to or near to the site. It is therefore considered that
the likelihood of protected species being present at the site is low.

The ecological value of the site would be enhanced by greenery on the roof off the
building as well as around the periphery of the site. A condition requiring a
landscaping plan would aid in ensuring that the proposed greenery is appropriate
and supportive of ecology. With regards to Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG), this policy
was formally adopted for the development on small sites in April 2024. The
submission of this application pre-dates the adoption of the BNG small sites policy
therefore a BNG on this site is not required to be formally demonstrated.
Notwithstanding this point, the submission of a landscaping scheme which
provides an increase in soft landscaping above the existing as shown on the
landscaping strategy drawing, would lead to a reasonable increase in ecological
value.

In the event of an approval, an informative would be secured advising that should
protected species be found at the site, the applicant(s) must fulfil their duties under
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.

The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable.

Sustainability

Policy SI 2 of the London Plan (2021) states residential development should
achieve at least a 10% improvement beyond Building Regulations 2013.

Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) requires all developments to make the fullest contribution to
minimising carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with the London Plan targets

The proposed development is of a minor scale therefore whilst the principle of Sl
2 (carbon reduction) is applicable, the London Plan Policy applies more
specifically to major scale applications. The applicant is therefore not required to

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 127



7.1.17

7.1.18

7.1.19

7.1.20

7.1.21

7.1.22

7.1.23

7.1.24

7.1.25

7.1.26

7.1.27

7.1.28

submit an energy statement with the application or demonstrate a policy level of
on-site savings.

Notwithstanding this point, the modern construction of the development would be
considered as providing sufficient energy savings itself and therefore the
development would comply with the principles of the carbon saving development
plan policies.

The proposal would therefore be compliant with Policy S| 2 of the London Plan
(2021) and Policy DMEI 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020).

Flooding and Drainage

Policy DMEI 9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for
flood risk mitigation, or which would increase the risk or consequences of flooding,
will be refused. Policy DMEI 10 states that development within areas identified at
risk from surface water flooding which fail to make adequate provision for the
control and reduction of surface water runoff rates will be refused.

Policy SI112 and SI13 of the London Plan (2021) require, in summary, that flood
risk is minimised and mitigated, and that surface water runoff is managed close to
source.

The application site is located in Flood Zone 1 where there is a low probability of
risk of fluvial flooding. As such, all forms of development including residential
development (which is classified as a 'more vulnerable use') is acceptable in this
location, in terms of fluvial flood risk.

In the event that the development is approved, a comprehensive drainage strategy
will be secured via condition. The strategy will ensure that surface water run-off
and grey water is appropriately managed in line with the drainage hierarchy set
out in the London Plan.

The proposals are therefore considered to be in compliance with Policies DMEI 9
and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) and Policies Sl 12 and S| 13 of the London Plan (2021).

Airport Safequarding

The development would have no impact on airport safeguarding.

Land Contamination

The is identified as being located within an area potentially at risk of land
contamination according to the Council’s mapping system. Having consulted the
Councils Contaminated Land specialist the historical data indicates that the site is
subject to a very low risk and therefore no objection has been raised subject to a

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 128



7.1.29

7.1.30

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

9.1

condition restricting the importation of soils and other materials unless they are
clean and free of contamination. Subject to this condition the development is
acceptable.

Electricity Infrastructure

It is noted that the development is to be constructed close to the boundary of an
electricity substation located to the rear of the site. A consultation letter was issued
to the electricity provider (SSE) dated 15-05-24 after undertaking a land register
search to identify the owner of the asset. No comments have been received
therefore it is not considered that there would be an objection to the construction
of the development.

Other Matters

Human Rights

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st
2014 and the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square
metre of additional floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £60
per sq metre.

The proposal involves the creation of residential units and is CIL liable
Conclusion / Planning Balance

Planning permission has been sought for the erection of a three-storey mixed use
building following the demolition of existing buildings on the site. The proposed
building would comprise a retail unit at ground floor with 9 residential apartments
above. The proposal also includes ancillary parking, amendments to dropped
kerbs and the provision of refuse and bicycle storage.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 129



9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10

10.1

The proposed new building is considered to improve the appearance of this
deteriorating corner plot. The scale bulk and mass are appropriate and from a
policy perspective the optimisation of a brownfield site to provide additional
housing stock is supported. Furthermore, the unit mix which includes the provision
of new family sized housing is considered to be a public benefit which weighs in
favour of the development.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would provide adequate levels of living
accommodation for the occupants of the development whilst retaining the levels
of living accommodation for existing properties.

The proposed development would not result harm to the character and
appearance of the area or the local highway network.

Where required mitigation has been agreed and secured via a legal agreement
and the suggested conditions to be attached to the decision notice. As such the
proposal is considered to bring forward public benefits which would outweigh any
potential harm identified, which as set out in this report would be limited.

It is therefore recommended that the committee grant planning permission for the
proposed development subject to conditions and a legal agreement.

Background Papers

Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's website
here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this report and
using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to inspect
electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 16" July 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 130



APPENDICES
Planning Application

4482/APP/2022/213

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 131 10f15



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on submitted plans numbers:

5005_200 Rev P7
5005_201 Rev P8
5005_202 Rev P8
5005_203 Rev P7
887- LA-P-01 REV B
887- LA-P-02 REV C
5005 _402 Rev P2
5005_400 Rev P8
5005_401 Rev P8
5005_101 Rev P3

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012), Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Air Quality Assessment - 215516AQA

241121 Noise impact assessment

215516DRA FRA and SUDs Report

215516 TRA Transport Assessment

Landscape Strategy January 2022
21CLR5516NH Land contamination assessment

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 132 2 0of 15



87 - REV B Urban Greening Statement

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details for
as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1
(2012), Part 2 (2020) and the London Plan (2021).

4. OM19 Construction Management Plan

No development shall take place until a Demolition and Construction Management Plan has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall
detail:

a) The phasing of development works

b) Types of vehicles accessing the site, including their ability to enter the shared driveway
without affecting neighbouring properties

¢) The hours during which development works will occur

d) How vehicles will access the site whilst protecting neighbouring sites

e) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including
wheel washing facilities)

f) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours)

g) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust through
minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process

h) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON

To ensure the development causes no harm to the local highways network or pedestrian and
road user safety and to safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with
Policies DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020), as well as Policies D3
and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

5. D2 Obscure Glazing

The south facing ground floor window of Flat 00_01 (facing the communal car park) and all
north facing windows of Flats 00_01, 01_01 and 02_01 (facing No.2 Brookside Road) shall
be glazed with obscure glass to at least scale 4 on the Pilkington scale and be non-opening
except at top vent level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 133 30f 15



To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

6. NONSC Lift Access

The development hereby approved shall accord with London Plan policy D5(B5) and D12(A)
to include an evacuation lift designed to meet the technical standards set out in BS EN 81-
76, BS 9991 and/or BS 9999, as shown on the approved plans.

REASON
To ensure the development provides reliable, convenient and dignified means of escape for
all building uses in accordance with London Plan Policies D5 and D12.

7. NONSC Accessibility Compliance M4(2)

The dwellings hereby approved shall accord with the requirements of Policy D7 of the
London Plan, and shall not be occupied until certification of compliance with the technical
specifications for an M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building
Regulations (2010) 2015, has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. All such provisions must remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON

To not only allow the Building Control body to require the development to comply with the
optional Building Regulations standards, but to also ensure the appropriate quantity and
standard of accessible and adaptable housing is constructed and maintained in accordance
with Policy D7 of the London Plan (2021).

8. RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and known datum point. Thereafter, the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

9. RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development above ground level shall take place until details of all materials and external
surfaces (associated with the proposed development) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed
in accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 134 4 of 15



photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

10. RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development above ground level shall take place until a landscape scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include:

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100)

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken

1.c Schedule of plants giving species (including pollution absorbing plants), plant sizes, and
proposed numbers/densities where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage (including dimensions and material finishes)

2.b Secure and enclosed cycle Storage units capable of storing 18 long stay cycles
(including dimensions and material finishes), details of 2 short stay cycles spaces to be
provided on site

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Hard Surfacing Materials and Car Parking Layouts (including the provision of 2 active
electric vehicle charging points and 7 passive electrical vehicle charging points)

2.e External Lighting

2.f Other structures

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation
6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground

6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 135 50f 15



REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities of
the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies DMHB 11, DMHB 12,
DMHB 14, DMEI 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

11. NONSC Thames Water Piling Condition

No piling shall take place until a Piling Method Statement (detailing the depth and type of
piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be carried out,
including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to subsurface
sewerage infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water. Any
piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved piling method
statement.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed works, in close proximity to underground sewerage utility
infrastructure, will not adversely impact / cause failure of local underground sewerage utility
infrastructure in accordance with Policies DMEI 11 and DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 (2020).

12. NONSC Retail Operation and hours

The hereby approved retail premises shall only be used for retail purposes (Use Class E(a))
between the hours of:

0800 to 2300 Monday - Friday
0800 to 2300 Sundays
1000 to 2200 on Public or Bank Holidays

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

13. NONSC Privacy Screens and Balconies

Notwithstanding the approved drawings, prior to the occupation of the hereby approved
dwellings, details of the siting, design and materials of all privacy screens to balconies and
external walkways shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Furthermore design and material finish details of privacy screens to be installed on
all external balconies situated on the north facing elevation of the building shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter, the screens shall be installed as per the consented details prior to the first
occupation of the development here by approved and the privacy screens shall be retained

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 136 6 of 15



on site for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties and to protect the privacy of occupiers of the
flats in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

14. NONSC Noise

For the lifetime of the development hereby permitted the noise level shall not exceed 35 dB
LAeq 16 hrs 0700-2300 and 30 dB LAeq 8 hrs 2300-0700 measured inside any habitable
room of any permitted dwelling having regard to the guidance set out in British Standards
8233: 2014 and 4142: 2014 whilst achieving acceptable internal living conditions with
respect to ventilation and temperature.’

REASON
To protect adjoining properties from adverse noise impacts in accordance with Policy D14 of
the London Plan (2021) and paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2023).

156. NONSC Soail Testing

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall be
tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. Before any part of the
development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall be tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall
be clean and free of contamination.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with Policies DMEI 11 and DMEI 12 of The Local Plan: Part 2 -
Development Management Policies (2020).

16. NONSC Mechanical Ventilation

No development shall commence until proof that the mechanical ventilation approved by the
LA (in condition above) has been installed at the premises with the systems / filters required
to extract NOx/NO2 from outdoor ambient air and secure indoor NO2 levels below 36ug/m3
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved scheme shall be carried out before the use/operation commences and be
thereafter maintained.

REASON
As the application site is within an Air Quality Management Area, and to reduce the impact
on air quality in accordance with policy EM8 of the Local Plan: Part 1 (November 2012),

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 137 7 of 15



Policy DMEI 14 of the London Borough of Hillingdon Local Plan (part 2), the London
Borough of Hillingdon Air Quality Action Plan 2019-2023, London Plan (2021) Policy SI1 and
T4, and the National Planning Policy Framework (2023).

17. NONSC Dust Control

A. No development shall commence until a Plan has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the LPA. This must demonstrate compliance (drawn up accordance with) the GLA
Control of Dust and Emissions from Construction and Demolition SPG (or any successor
document).

B. All Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM) of net power of 37kW and up to and including
560kW used during the course of the demolition, site preparation and construction phases
shall comply with the emission standards set out in the GLA's supplementary planning
guidance "Control of Dust and Emissions During Construction and Demolition" dated July
2014 (SPG), or subsequent guidance. Unless it complies with the standards set out in the
SPG, no NRMM shall be on site, at any time, whether in use or not, without the prior written
consent of the local planning authority. The developer shall keep an up-to-date list of all
NRMM used during the demolition, site preparation and construction phases of the
development on the online register at https://nrmm.london/."

REASON

To reduce the developments impact on air quality in accordance with the London's Low
Emission Zone for non-road mobile machinery as per requirements of the London
Environment Strategy, Policy EM8 of the Local Plan: Part 1 (November 2012), Policy DMEI
14 of the London Borough of Hillingdon Local Plan (part 2), the London Borough of
Hillingdon Air Quality Action Plan 2019-2023, and London Plan (2021) Policies SI1 and T4.

18. NONSC Accesses, Footways and Crossovers

Notwithstanding any of the hereby approved plans and prior to the commencement of the
hereby approved development, a plan should be submitted which demonstrates that the new
vehicle accesses (as well as crossovers) would comply with the London Borough of
Hillingdon Domestic Vehicle Crossover Policy 2022. Furthermore details of how all
redundant crossovers will be reinstated as footpaths shall be submitted.

Thereafter the accesses and footpaths shall be constructed in accordance with the approved
plans and maintained throughout the life time of the development.

REASON

To ensure that the local highways network is protected from adverse impacts in compliance
with Policies DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policy T6 of
the London Plan (2021).

19. NONSC SUDS and Drainage

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 138 8 of 15



No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management and water efficiency has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall:

i. Provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. Include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. Provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. Provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development;

vi. Provide details of how the dwellings will achieve a water efficiency standard of no more
than 110 litres per person per day maximum water consumption.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy
DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020) and Policies SI2 and S| 13 of the London
Plan (2021).

20. NONSC Fire Strategy

Prior to above ground level works, an updated Fire Strategy shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The updated Fire Strategy shall include
details of the materials to be used to construct the development. The development shall
thereafter be completed in accordance with the approved updated Fire Strategy.

REASON

To ensure that the development meets Fire Safety Standards in accordance with Policy D12
of the London Plan (2021).

Informatives

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 139 9 of 15



planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London Borough of
Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of
Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule
2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must notify the London
Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction works (by submitting a
Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by submitting an Assumption of
Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk. The Council will then issue a
Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL that is payable. Failure to submit
a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and Commencement Notice prior to commencement of
the development may result in surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

3. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 140 10 of 15



You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61
of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other
than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises.

4. 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the installation of a vehicular crossover, which will be constructed
by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence to obstruct or
open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: - Highways
Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

5. 152 Asbestos informative

Appropriate testing, demolition and/or removal of any asbestos containing material (ACM)
should be carried out strictly in accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety
Executive.

6.

A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for
discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit is
deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act
1991. We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to
minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit enquiries should be directed
to Thames Water's Risk Management Team and application forms should be completed on
line.

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMCI 7 Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
DMEI 10 Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions

DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMH 2 Housing Mix

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 141 11 of 15



DMHB 14
DMHB 15
DMHB 16
DMHB 17
DMHB 18
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 5
DMT 6
DMTC 3
DMTC 4
LPP D1
LPP D3
LPP D4
LPP D5
LPP D6
LPP D7
LPP E9
LPP H1
LPP H2
LPP SD7

LPP SI12
LPP SI13
LPP SI2
LPP T5
LPP T6
LPP T6.1
NPPF11 -23
NPPF12 -23
NPPF2 -23
NPPF4 -23
NPPF5 -23
NPPF6 -23
NPPF9 -23

Trees and Landscaping

Planning for Safer Places

Housing Standards

Residential Density

Private Outdoor Amenity Space

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

Maintaining the Viability of Local Centres and Local Parades
Amenity and Town Centre Uses

(2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth
(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards

(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Retail, markets and hot food takeaways

(2021) Increasing housing supply

(2021) Small sites

(2021) Town centres: development principles and Development Plan
Documents

(2021) Flood risk management

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

(2021) Residential parking

NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 23 - Decision making

NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF6 23 - Building a strong, competitive economy
NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 142 12 of 15



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

4482/A/82/1130 152 Uxbridge Road Hayes
New shopfront garages and internal altertions.
Decision: 02-11-1982 Approved

4482/B/82/9074 152 Uxbridge Road Hayes
Erection of two internally illuminated fascia signs and one illuminated box sign.
Decision: 02-11-1982  Approved

4482/C/92/3532 152 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Erection of an advertisement hoarding (retrospective application)
Decision: 05-05-1992 Refused Appeal: 24-11-1992 Dismissed
4482/PRC/2021/60 152-154 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Demolition of existing building and erection of a 3 storey building containing 9 x 2 bed
apartments, 1 no retail unit, car and cycle parking, bin stores and associated development
thereto

Decision: 19-07-2021 Objection

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 143 13 of 15



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

PT1.H1

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 7
DMEI 2
DMEI 9
DMEI 10
DMH 2
DMHB 11
DMHB 12
DMHB 14
DMHB 15
DMHB 16
DMHB 17
DMHB 18
DMT 1
DMT 2
DMT 5
DMT 6

LPP E9

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Housing Growth

Planning Obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy
Reducing Carbon Emissions

Management of Flood Risk

Water Management, Efficiency and Quality
Housing Mix

Design of New Development

Streets and Public Realm

Trees and Landscaping

Planning for Safer Places

Housing Standards

Residential Density

Private Outdoor Amenity Space

Managing Transport Impacts

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

(2021) Retail, markets and hot food takeaways

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 144

14 of 15



LPP SD7

NPPF11 -23
NPPF12 -23
NPPF2 -23
NPPF4 -23
NPPF5 -23
NPPF6 -23
NPPF9 -23
LPP D1
LPP D3
LPP D4
LPP D5
LPP D6
LPP D7
LPP H1
LPP H2
LPP SI12
LPP SI13
LPP SI2
LPP T5
LPP T6
LPP T6.1
DMTC 3

DMTC 4

(2021) Town centres: development principles and Development Plan
Documents

NPPF11 23 - Making effective use of land

NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places
NPPF2 2023 - Achieving sustainable development
NPPF4 23 - Decision making

NPPF5 23 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
NPPF6 23 - Building a strong, competitive economy
NPPF9 23 - Promoting sustainable transport

(2021) London's form, character and capacity for growth
(2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
(2021) Delivering good design

(2021) Inclusive design

(2021) Housing quality and standards

(2021) Accessible housing

(2021) Increasing housing supply

(2021) Small sites

(2021) Flood risk management

(2021) Sustainable drainage

(2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

(2021) Cycling

(2021) Car parking

(2021) Residential parking

Maintaining the Viability of Local Centres and Local Parades

Amenity and Town Centre Uses

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 145

15 of 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Rhian Thomas 17997/APP/2024/1610
Date Application | 15-07-24 Statutory / Agreed | 04/10/24
Valid: Determination

Deadline:
Application Full Ward: Hayes
Type:
Applicant: Ardesh Sarangam
Site Address: Yeading Infant School, Carlyon Road, Hayes
Proposal: Installation of solar panels on the school roofs.
Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to

Recommendation: conditions

Reason Reported Required under Part 6 of the Planning Scheme of
to Committee: Delegation (the Council is the Applicant)

HILLINGDON

LONDON

www.hillingdon.gov.uk

Page 147




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Executive Summary

Planning permission is sought for the installation of 344 solar panels on the pitched
roofs of the existing Locally Listed school building.

The proposed development complies with the relevant planning policies at Local,
National and Regional level. The proposed development would not cause harm to
the visual amenities of the street scene, nor would it harm the character and
appearance of the Locally Listed Building. There would be no harm caused to the
amenities of neighbouring properties nor the local highway network.

A full assessment of the application has been made in the below sections of this
Committee report.

As such the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set
out in Appendix 1.

The Site and Locality

The development site is located on the south side of Carlyon Road. The site
comprises the Yeading Infant and Nursery School Campus. The site is made up
of numerous single and two storey buildings which are both Locally Listed and
finished in various materials, as well as benefiting from both soft and hard
landscaping.

The application building is locally listed and based on the Council's GIS system,
part of development site and school grounds is located within Flood Zone 2.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1b and approximately
50 metres north of the site is an area of open space which is designated as Green
Belt land.

Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 148



A eadlitg
Junior School
Yoading Infant and
= Nursary Schood
100m
o]
o
o1
07—
o L1 O B R
20m &0mn B0m &0m
Oom 100m 200m
Scale 1:2500

Figure 2: Street View Images of the Application Property

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 149




Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 150



3 Proposal

3.1 Planning permission is sought for the installation of solar panels to the roof of the
school.

3.2  During the process of the application, updated drawings were sought and received
to include drawing numbers to ensure that a clear and concise decision notice can
be issued.

3.3 Figure 3: Proposed Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be found in
the Committee Plan Pack)

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 151



1 T

" solar for schools

Yeading Infants & Nursery School - Roof Plan with Proposed
Installation

Scale [ 1: 300

0 SCALE: 1100 0

Roof 05
View South East

Roof 04
View South West

.~ Single Storey Building

NAME ATE
Solar For Schools
TIE
Yending Infants & Mursery School - Cress Section
MGR APPR
e = | SoEw

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 152




v solar for schools| owe:1

,,,,,, -

ram

v solar for schools|owe:1

Pioect Noe

et et ot rnsy S - S Eveon Py

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 153




[=
O
O

v solar for schools| owe: 1

0 Som | e i Sl s i o

seale

" solar for schools|owe: 1

—

0 50m ot Vi ity . Wi S P

Seale

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 154



5 Planning Policy

5.1 A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

6 Consultations and Representations
6.1 48 neighbouring properties were consulted on the application by letter dated 05-
08-24. The consultation period expired 27-08-24. No representations have been

received.

6.2 Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2 (below). Full copies of
the responses have also separately been made available to Members.

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments Planning Officer
Response

Highways Officer

Access to the application site would be unaffected, The consultation
however, whilst the proposed development would be | response from the
unlikely to impact upon the local highway network, Highways Officer has
concerns would be raised regarding additional been noted.

vehicle movements generated by the construction
works which would be likely to impact on access and
parking for the school and local highway network,
therefore a condition should be attached to any
approval which requires the submission of a CLP to
concur with Construction Logistics Planning (CLP)
Guidance Version: v1.2 (April 2021) issued by
Construction Logistics and Community Safety
(CLOCS) which must include, but would not be
restricted to, the following:

. Phasing of works which should occur during
school holidays

. Site hours

. Vehicular access and pedestrian access
during the construction phase

. Car parking for vehicles displaced during the
construction phase

. Contractor parking and off-street parking
facilities for all vehicles linked to the site

. Contractor compound including office, welfare
facilities and materials storage.

. Wheel wash facilities and road sweep

. Dust suppression

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 155



. HGV routes to and from the site including
swept path analysis for large vehicles
particularly for solar panel delivery

. HGV routes within the site which should
include on-site turning

. HGV delivery hours avoiding peak hours and
school hours

Recommendation

The Highway Authority are satisfied that the proposal
would not discernibly exacerbate congestion or
parking stress and would not raise any measurable
highway safety concerns and would therefore offer
no objection to the application but would require the
following conditions to be applied to any approval:

Conditions

No works shall commence on site until a
Construction Logistics Plan to concur with
Construction Logistics Planning (CLP) Guidance
Version: v1.2 (April 2021) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the LPA.

REASON: To be in accordance with the London
Plan (2021) Policy T4 Assessing and Mitigating
Transport Impacts and Policy T7 Deliveries,
Servicing and Construction

Conservation and Urban Design Officer

This is a 1930s purpose-built School single storey
with clay tiled roof and larger gabled central section. | The comments from
It is locally listed and makes a positive contribution to | the Conservation and
the streetscape. The solar panels are located within | Urban Design Officer
the courtyard and to the rear facing slopes. Whilst are noted.

not visually ideal and causing a low level of harm
they have been located as sensitively as possible to
the rear and away from the principal elevation. Given
that they would provide clean energy and tackle
climate change we believe that the harm is balanced
with positive benefits. As such we would not object.

7 Planning Assessment

7.1 Principle of Development

7.2  The application site accommodates a school therefore benefiting from education
use. There is significant policy support within the development for the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 156



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

enhancement of schools and other educational facilities. Given that the application
does not propose to alter the existing use of the site and would provide
considerable energy efficiency benefits therefore an enhancement to an existing
education facility, the principle of development is acceptable.

Residential Amenity

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) states
that all new development should seek to protect the amenity of surrounding land
and buildings, particularly residential properties.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that development proposals should not
adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and
open space.

Given the nature of the proposal and the separation from residential properties, it
is considered that the proposal would not adversely affect the amenities of
neighbouring occupiers.

The proposed solar panels would be fitted with anti-glare technology by including
a roughness to the glass panel to diffuse the light reflection. It is not considered
that there would be an unacceptable level of glare created to the adjacent school
building at Yeading primary School nor the residential property at number 6
Carlyon Road, given the location of the solar panels on the rear roof slopes.

Design / Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area and Locally Listed
Building

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (January 2020) requires all development to be designed to
the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design, either
complementing or improving the character and appearance of the area.

Policy DMHB 3 of the Local Plan part 2 2020) states that:

A) There is a general presumption in favour of the retention of buildings, structures
and features included in the Local List. The Council will take into account the effect
of a proposal on the building's significance and the scale of any harm of loss when
considering planning applications, including those for major alterations and
extensions. Proposals will be permitted where they retain the significance,
appearance, character or setting of a Locally Listed Building.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the structure and the impact of the proposals
on the significance of the Locally Listed Building.

The proposed development includes the provision of 344 Solar panels to the
pitched roof of the existing infant and nursery school. The school is a Locally Listed
Building. The proposed panels as shown on the proposed roof plan (drawing 4)
would be located on the rear (south) and side (east) roof slopes and would not be

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 157



712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

readily visible from the front, principal elevation, preserving its character and
appearance. The panels would be set in from the external edge of the pitch roofs
and would be set down from the main ridgeline of the building.

The Council's Conservation and Urban Desing Officer was consulted on the
application. In summary the Conservation Officer has no objection to their siting
and appearance given their location on the rear and side roof slopes. The
development has been designed in a way to minimise the impact to the Locally
Listed Building and street scene image as they have been positioned away from
the principal elevation

It should be noted that in terms of its design, the proposed solar panels would
mostly comply with permitted development under Part 14, Class J. However, as
the panels would be located within one meter of the external edge of the roof,
planning permission is required. As discussed in the above paragraphs, it is not
considered that the proposed solar panels would cause significant harm to the
character and appearance or the historic fabric of the Locally Listed Building nor
the surrounding area given their location of the side and rear roof slopes away
from the principal elevation.

Any potential harm would be limited and where harm is identified the development
plan encourages decision makers to apply the planning balance. In this case there
are significant benefits in terms of energy efficiency and carbon reduction which
would clearly outweigh the limited harm identified.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development complies with the
objectives of Policies DMHB 3 and DMHB 11 of the Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Highways and Parking

The parking provision and traffic generation would remain unaffected by the
proposal, in accordance with Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2:
Development Management Policies (2020). Furthermore, the Highways Officer
has no objections to the proposal, subject to the submission of a Construction
Logistics Plan as there are concerns over the additional vehicle movements
generated by the construction works which have the potential to impact access
and parking for the school and local highway network and the functionality of the
school.

Noise

It is not considered that the proposed development would lead to an increase in
noise generated from the site. As such no further comment is made.

Air Quality

The application site is not located within an Air Quality Focus Area. The proposed
development would provide a source of renewable energy helping towards the

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 158



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

1.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

zero-carbon emission scheme. As such no further information is required in
respect of air quality.

Accessibility

Given the proposed development is solely for solar panels to the roof of the
existing school. It is not considered that there would be any accessibility concerns
generated.

Trees and Landscaping

The proposed development would not have a negative impact on any trees or
landscaping within the site. Any trees are located a sufficient distance away from
the proposed development as to not be impacted. The site is not located within an
area covered by a tree preservation order nor is it located within a Conservation
Area. A such, no further information is required.

Ecology

It is not considered the proposed development would have a negative impact on
ecology in the surrounding area. As such, no further information is required.

Flooding and Drainage

Part of the application site is located within Flood Zone 2. However, as the
proposed development is located on the roof of the existing school, there would
be no chance of increased flooding. As such, no further information is required.

Land Contamination

The application site is not located upon contaminated land, and given the nature
of the prosed development on the roof slopes of the existing school, there is no
requirement for further information.

Energy

Policy DMEI 2 of the Local Plan Part 2 (2020) states that:

A) All developments are required to make the fullest contribution to minimising
carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with London Plan targets.

B) All major development7 proposals must be accompanied by an energy
assessment showing how these reductions will be achieved.

C) Proposals that fail to take reasonable steps to achieve the required savings will
be resisted. However, where it is clearly demonstrated that the targets for carbon
emissions cannot be met onsite, the Council may approve the application and
seek an off-site contribution to make up for the shortfall.

Policy SI 2 and 3 of the London Plan (2021) supports the provision of renewable
energy to minimis greenhouse gas emissions.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 159



7.35

7.36

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.1

9.2

9.3

Policy DMCI 2 of the Local Plan Part 2 (2020) supports refurbishment, re-use and
provision of new community infrastructure.

The proposed development is for the installation of 344 solar panels to the pitched
roof of the existing school with a capacity of 155kWp. The applicant has provided
a product specification sheet which shows that the proposed solar panels will
provide between 420-440W of power output, include an anti-glare design. The
proposed development will contribute towards a zero-carbon electricity scheme
and the principle of the development will comply with the overall objectives of
Policies Sl 2 and 3 of the London Plan (2021) and Policies DMEI 2 and DMCI 2 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Other Matters

Human Rights

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

Local Finance Considerations and CIL

Not applicable. The proposed development is not CIL liable.
Conclusion / Planning Balance

Planning permission is sought for the Installation of solar panels on the school
roofs.

The proposal would not cause harm to the visual amenity of the street scene, nor
would it have detrimental harm to the character and appearance of the Locally
Listed Building. The proposed solar panels would provide the school with a
renewable energy source and would assist in reducing carbon emissions.

The proposal is considered to comply with the Development Plan and no material
considerations indicate that a contrary decision should be taken. Consequently,
the application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1 (below).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 160



10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's
website here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this
report and using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to
inspect electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — [DATE]

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 161



APPENDICES
Planning Application

17997/APP/2024/1610

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 162 1 0f 11



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans

Location Plan

Yeading Infants and Nursery - Scaled Map

Yeading Infants and Nursery School - Cross Section

Yeading Infant and Nursery School - Western elevation Plan - DWG 1

Yeading Infant and Nursery School - Northern elevation Plan - DWG 1

Yeading Infant and Nursery School - Southern elevation Plan - DWG 1

Yeading Infant and Nursery School - Eastern elevation Plan - DWG 1

Yeading Infant and Nursery School -Roof Plan with Proposed Installation - DWG 4

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. NONSC Removal of PV panels when no longer required

The solar PV equipment on the main roof will be removed as soon as reasonably practicable
when no longer required.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed development
does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building and
conservation area in accordance with Policies DMHB 3 and DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 (2020).

4. OM19 Construction Management Plan

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 163 2 of 11



Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a construction management
plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115 for
maximum permitted working hours).

(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads (including
wheel washing facilities).

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust through
minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy DMHB 11 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Informatives

1.

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within
the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to
take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

2. 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 164 3 of 11



Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section 61
of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction other
than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise
disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 (2012) and Part 2 (2020) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan (2021) and national guidance.

DMCI 2 New Community Infrastructure
DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions
DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk

DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping

DMHB 3 Locally Listed Buildings

DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D8 (2021) Public realm

LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 165 4 of 11



LPP SI3 (2021) Energy infrastructure
NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

NPPF14 -23 NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change

NPPF4 -23 NPPF4 23 - Decision making

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 166 5 of 11



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

17997/AA/98/2214 Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes

Erection of a single storey extension to provide an assembly hall addition, two changing
rooms and toilet

Decision: 09-03-1999  Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/AB/99/0138 Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes

Renewal of planning permission ref.17997M/93/1919 dated 25/01/94; Retention of double
mobile classroom

Decision: 23-02-1999  Approve Limited
Time

17997/APP/2000/2437  Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes

RENEWAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF. 17997T/95/782 DATED 03/07/95;
RETENTION OF A MOBILE CLASSROOM

Decision: 12-01-2001 Approve Limited
Time

17997/APP/2001/252 Yeading Infant School Carlyon Road Hayes
ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION WITHIN THE SCHOOL COURTYARD

Decision: 09-04-2001 Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/APP/2002/2443  Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes

ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY AND SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION (INVOLVING
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING MODULAR CLASSROOM)

Decision: 21-01-2003 Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/APP/2007/159 Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes

CHANGE OF USE OF CARETAKERS DWELLING (CLASS C3) TO ANCILLARY
EDUCATION USE TO PROVIDE MEETING ROOM, CRECHE FACILITY FOR 4/5
CHILDREN AND OFFICE

Decision: 14-06-2007 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 167 6 of 11



17997/APP/2007/2169  Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION TO THE SOUTH-EAST
ELEVATION OF THE EXISTING JUNIOR SCHOOL BUILDING.

Decision: 13-09-2007  Approved

17997/APP/2007/2334  Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes

DETAILS OF HOURS OF USE - CONDITION 2, ACCESS ARRANGEMENTS -
CONDITION 3, AND SECURITY MEASURES - CONDITION 8 IN COMPLIANCE WITH
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.17997/APP/2007/159 DATED 14/06/2007:

CHANGE OF USE OF CARETAKERS DWELLING (CLASS C3) TO ANCILLARY
EDUCATION USE TO PROVIDE MEETING ROOM, CRECHE FACILITY FOR 4/5
CHILDREN AND OFFICE.

Decision: 17-09-2007 Approved

17997/APP/2009/1148  Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes

Single storey building for use as childrens and adults centre, with associated parking and
play area.

Decision: 31-07-2009 Approved

17997/APP/2010/902 Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes

Details in compliance with conditions 3 (ground levels), 4 (storage of refuse bins), 5
(boundary treatment), 6 (tree survey), 8 (tree protection), 9 (landscape scheme), 11
(landscape maintenance), 13 (access to building), 15 (security measures), 16 (parking
arrangements), 17 (demolition and construction management plan), 18 (secure cycle
storage), 19 (sustainable urban drainage) and 20 (materials) of planning permission ref:
17997/APP/2009/1148 dated 31/07/2009: Single storey building for use as childrens and
adults centre, with associated parking and play area.

Decision: 04-07-2012  Approved

17997/APP/2011/2029  Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes
Erection of single storey rear extension to educational premises (former caretaker's house).
Decision: 01-11-2011 Approved

17997/APP/2011/2923  Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes

Single storey conservatory extension and enclosed link between existing school and
childrens centre.

Decision: 25-04-2012 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 168 7 of 11



17997/APP/2013/1343  Yeading Infant School Carlyon Road Hayes

Extension of existing school to provide a new classroom and a new reading room, with
associated internal and external works.

Decision: 18-07-2013  Approved

17997/APP/2013/3039  Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes

Details pursuant to condition 7 (Sustainable Water Management) of planning permission
17997/APP/2013/1343 dated 18/07/2013 for the extension of existing school to provide a
new classroom and a new reading room, with associated internal and external works.

Decision: 10-12-2013 Approved

17997/APP/2020/1111  Yeading Infant School Carlyon Road Hayes

Demolition of an existing modular classroom unit and erection of a similar modular unit
comprising of two classrooms with all associated external works

Decision: 27-05-2020 Approved

17997/APP/2020/4257  Yeading Infant School Carlyon Road Hayes
Proposed alteration and extension of the existing kitchen and dining hall building
Decision: 11-02-2021 Approved

17997/APP/2023/3294  Yeading Infant School Carlyon Road Hayes

Demolition of existing single storey buildings and the erection of a new single storey kitchen
and dining hall facility with associated external works.

Decision: 08-04-2024 Approved

17997/B/84/1220 Yeading Infant & Junior Schools Carlyon Road Hayes
Formation of access (P)

Decision: 12-09-1984 Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/C/84/1950 Yeading Infant & Junior Schools Carlyon Road Hayes
Householder dev. (small extension,garage etc) (P)

Decision: 04-01-1985 Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/E/86/2194 Yeading Infant & Junior Schools Carlyon Road Hayes
Installation of self closing doors

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 169 8 of 11



Decision: 21-01-1987  Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/F/87/2179 Yeading Infant & Junior Schools Carlyon Road Hayes
Erection of chain link fence to a height of 3.6M along the frontage of school to Carlyon Road
Decision: 14-12-1987 Approved

17997/G/90/0256 Yeading Primary School Carlyon Road Hayes
Erection of a 3.6m high chain link fence to enclose school playing fields

Decision: 21-03-1990 Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/K/92/0515 Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes

Erection of a radio base station including a prefabricated equipment cabin, 2 microwave
dishes and security fencing

Decision: 08-07-1992 Approved

17997/L/93/1850 Yeading Junior School Carlyon Road Hayes
Erection of a front boundary wall
Decision: 10-01-1994 Approved

17997/M/93/1919 Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes
Erection of a double mobile classroom unit

Decision: 25-01-1994 Approve Limited
Time

17997/N/93/1976 Yeading Infant School Carlyon Road Hayes
Erection of a nursery school

Decision: 20-04-1994 Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/PRC/2018/190 Yeading Infant School Carlyon Road Hayes
Replacing temporary classrooms; new kitchen and dining hall.

Decision: 20-08-2020 No Further
Action(P)

17997/S/94/1215 Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 170 9 of 11



Details of external materials in compliance with condition 5 of planning permission ref.
17997N/93/ 1976 dated 20/04/94; Erection of a nursery school

Decision: 05-10-1994 Approve
Deemed Hill.

17997/T/95/0782 Yeading Infants School Carlyon Road Hayes
Erection of a double mobile classroom

Decision: 03-07-1995 Approve Limited
Time

17997/X/95/1836 Yeading Infant & Junior Schools Carlyon Road Hayes

Improvements to existing educational premises involving a single storey extension to
Infants School, part single storey, part two storey extension to Junior School, toilet block
extension, demolition of old nursery and Junior School single buildings, construction of hard
play areas, formation of vehicular turning circle on Carlyon Road and change of use of
vacant land to form enlarged school playing field

Decision: 16-02-1996 Approved

17997/Y/96/1082 Yeading Infant & Junior Schools Carlyon Road Hayes

Details of landscaping scheme including siting of hard play areas in compliance with
condition 3 of planning permission ref.17997X/95/1836 dated 16/02/96; Improvements to
existing educational premises involving a single storey extension to Infants School, part
single storey, part two storey extension to Junior School, toilet block extension, demolition
of old nursery and Junior School single buildings, construction of hard play areas, formation
of vehicular turning circle on Carlyon Road and change of use of vacant land to form
enlarged school playing field

Decision: 24-09-1999 Approved

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 171 10 of 11



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
Part 2 Policies:

DMEI 2 Reducing Carbon Emissions
DMEI 9 Management of Flood Risk
DMCI 2 New Community Infrastructure
DMHB 3 Locally Listed Buildings
DMHB 11 Design of New Development
DMHB 12 Streets and Public Realm
DMHB 14 Trees and Landscaping
DMT 6 Vehicle Parking

NPPF12 -23 NPPF12 23 - Achieving well-designed and beautiful places

NPPF14 -23 NPPF14 23 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal

change
NPPF4 -23 NPPF4 23 - Decision making
LPP D3 (2021) Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach
LPP D8 (2021) Public realm
LPP SI2 (2021) Minimising greenhouse gas emissions
LPP SI3 (2021) Energy infrastructure

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 172 11 of 11



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Christos Chrysanthou 11242/APP/2024/1302

Date Application | 26-07-24 Statutory / Agreed | 04-10-24

Valid: Determination

Deadline:

Application Full Ward: Pinkwell

Type:

Applicant: London Borough of Hillingdon

Site Address: Pinkwell Primary School, Pinkwell Lane, Hayes,
Hillingdon, UB3 1PG

Proposal: Replacement of the existing timber fence with
3.0m high V mesh security fencing.

Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to

Recommendation:

Reason Reported
to Committee:

LONDON

conditions

Required under Part 6 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (the Council is the Applicant)

Page 173

www.hillingdon.gov.uk




Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

1 Executive Summary

1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the Replacement of the existing
timber fence with 3.0m high V mesh security fencing. The proposal is minor in
nature and is not considered harmful to the character and appearance of the area
or the openness of the adjacent Green belt.

1.2 More importantly the proposal will facilitate an improvement to the school which is
supported within the Development Plan at local and regional level and at national
level through the provisions of the Framework.

1.3  The planning application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the
conditions set out in Appendix 1. A condition is recommended to secure the
painting of the fencing along the western boundary in a dark green colour to enable
the proposal to assimilate with the adjacent Green Belt.

2 The Site and Locality

2.1 Pinkwell Primary School occupies an approximately 4.3 hectare irregularly shaped
plot located on the southern site of Pinkwell Lane in Hayes. The main school
building, a part single-storey and part two-storey building, and the playground
occupy the northern part of the site and the playing fields occupy the southern part
of the site. Three temporary classroom blocks are located towards the centre of
the site.

2.2 The school site is bounded to the north by Pinkwell Lane, beyond which is Pinkwell
Park and residential properties; to the east by Harlington Community School; and
to the south and west by open land falling within the Green Belt. Residential
properties fronting Pinkwell Lane abut part of the western boundary.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 2"4 October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 174



Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Play area

Ei

Figure 2: Street View Image of the Application Property

Hillingdon PIing Committee — 2"d October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 175



3 Proposal

3.1 The proposed scheme comprises the replacement of the existing timber fence to
a section of the school with 3.0m high V mesh fencing. The proposed fencing
would replace a section of timber fencing along the western boundary measuring
55metres, which is shown in the plan below, edged in green. The existing fencing
to be retained is also shown in the plan below, edged in red.

Figure 3: Proposed Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be found in
the Committee Plan Pack)

EXISTING AND PROPOSED FENCING PLAN

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 2"4 October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 176



4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

Figure 4: Proposed Elevations (please note — larger version of plan can be found
in the Committee Plan Pack)

=1 o ful

G0mm —g- BO0mm—#-

- —

 THS

2958mm
2958mm

1

et L
PROPOSED FENCE (BOLT-ON OPTION) PROPOSED FENCE (DIG-IN OPTION)
SCALE - 150 SCALE - 1:50

Relevant Planning History

A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

36 neighbours were consulted by letter dated 5" August 2024. The consultation

period ended on 27" August 2024. No comments were received.

Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2
(below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made available
to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations | Summary of Issues Planning Officer
Raised Response
None N/A N/A

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 2"4 October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 177



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments Planning Officer
Response

Access Officer

No accessibility concerns are raised. Noted.
Highway Authority

There are no highway objections to this proposal Noted.

Planning Assessment

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states that: Development proposals should:
D1) enhance local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively
respond to local distinctiveness through their layout, orientation, scale,
appearance and shape, with due regard to existing and emerging street hierarchy,
building types, forms and proportions.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies (2012) seeks
a quality of design in all new development that enhances and contributes to the
area in terms of form, scale and materials; is appropriate to the identity and context
of the townscape; and would improve the quality of the public realm and respect
local character.

Policy DMEI 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) states - New development adjacent to the Green Belt, Metropolitan
Open Land, Green Chains, Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation, Nature
Reserves, countryside, green spaces or the Blue Ribbon Network should
incorporate proposals to assimilate development into the surrounding area by the
use of extensive peripheral landscaping to site boundaries.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) states that new development will be required to be
designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design.

As shown in Figure 4 of this report, there are two installation options for the
fencing, one being ‘bolt-on’ and the other being ‘dig-in’. Regardless of which option
is installed, the appearance of the fencing would not differ. Overall, the proposal
would be read in the context of the school and would not attract undue attention
due to its unobtrusive and functional design.

In the interests of mitigating any visual impact on the openness of the adjacent
Green Belt a condition is recommended that the section of fencing along the
western boundary is painted in a dark green colour. This would help reduce any

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 2"4 October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 178



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

visibility of the fencing from the surroundings and provide a colour scheme that
would help the proposal assimilate with the Green belt site context.

The proposed scheme is considered to accord with Policy BE1 of the Local Plan:
Part One (2012), Policies DMEI 6 and DMHB 11 of the Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy D3 of the London Plan
(2021).

Impact on the amenity of the area

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states Part D7) that development proposals
should deliver appropriate outlook, privacy and amenity.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) seeks to ensure that development proposals do not
adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and
open space.

Due to the nature of the proposal, there are no envisaged impacts on the amenity
of the area. The proposed fencing would be erected on the western boundary
abutting a field and away from neighbouring dwellings on Pinkwell Lane.

The proposed scheme is considered to accord with Policy DMHB 11 of the Local
Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policy D3 of the
London Plan (2021).

Highway safety and parking

Policy T4 Part F of the London Plan (2021) states - Development proposals should
not increase road danger.

Policy T6 Part D of the London Plan (2021) states - The maximum car parking
standards set out in Policy T6 .1 Residential parking to Policy T6 .5 Non-residential
disabled persons parking should be applied to development proposals and used
to set local standards within Development Plans.

Policies DMT 1 and DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) require the Council to consider whether the traffic
generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway
and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or pedestrian
safety.

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies (2020) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the car
parking standards set out in Appendix C, Table 1 unless it can be demonstrated
that a deviation from the standard would not result in a deleterious impact on the
surrounding road network.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 2"4 October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 179



7.16 The Highway Authority do not raise an objection to the application. It is therefore
considered that the proposal would not exacerbate the demand for street parking
or prejudice highway safety, in accordance with Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and DMT
6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies
(2020) and Policies T4 and T6 of the London Plan (2021).

8 Other Matters

Human Rights

8.1  The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

8.2 Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

9 Conclusion / Planning Balance

9.1 Forthe reasons set out in this Committee Report, it is considered that the proposal
would comply with the objectives of national, regional and local planning policies
and guidance. It is therefore recommended that the application be approved,
subject to the imposition of the conditions set out in Appendix 1.

10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's
website here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this
report and using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to
inspect electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 2"4 October 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 180



APPENDICES
Planning Application

11242/APP/2024/1302

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 181 10f 10



Appendix 1: Recommended Conditions and Informatives

Conditions

1. COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 01 - Rev P02, 02 - Rev P02, 03 -
Rev P02, 04 - Rev P02 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2021).

3. Cowm7 Materials (Submission)

Notwithstanding the approved plans, the fencing hereby permitted to be erected along the
western boundary shall be painted in a dark green colour. Thereafter the development shall
be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 (2020).

Informatives

1. 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 182 2 0f 10



On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan Policies (2021).
Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies on 8
November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on 16 January 2020.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 183 30f 10



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

11242/APP/1999/2473  Pinkwell Infants School, Pinkwell Lane Hayes
ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO PROVIDE AN ADDITIONAL CLASSROOM
Decision: 14-02-2000 Approved

11242/APP/2000/1147  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes
ERECTION OF EXTENSIONS TO FORM TWO ADDITIONAL CLASSROOMS

Decision: 17-08-2000  Approve
Deemed Hill.

11242/APP/2000/2058 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO PROVIDE TWO ADDITIONAL
CLASSROOMS

Decision: 06-10-2000 Approve
Deemed Hill.

11242/APP/2003/64 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO PROVIDE A NEW COMMUNICATION
CENTRE

Decision: 24-02-2003  Approved

11242/APP/2003/948 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY BUILDING TO PROVIDE A NEW COMMUNICATION
CENTRE

Decision: 10-06-2003 Approved

11242/APP/2007/1130  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

ERECTION OF A DETACHED MODULAR BUILDING COMPRISING 2 CLASSROOMS
AND ANCILLARY FACILITIES.

Decision: 31-07-2007 Approved

11242/APP/2007/2552  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

ERECTION OF 2 DETACHED MODULAR BUILDINGS COMPRISING SINGLE
CLASSROOM AND REARRANGMENT OF EXISTING CAR PARKING FACILITIES.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 184 4 of 10



Decision: 03-10-2007  Approved

11242/APP/2008/3117  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

ERECTION OF TWO STOREY SIDE/REAR EXTENSION, NEW WINDOWS TO EXISTING
FLANK WALL AND EXTENSION TO EXISTING PLAYGROUND.

Decision: 07-01-2009 Approved

11242/APP/2009/1175  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes
Conversion and extension of existing school hall for use as new adult and children's centre.
Decision: 10-08-2009 Approved

11242/APP/2009/2114  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes
Two storey rear extension for use as hall.
Decision: 11-02-2010 Approved

11242/APP/2009/60 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Change of use from caretaker's residence to educational teaching rooms including
conversion of existing integral garage to teaching room, and alterations to door at side
(Retrospective application).

Decision: 18-03-2009 Approved

11242/APP/2010/2054  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Construction of a single storey building accommodating 2 combined classrooms (total floor
area 159 sq. metres) and toilet facilities.

Decision: 12-10-2010 Approved

11242/APP/2011/834 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes
Installation of temporary mobile double classroom for a period of 3 years.
Decision: 01-06-2011 Approved

11242/APP/2012/146 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes
Erection of a new two classroom extension with associated storage and toilet facilities.
Decision: 19-03-2012 Approved

11242/APP/2012/2877  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Expansion of school to include stand alone classroom block and extended nursery, dining
room, staff room, reception, library and classrooms with associated car parking and

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 185 50f 10



landscaping.
Decision: 19-12-2012 Withdrawn

11242/APP/2012/3116  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Expansion of school to include standalone classroom block and extended nursery, staff
room, reception, library and classrooms with associated car parking and landscaping.

Decision: 05-03-2013  Approved

11242/APP/2013/1115  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Non-material amendment to planning permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13
(expansion of school to include standalone classroom block and extended nursery, staff
room, reception, library and classrooms with associated car parking and landscaping) to
provide a small extension to the dining hall to improve circulation space.

Decision: 07-05-2013 Approved

11242/APP/2013/2024  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Details in compliance with condition 4 (materials) and 8 (fire emergency plan) of permission
11242/APP/2012/3116 (Expansion of school to include stand alone classroom block and
extended nursery, staff room, reception, library and classrooms with associated car parking
and landscaping).

Decision: 10-09-2013 Approved

11242/APP/2013/2109  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Details pursuant to conditions 6 (traffic management plan) and 16 (tree protection) of
planning permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13; Expansion of school to
include standalone classroom block and extended nursery, staff room, reception, library and
classrooms with associated car parking and landscaping.

Decision: 06-12-2013 Approved

11242/APP/2013/2218  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Details pursuant to condition 12 (electric vehicle charging

points) of planning permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated
08/03/13; Expansion of school to include standalone classroom block
and extended nursery, staff room, reception, library and classrooms
with associated car parking and landscaping.

Decision: 27-09-2013 Approved

11242/APP/2013/2409  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes
Details pursuant to condition 7 (lighting) of planning permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 186 6 of 10



dated 08/03/13; Expansion of school to include stand alone classroom block and extended
nursery, staffroom, reception, library and classrooms with associated car parking and
landscaping.

Decision: 09-10-2013  Approved

11242/APP/2013/3207  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Details in compliance with condition 5 (Sustainable Water Management) of planning
permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/2013; Expansion of school to include
standalone classroom block and extended nursery, staff room, reception, library and
classrooms with associated car parking and landscaping.

Decision: 17-04-2014 Approved

11242/APP/2014/1691  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Non-material amendment to planning permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13
(Expansion of school to include standalone classroom block and extended nursery, staff
room, reception, library and classrooms with associated car parking and landscaping) to
add air handling unit and ductwork to staff room roof; add attenuator units and guard rails to
KS2 block; include attenuators, omit louvre, and make minor changes to facade on Year 6
block; and to reduce the area of brown roof on the year 6 block.

Decision: 02-06-2014 Approved

11242/APP/2014/2423  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Details pursuant to condition 9 (car park management strategy) of planning permission ref:
11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13; Expansion of school to include stand alone
classroom block and extended nursery, staff room, reception, library and classrooms with
associated car parking and landscaping.

Decision: 15-07-2014 Approved

11242/APP/2014/2637  Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Non-material amendment to planning permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13
(expansion of school to include stand alone classroom block and extended nursery, staff
room, reception, library and classrooms with associated car parking and landscaping) to
make changes to the external finishes of the nursery extension.

Decision: 11-08-2014 Approved

11242/APP/2014/410 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Non-material amendment to planning permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13
to add a small (300mm) parapet between the existing ICT room roof and the new library
roof to ensure water-tightness (Expansion of school to include stand alone classroom block
and extended nursery, staffroom, reception, library and classrooms with associated car

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 187 7 of 10



parking and landscaping)
Decision: 26-02-2014 Approved

11242/APP/2014/413 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Details pursuant to condition 13 (Travel Plan and cycle stores) of planning permission ref:
11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13; Expansion of school to include standalone
classroom block and extended nursery, staff room, reception, library and classrooms with
associated car parking and landscaping.

Decision: 15-07-2014 Approved

11242/APP/2014/561 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Details in part compliance with condition 13 (Travel Plan & cycle storage) of planning
permission ref: 11242/APP/2012/3116 dated 08/03/13; Expansion of school to include stand
alone classroom block and extended nursery, staff room, reception, library and classrooms
with associated car parking and landscaping.

Decision: 15-07-2014 No Further
Action(P)

11242/F/90/2049 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Installation of two omni aerials and equipment cabin (Application for determination under
Section 64 of the Act)

Decision: 12-12-1990 General
Perm.Devt.

11242/G/92/0513 Pinkwell Junior School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Erection of a radio base station including metal stub tower, two microwave dishes and
prefabricated equipment cabin

Decision: 27-08-1992 Withdrawn

11242/H/92/1291 Pinkwell Junior School Pinkwell Lane Hayes
Installation of microwave dish tower (Application for determination under Section 64 of the
Act)
Decision: 10-08-1992 General
Perm.Deuvt.
11242/M/99/0090 Pinkwell Primary School Pinkwell Lane Hayes

Erection of a staffroom
Decision: 09-03-1999 Approve

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 188 8 of 10



Deemed Hill.

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 189 9 of 10



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

PT1.CI1

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 1
DMCI 2
DMEI 12
DMEI 14
DMEI 9
DMHB 11
DMHB 15
DMT 2
DMT 5
DMT 6
DMEI 4

DMEI 6

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

Retention of Existing Community Sport and Education Facilities
New Community Infrastructure

Development of Land Affected by Contamination

Air Quality

Management of Flood Risk

Design of New Development

Planning for Safer Places

Highways Impacts

Pedestrians and Cyclists

Vehicle Parking

Development on the Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land

Development in Green Edge Locations

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 190 10 of 10



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Committee Report Part 2 — Application Report

Case Officer: Christos Chrysanthou 4501/APP/2024/1618
Date Application | 18-06-24 Statutory / Agreed | 04-10-24
Valid: Determination
Deadline:
Application Full Ward: Colham &
Type: Cowley
Applicant: London Borough of Hillingdon
Site Address: Central Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Uxbridge,
UBS8 3EU
Proposal: Installation of an acoustic wall around Service
Yard.
Summary of GRANT planning permission subject to
Recommendation: conditions

Reason Reported
to Committee:

HILLINGDO

LONDON

Required under Part 6 of the Planning Scheme of
Delegation (the Council is the Applicant)

N

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Summary of Recommendation:

GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions set out in
Appendix 1.

Executive Summary

The development would provide a 4 metre high acoustic wall around the eastern
section of the service yard at the Harlington Road depot.

The development would benefit nearby residents with by way of a visual screen
and expected noise attenuation improving neighbouring residential amenity.

It is considered that the development would be read in the context of the existing
depot and would not adversely impact on the character and appearance of the
area. No changes are being sought to the onsite car parking layout and there
would be no impact on highway safety.

The development is therefore considered to accord with the Development Plan,
and it is recommended that planning permission be granted.

The Site and Locality

The application site is located on the west side of Harlington Road. The site is
currently used as a service yard and is part of the wider Harlington Road Depot.

The depot is used to support many of the Council’s services such as refuse
collection, road maintenance and other activities.

The area surrounding the application site is predominantly residential. To the
north, south and east of the depot are two storey dwellings and flatted
developments. To the west and northwest of the depot is Coney Green and
Bishopshalt School.

The application site is located on contaminated land and is within a critical
drainage area. It is also located just outside of the Hillingdon Village Conservation
Area and the Green Belt (which are to the west of the site).

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 192



Figure 1: Location Plan (application site edged red)

Figure 2: Street View Image of the Application Property

3 Proposal

3.1 The application proposes the installation of an acoustic wall around the eastern
section of the service yard within the depot.

3.2 The proposed acoustic wall would be formed of 1metre wide prestressed concrete
wall modules that are 4metres in height and constructed on 1.5metre deep
Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 193



foundations. The top half of the walls have a thickness of 15cm. The lower half of
the walls increases from 15cm to 1.2metres at the base.

Figure 3: Proposed Plan (please note — larger version of plan can be found in
the Committee Plan Pack)

Proposed Concrete
Wall -Acoustic Screen
(4m High x 40 m Long)
above existing site level
Indicative 4{
Redline
X Boundary

Figure 4: Proposed Elevations (please note — larger version of plan can be found
in the Committee Plan Pack)

Legend:

| 00 4 presveseed vl o, e
i on 1.5 s C35 mass e PRGN, 10,49 m el
|
{

@ 15 0eep 35 mass s tucton.
‘The fundaion 12 D¢ QUUNG-2e2d %
vy e mantar

130h00 @ Indicative Visual of the Wall Modules

1008 (o000 0.0 < < 0 o
INDICATIVE CROSS SECTION OF THE PROPOSED
CONCRETE WALL - ACOUSTIC SCREEN
SCALE 1:50
4000.00

INDICATIVE ELEVATION OF THE PROPOSED @ ) ® ) ) o )
CONCRETE WALL - ACOUSTIC SCREEN
SCALE 1:50 -

m

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 194



4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Relevant Planning History

A list of the relevant planning history related to the property can be found in
Appendix 2.

Planning Policy

A list of planning policies relevant to the consideration of the application can be
found in Appendix 3.

Consultations and Representations

63 neighbouring properties were originally consulted by letters dated 24-06-24.
The consultation period expired on 15-07-24.

No comments were received.

Representations received in response to public consultation are summarised in
Table 1 (below). Consultee responses received are summarised in Table 2
(below). Full copies of the responses have also separately been made available
to Members.

Table 1: Summary of Representations Received

Representations | Summary of Issues Planning Officer
Raised Response
None received. Not applicable. No comment.

Table 2: Summary of Consultee Responses

Consultee and Summary of Comments Planning
Officer
Response
Highway Officer:

The application proposes to erect a 4m x 40m acoustic wall | Noted.
within the London Borough of Hillingdon Central Depot which
would not encroach upon visibility and would be unlikely to have
a severe impact on the local highway network or highway safety
which would be acceptable.

The Highway Authority therefore has no objections to this
application which would be unlikely to cause highways and
traffic impact.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 195



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Contamination Officer:

Having considered the nature of the proposed development and | Noted and
its location, please be advised that we have no objection in | informatives
relation to the application on land contamination. However, | added.

land contamination informatives are recommend for the
planning application if approved.

Noise Specialist:
Noted.

No comment.

Planning Assessment
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF (2023) seeks the creation of high quality, beautiful
and sustainable buildings. Parts b) and c) of paragraph 135 of the NPPF (2023)
states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments are
visually attractive as a result of good architecture and are sympathetic to local
character and history, including the surrounding built environment.

Policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) require development proposals to
be of a high quality and to enhance the local context by delivering buildings and
spaces that positively respond to local distinctiveness.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012) states -
All new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new buildings,
alterations, extensions and the public realm which enhances the local
distinctiveness of the area, contributes to community cohesion and a sense of
place.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that all development will be required to be designed to the
highest standards and incorporate principles of good design. It should take into
account aspects including the scale of the development considering the height,
mass and bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and established street
patterns; building lines and streetscape rhythm and landscaping.

Policy DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) re-emphasises the need for new development to be well integrated
with the surrounding area and provides design criteria as to how this would be
achieved.

The site is located in a set back position off Harlington Road and the proposed
wall would be of limited visibility and read in the context of the existing depot. As
such, it is considered that the proposed development would not impact on the
character, appearance or visual amenity of the area, in accordance with Policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One- Strategic Policies (2012), Policies

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 196



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development
Management Policies (2020), Policies D3 and D4 of the London Plan (2021) and
the NPPF (2023).

Impact on neighbours

Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) states Part D7) that development proposals
should deliver appropriate outlook, privacy and amenity.

Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies (2020) seeks to ensure that development proposals do not
adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and
open space. The supporting text for this policy states that the Council will expect
new development proposals to carefully consider layout and massing in order to
ensure development does not result in an increased sense of enclosure and loss
of outlook.

There are nearby residential properties to the east of the application site on
Harlington Road. The proposed wall would be sited away from these neighbouring
properties with separation distances of approximately 22 metres to the nearest
neighbouring property No.126 Harlington Road and 27 metres to Thorney Court.

Taking these factors into account, it is considered that the proposed development
would not result in a loss of light, outlook or sense of dominance for the
neighbouring occupiers.

It is therefore considered that the proposed amendments would not adversely
impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers, in accordance with
Policy DMHB 11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020), Policy D3 of the London Plan (2021) and the NPPF (2023).

Noise

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) states that in order to reduce, manage and
mitigate noise to improve health and quality of life, residential and non-aviation
development proposals should manage noise by avoiding significant adverse
noise impacts on health and quality of life.

The Depot benefits from numerous physical barriers to minimise the transmission
of noise, including solid concrete walls around the gritting storage area and
building situated adjacent to the waste management area. The service yard is an
operational area used for the processing and storing of loose wastes within bays
and benefits from a 2.5 metres high solid concrete retaining wall along the
southern section.

The proposed concrete wall will provide an additional 40 metres wide & 4 metre
high barrier around the eastern section of the service yard which is as close to the
sources of noise as practicable.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 197



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

The development would therefore improve sound insulation of the service yard
and in turn reduce noise levels from neighbouring residential receptors. The
barrier would also be providing a visual screen which would further benefit the
residential amenity of neighbouring residents.

Due to the modular form of construction, it is considered that there would unlikely
be any undue noise, nuisance and disturbance during the construction phase.

As detailed in Table 2 of this report, the Council’'s Noise specialist has been
consulted and does not raise an objection or recommend any conditions.

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021) states that new residential development
should not exceed the maximum parking standards set out in Table 10.3.

Policy DMT 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that development proposals will be required to meet the
transport needs of the development and address its transport impacts in a
sustainable manner.

Policy DMT 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that proposals must ensure that safe and efficient vehicular
access to the highway network is provided.

Policy DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) requires that proposals comply with the Council's parking
standards in order to facilitate sustainable development and address issues
relating to congestion and amenity.

As detailed in Table 2 of this report, the Highway Authority have been consulted
and do not raise an objection. No conditions are recommended.

Having regard to the Highway Authority’s comments, the development would
accord with Policy T6 of the London Plan (2021) and Policies DMT 1, DMT 2 and
DMT 6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy Sl 12 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should
ensure that flood risk is minimised and mitigated, and that residual risk is
addressed.

Policy Sl 13 of the London Plan (2021) states that development proposals should
aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure that surface water run-off is
managed as close to its source as possible.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 198



7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

Policy DMEI 9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management
Policies (2020) states that proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for
flood risk mitigation, or which would increase the risk or consequences of flooding,
will be refused.

Policy DMEI 10 states that development within areas identified at risk from surface
water flooding which fail to make adequate provision for the control and reduction
of surface water runoff rates will be refused.

The site is in Flood Zone 1 and within a Critical Drainage Area (CDA) identified in
the Surface Water Management Plan (SWMP) for Hillingdon. A CDA is the
catchment area from which surface water drains and contributes to drainage
problems.

Due to the nature of the proposal a full SuDS scheme would in this instance not
be required. In the event of this application being recommended for approval, an
informative would be attached with further guidance on how the applicant can
reduce the surface water from the site entering the sewers.

Subject to the above informative, it is considered that the development would not
significantly increase the risk of surface water flooding at the site or elsewhere in
compliance with Policies DMEI 9 and DMEI 10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Development Management Policies (2020) and Policies SI 12 and Sl 13 of
the London Plan (2021).

Land Contamination

Policy DMEI 12 of the Local Plan: Part Two (2020) requires proposals for
development on potentially contaminated sites to be accompanied by at least an
initial study of the likely contaminants. Conditions will be imposed where planning
permission is given for development on land affected by contamination to ensure
all the necessary remedial works are implemented, prior to commencement of
development.

Due to the limited scale of the proposal, it is considered that the development
would be unlikely to give rise to any land contamination issues.

As detailed in Table 2 of this report, the Council’s land contamination officer has
been consulted and does not raise an objection subject to informatives.

Subject to the informatives recommended by the Council’s land contamination
officer, that would be attached to any approval, the proposal would accord with
DMEI 12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Development Management Policies
(2020).

Other Matters

Human Rights

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press

Page 199



8.1  The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself.
This Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on
Human Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to
the applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been
balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed
through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government
Guidance.

Equality

8.2 Due consideration has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act with regard
to the Public Sector Equality Duty in the assessment of this planning application.
No adverse equality impacts are considered to arise from the proposal.

9 Conclusion / Planning Balance

9.1  Forthe reasons set out in this Committee Report, it is considered that the proposal
would comply with the objectives of national, regional and local planning policies
and guidance. It is therefore recommended that the application be approved,
subject to the imposition of the conditions set out in Appendix 1.

10 Background Papers

10.1 Relevant published policies and documents taken into account in respect of this
application are set out in the report. Documents associated with the application
(except exempt or confidential information) are available on the Council's
website here, by entering the planning application number at the top of this
report and using the search facility. Planning applications are also available to
inspect electronically at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW upon
appointment, by contacting Planning Services at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.

Hillingdon Planning Committee — 5" September 2024

PART 1 — Members, Public & Press
Page 200



APPENDICES
Planning Application

4501/APP/2024/1618

Delegated -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 201



1. COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 6718-ACC-00-ZZ-DR-A-1001 P1,
6718-ACC-00-ZZ-DR-A-1003 P1, 6718-ACC-00-ZZ-DR-A-1004 P1 and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1
(November 2012) and 2 (January 2020) and the London Plan (2021).

Informatives

1. 162 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2. 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant Local Plan Part 2 (2020), then London Plan Policies (2021).
Hillingdon's Full Council adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies on 8
November 2012 and the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 on 16 January 2020.

3.

The site lies in a Critical Drainage Area (CDA) identified in the Surface Water Management
Plan (SWMP) for Hillingdon. Therefore the water from the site entering the sewers should
minimised:

- Water run off from any hard paving associated with the development should be directed to
a soakaway, or tank or made permeable or be collected and directed to a permeable area, or

Delegated -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 202 20f7



it would need an additional permission.

- A water butt should be incorporated.

- No drainage to support the development should be connected to any existing surface water
network, other than as an overflow.

4.

Construction Techniques - It is recommended that the ground penetrating structure/s /
extension / outbuilding / porch / building / electrical supply cables and panels is/are designed
and constructed to prevent/minimise the possible entry of any migrating landfill gas/ground
gas. Please contact your building surveyor and/or architect if you require advice concerning
suitable construction techniques.

5.

There is a possibility there may be some contaminating substances in the ground at the site.
Our contaminated land record shows the site to be on a former contaminated land use
identified as yards (various) as well as infilled/possibly infilled site. We would advise persons
working on site to take basic precautions in relation to any contamination they may find.

Delegated -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 203 30f7



Appendix 2: Relevant Planning History

4501/AA/82/0999 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Retention of permission (base unknown)(P)

Decision: 16-12-1982 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/AB/82/1120 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Commercial dev. - 306sg.m. (Full)(P)

Decision: 01-09-1982 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/AC/82/1154 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Change of use

Decision: 08-09-1982 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/AD/83/0305 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Erection of canteen extension and resiting of double garage (Section 53 determination).

Decision: 28-04-1983 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/AE/83/0953 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Extension/Alterations to Commercial premises (P) of 30 sq.m.

Decision: 08-09-1983 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/AG/85/1386 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Extension/Alterations to Industrial premises (P) of 150 sg.m.

Decision: 30-09-1985 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/AH/85/1478 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Office development - 200sg.m. (Full)(P)
Decision: 01-11-1985 Approve

Delegated -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 204 40of 7



Deemed Hill.

4501/AN/89/0649 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Retention of a temporary building for use as office purposes for a 15 week period.

Decision: 07-06-1989 Approve Limited
Time

4501/APP/2000/919 Harlington Road Depot Harlington Road Hillingdon

ERECTION OF TWO STOREY TERRAPIN OFFICES (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF
EXISTING BLOCK)

Decision: 30-10-2001 No Further
Action(P)

4501/APP/2009/535 Harlington Road Depot Harlington Road Hillingdon

Erection of 139 residential units, consisting of a mix of houses and apartments with
associated car parking and amenity space (involving demolition of existing buildings)
(Outline application).

Decision: 08-11-2013 Withdrawn

4501/APP/2021/3310 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon

Demolition of an existing lorry diesel pump station and installation of a new diesel pump
station and canopy with photovoltaic cell and SUDS/rain gardens to periphery and all
associated road woks

Decision: 24-12-2021 Approved

4501/AZ/95/1209 Harlington Road Depot Harlington Road Hillingdon
Erection of a two storey office building

Decision: 20-09-1995 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/BB/95/1931 Harlington Road Depot Harlington Road Hillingdon
Installation of two lighting columns

Decision: 10-07-1996 No Further
Action(P)

4501/BC/98/3033 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Erection of an 8 metre high flagpole

Delegated -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 205 50f7



Decision: 21-05-1998 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/N/77/1342 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Office development - 111sq.m. (Full)(P)

Decision: 02-11-1977 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/P/77/1785 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Extension/Alterations to Commercial premises (P) of 18 sq.m.

Decision: 09-02-1979 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/R/78/2137 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Alterations to elevation (P)

Decision: 15-10-1979 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/S/79/1046 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Change of use

Decision: 27-12-1979 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/X/81/0848 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Alterations to elevation (P)

Decision: 12-11-1981 Approve
Deemed Hill.

4501/Y/81/0849 Lbh Central Depot 128 Harlington Road Hillingdon
Alterations to elevation (P)

Decision: 10-11-1981 Approve
Deemed Hill.

Delegated -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 206 60of7



Appendix 3: List of Relevant Planning Policies

The following Local Plan Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

PT1.EM6

Part 2 Policies:

DMCI 2
DMEI 11
DMEI 12
DMEI 14
DMEI 2
DMEI 9
DMHB 11

DMT 2

Delegated -

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Flood Risk Management

New Community Infrastructure

Protection of Ground Water Resources
Development of Land Affected by Contamination
Air Quality

Reducing Carbon Emissions

Management of Flood Risk

Design of New Development

Highways Impacts

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 207

7of7



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning
Committee Report
Part 3:

Planning Policy Appendix -
Frequently Cited Policies

www.hillingdon.gov.uk



Frequently Cited Planning Policies

Abbreviations
LP — London Plan (2021)
LP1 — Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1: Strategic Policies (2012)

LP2 — Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2: Development Management Policies (2020)

Topic Policy Page No.
Householder LP2 DMHD 1: Alterations and 4
Policies Extensions to Residential Dwellings

LP2 DMHD 2: Outbuildings 6

LP2 DMHD 3: Basement Development | 6
Standard of LP D6: Housing quality and standards | 7
Accommodation LP2 DMHB 16: Housing Standards 8

LP2 DMHB 18: Private Outdoor 8

Amenity Space

Housing LP H2: Small sites 9
LP H4: Delivering Affordable 9
Housing?
LP H10: Housing size mix 10
LP1 H1: Housing Growth 10
LP2 DMH 1: Safeguarding Existing 11
Housing
LP2 DMH 2: Housing Mix 11

LP2 DMH 4: Residential Conversions | 11
and Redevelopment

LP2 DMH 5: Houses in Multiple 11
Occupation
LP2 DMH 6: Garden and Backland 12

Development
LP2 DMH 7: Provision of Affordable 12

Housing
Design (Including LP D3: Optimising site capacity 13
Heritage, Trees / through the design-led approach
Landscaping and LP D5: Inclusive design 15
Accessibility) LP D7: Accessible housing 15
LP D8: Public realm 15
LP D12: Fire safety 17
LP HC1: Heritage conservation and 18
growth
LP G7: Trees and woodlands 19
LP1 BE1: Built Environment 19
LP2 DMHB 1: Heritage Assets 21

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 210



LP2 DMHB 2: Listed Buildings 22
LP2 DMHB 3: Locally Listed Buildings | 22
LP2 DMHB 4: Conservation Areas 23
LP2 DMHB 5: Areas of Special Local 23
Character
LP2 DMHB 11: Design of New 23
Development
LP2 DMHB 12: Streets and Public 24
Realm
LP2 DMHB 14: Trees and 25
Landscaping
LP2 DMHB 15: Planning for Safer 25
Places
Environmental LP D13: Agent of change 25
LP D14: Noise 26
LP SI2: Minimising greenhouse gas 27
emissions
LP SI12: Flood risk management 27
LP SI13: Sustainable drainage 28
LP1 EM6: Flood Risk Management 29
LP1 EM8: Land, Water, Air and Noise | 29
LP2 DMEI 2: Reducing Carbon 31
Emissions
LP2 DMEI 9: Management of Flood 31
Risk
LP2 DMEI 10: Water Management, 31
Efficiency and Quality
LP2 DMEI 12: Development of Land 33
Affected by Contamination
LP2 DMEI 14: Air Quality 33
Highways and LP T4: Assessing and mitigating 33
Parking transport impacts
LP T5: Cycling 34
LP T6: Car parking 35
LP T6.1: Residential parking 36
LP2 DMT 1: Managing Transport 37
Impacts
LP2 DMT 2: Highways Impacts 38
LP2 DMT 5: Pedestrians and Cyclists | 38
LP2 DMT 6: Vehicle Parking 39

Planning Committee
Part 1: Members, Public & Press

Page 211




LP2 DMHD 1: Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings

A) Planning applications relating to alterations and extensions of dwellings will be
required to ensure that:

i) there is no adverse cumulative impact of the proposal on the character,
appearance or quality of the existing street or wider area;

ii) a satisfactory relationship with adjacent dwellings is achieved,;

iii) new extensions appear subordinate to the main dwelling in their floor area, width,
depth and height;

iv) new extensions respect the design of the original house and be of matching
materials;

v) there is no unacceptable loss of outlook to neighbouring occupiers;

vi) adequate garden space is retained;

vii) adequate off-street parking is retained, as set out in Table 1: Parking Standards
in Appendix C;

viii) trees, hedges and other landscaping features are retained; and

ix) all extensions in Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character, and
to Listed and Locally Listed Buildings, are designed in keeping with the original
house, in terms of layout, scale, proportions, roof form, window pattern, detailed
design and materials.

B) Rear Extensions

i) single storey rear extensions on terraced or semi-detached houses with a plot
width of 5 metres or less should not exceed 3.3 metres in depth or 3.6 metres where
the plot width is 5 metres or more;

ii) single storey rear extensions to detached houses with a plot width of 5 metres or
more should not exceed 4.0 metres in depth;

iii) flat roofed single storey extensions should not exceed 3.0 metres in height and
any pitched or sloping roofs should not exceed 3.4 metres in height, measured from
ground level;

iv) in Conservation Areas and Areas of Special Local Character, flat roofed single
storey extensions will be expected to be finished with a parapet;

v) balconies or access to flat roofs which result in loss of privacy to nearby dwellings
or gardens will not be permitted,;

vi) two storey extensions should not extend into an area provided by a 45-degree
line of sight drawn from the centre of the nearest ground or first floor habitable room
window of an adjacent property and should not contain windows or other openings
that overlook other houses at a distance of less than 21 metres;

vii) flat roofed two storey extensions will not be acceptable unless the design is in
keeping with the particular character of the existing house;

viii) pitched roofs on extensions should be of a similar pitch and materials to that of
the original roof and subordinate to it in design. Large crown roofs on detached
houses will not be supported; and

ix) full width two storey rear extensions are not considered acceptable in designated
areas or as extensions to Listed Buildings or Locally Listed Buildings.

C) Side Extensions

i) side extensions should not exceed half the width of the original property;
ii) extensions to corner plots should ensure that the openness of the area is
maintained and the return building line is not exceeded,;

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 212



iii) garages should reflect the size guidelines set out in Appendix C Parking
standards;

iv) two storey side extensions should be set in a minimum of 1 metre from the side
boundary or in the case of properties in the Copse Wood and Gatehill Estates, at
least 1.5 metres, but more if on a wider than average plot, in order to maintain
adequate visual separation and views between houses;

v) two storey side extensions to detached and semi-detached properties should be
set back a minimum of 1 metre behind the main front elevation;

vi) where hip to gable roof extensions exist, a two storey side extension will not be
supported; and

vii) in Conservation Areas, single storey side extensions may be required to be set
back.

D) Front Extensions

i) alterations and extensions to the front of a house must be minor and not alter the
overall appearance of the house or dominate the character of the street. Front
extensions extending across the entire frontage will be refused;

ii) porches should be subordinate in scale and individually designed to respect the
character and features of the original building; pastiche features will not be
supported; and

i) notwithstanding the above, at least 25% of the front garden must be retained.

E) Roof Extensions

i) roof extensions should be located on the rear elevation only, be subservient to the
scale of the existing roof and should not exceed more than two thirds the average
width of the original roof. They should be located below the ridge tiles of the existing
roof and retain a substantial element of the original roof slope above the eaves ling;
ii) the Council will not support poorly designed or over-large roof extensions including
proposals to convert an existing hipped roof to a gable;

iii) raising of a main roof above the existing ridgeline of a house will generally not be
supported;

iv) all roof extensions should employ appropriate external materials and architectural
details to match the existing dwelling; and

v) in Conservation Areas, Areas of Special Local Character and on Listed and
Locally Listed Buildings, roof extensions should take the form of traditional 'dormer’
windows, on the rear elevation, to harmonise with the existing building. The highest
point of the dormer should be kept well within the back roof slope, away from the
ridge, eaves or valleys, whilst each window should match the proportions, size and
glazing pattern of the first floor windows.

F) Front Gardens and Parking

i) new or replacement driveways should use permeable (porous) surfacing. Surfaces
of more than five square metres will need planning permission for laying traditional,
impermeable driveways; and

ii) the design, materials and height of any front boundary must be in keeping with the
character of the area to ensure harmonisation with the existing street scene.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 213



LP2 DMHD 2: Outbuildings

The Council will require residential outbuildings to meet the following criteria:

i) the building must be constructed to a high standard of design without
compromising the amenity of neighbouring occupiers;

ii) the developed footprint of the proposed building must be proportionate to the
footprint of the dwelling house and to the residential curtilage in which it stands and
have regard to existing trees;

i) the use shall be for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwelling house
and not capable for use as independent residential accommodation; and

iv) primary living accommodation such as a bedroom, bathroom, or kitchen will not
be permitted.

LP2 DMHD 3: Basement Development

A) When determining proposals for basement and other underground development,
the Council require an assessment of the scheme’s impact on drainage, flooding,
groundwater conditions and structural stability. The Council will only permit basement
and other underground development that does not cause harm to the built and
natural environment and local amenity and does not result in flooding or ground
instability. Developers will be required to demonstrate by methodologies appropriate
to the site that their proposals:

i) avoid adversely affecting drainage and run-off or causing other damage to the
water environment;

ii) avoid cumulative impacts upon structural stability or the water environment in the
local area;

B) Schemes should ensure that they:

i) do not harm the amenity of neighbours;

ii) do not lead to the loss of trees of townscape or amenity value;

i) do provide satisfactory landscaping, including adequate soil depth;

iv) do not harm the appearance or setting of the property or the established
character of the surrounding area, for example through the introduction of front
lightwells; and

v) do protect important archaeological remains.

C) The Council will not permit basement schemes which include habitable rooms
and other sensitive uses in areas prone to flooding.

D) The Council will not permit basement schemes in Listed Buildings and will not
permit them in Conservation Area locations where their introduction would harm the
special architectural or historic character of the area.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 214



LP D6: Housing Quality and Standards

A) Housing development should be of high quality design and provide adequately-
sized rooms (see Table 3.1) with comfortable and functional layouts which are fit for
purpose and meet the needs of Londoners without differentiating between tenures.
B) Qualitative aspects of a development are key to ensuring successful sustainable
housing. Table 3.2 sets out key qualitative aspects which should be addressed in the
design of housing developments.

C) Housing development should maximise the provision of dual aspect dwellings and
normally avoid the provision of single aspect dwellings. A single aspect dwelling
should only be provided where it is considered a more appropriate design solution to
meet the requirements of Part D in Policy D3 Optimising site capacity through the
design-led approach than a dual aspect dwelling, and it can be demonstrated that it
will have adequate passive ventilation, daylight and privacy, and avoid overheating.

D) The design of development should provide sufficient daylight and sunlight to new
and surrounding housing that is appropriate for its context, whilst avoiding
overheating, minimising overshadowing and maximising the usability of outside
amenity space.

E) Housing should be designed with adequate and easily accessible storage space
that supports the separate collection of dry recyclables (for at least card, paper,
mixed plastics, metals, glass) and food waste as well as residual waste

F) Housing developments are required to meet the minimum standards below which
apply to all tenures and all residential accommodation that is self-contained.

Private internal space

1. Dwellings must provide at least the gross internal floor area and built-in storage

area set out in Table 3.1.

2. A dwelling with two or more bedspaces must have at least one double (or twin)

bedroom that is at least 2.75m wide. Every other additional double (or twin) bedroom

must be at least 2.55m wide.

3. A one bedspace single bedroom must have a floor area of at least 7.5 sq.m. and

be at least 2.15m wide.

4. A two bedspace double (or twin) bedroom must have a floor area of at least 11.5

sq.m.

5. Any area with a headroom of less than 1.5m is not counted within the Gross

Internal Area unless used solely for storage (If the area under the stairs is to be used

for storage, assume a general floor area of 1 sq.m. within the Gross Internal Area).

6. Any other area that is used solely for storage and has a headroom of 0.9-1.5m

(such as under eaves) can only be counted up to 50 per cent of its floor area, and

any area lower than 0.9m is not counted at all.

7. A built-in wardrobe counts towards the Gross Internal Area and bedroom floor area

requirements, but should not reduce the effective width of the room below the

minimum widths set out above. Any built-in area in excess of 0.72 sq.m. in a double
7

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 215



bedroom and 0.36 sq.m. in a single bedroom counts towards the built-in storage
requirement.

8. The minimum floor to ceiling height must be 2.5m for at least 75 per cent of the
Gross Internal Area of each dwelling.

Private outside space

9. Where there are no higher local standards in the borough Development Plan
Documents, a minimum of 5 sq.m. of private outdoor space should be provided for 1-
2 person dwellings and an extra 1 sq.m. should be provided for each additional
occupant, and it must achieve a minimum depth and width of 1.5m. This does not
count towards the minimum Gross Internal Area space standards required in Table
3.1

G) The Mayor will produce guidance on the implementation of this policy for all
housing tenures.

LP2 DMHB 16: Housing Standards

All housing development should have an adequate provision of internal space in
order to provide an appropriate living environment. To achieve this all residential
development or conversions should:

i) meet or exceed the most up to date internal space standards, as set out in Table
5.1; and

i) in the case of major developments, provide at least 10% of new housing to be
accessible or easily adaptable for wheelchair users.

LP2 DMHB 18: Private Outdoor Amenity Space

A) All new residential development and conversions will be required to provide good
quality and useable private outdoor amenity space. Amenity space should be
provided in accordance with the standards set out in Table 5.3.

B) Balconies should have a depth of not less than 1.5 metres and a width of not less
than 2 metres.

C) Any ground floor and/or basement floor unit that is non-street facing should have
a defensible space of not less than 3 metres in depth in front of any window to a
bedroom or habitable room. However, for new developments in Conservation Areas,
Areas of Special Local Character or for developments, which include Listed
Buildings, the provision of private open space will be required to enhance the
streetscene and the character of the buildings on the site.

D) The design, materials and height of any front boundary must be in keeping with
the character of the area to ensure harmonisation with the existing street scene.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 216



LP H2: Small sites

A) Boroughs should pro-actively support well-designed new homes on small sites
(below 0.25 hectares in size) through both planning decisions and plan-making in
order to:

1. significantly increase the contribution of small sites to meeting London’s housing
needs

2. diversify the sources, locations, type and mix of housing supply

3. support small and medium-sized housebuilders

4. support those wishing to bring forward custom, self-build and community-led
housing

5. achieve the minimum targets for small sites set out in Table 4.2 as a component of
the overall housing targets set out in Table 4.1.

B Boroughs should:

1. recognise in their Development Plans that local character evolves over time and
will need to change in appropriate locations to accommodate additional housing on
small sites

2. where appropriate, prepare site-specific briefs, masterplans and housing design
codes for small sites

3. identify and allocate appropriate small sites for residential development

4. list these small sites on their brownfield registers

5. grant permission in principle on specific sites or prepare local development orders.

LP H4: Delivering Affordable Housing

A) The strategic target is for 50 per cent of all new homes delivered across London
to be genuinely affordable. Specific measures to achieve this aim include:

1. requiring major developments which trigger affordable housing requirements to
provide affordable housing through the threshold approach (Policy H5 Threshold
approach to applications)

2. using grant to increase affordable housing delivery beyond the level that would
otherwise be provided

3. all affordable housing providers with agreements with the Mayor delivering at least
50 per cent affordable housing across their development programme, and 60 per
cent in the case of strategic partners

4. public sector land delivering at least 50 per cent affordable housing on each site
and public sector landowners with agreements with the Mayor delivering at least 50
per cent affordable housing across their portfolio

5. industrial land appropriate for residential use in accordance with Policy E7
Industrial intensification, co-location and substitution, delivering at least 50 per cent
affordable housing where the scheme would result in a net loss of industrial capacity.

B) Affordable housing should be provided on site. Affordable housing must only be
provided off-site or as a cash in lieu contribution in exceptional circumstances.

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 217



LP H10: Housing size mix

A) Schemes should generally consist of a range of unit sizes. To determine the
appropriate mix of unit sizes in relation to the number of bedrooms for a scheme,
applicants and decision-makers should have regard to:

1. robust local evidence of need where available or, where this is not available, the
range of housing need and demand identified by the 2017 London Strategic Housing
Market Assessment

2. the requirement to deliver mixed and inclusive neighbourhoods

3. the need to deliver a range of unit types at different price points across London

4. the mix of uses in the scheme

5. the range of tenures in the scheme

6. the nature and location of the site, with a higher proportion of one and two bed
units generally more appropriate in locations which are closer to a town centre or
station or with higher public transport access and connectivity

7. the aim to optimise housing potential on sites

8. the ability of new development to reduce pressure on conversion, sub-division and
amalgamation of existing stock

9. the need for additional family housing and the role of one and two bed units in
freeing up existing family housing.

B For low-cost rent, boroughs should provide guidance on the size of units required
(by number of bedrooms) to ensure affordable housing meets identified needs. This
guidance should take account of:

1. evidence of local housing needs, including the local housing register and the
numbers and types of overcrowded and under-occupying households

2. other criteria set out in Part A, including the strategic and local requirement for
affordable family accommodation

3. the impact of welfare reform

4. the cost of delivering larger units and the availability of grant.

LP1 H1: Housing Growth

The Council will meet and exceed its minimum strategic dwelling requirement, where
this can be achieved, in accordance with other Local Plan policies.

The borough’s current target is to provide an additional 4,250 dwellings, annualised
as 425 dwellings per year, for the ten year period between 2011 and 2021.

Rolled forward to 2026, this target equates to a minimum provision of 6,375
dwellings over the period of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies.
Sites that will contribute to the achievement of this target will be identified in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2- Site Specific Allocations Local Development Document
(LDD).

10
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 218



LP2 DMH 1: Safeguarding Existing Housing

A) The net loss of existing self-contained3 housing, including affordable housing, will
be resisted unless the housing is replaced with at least equivalent residential
floorspace.

B) The Council will grant planning permission for the subdivision of dwellings only if:
i) car parking standards can be met within the curtilage of the site without being
detrimental to the street scene;

i) all units are self contained with exclusive use of sanitary and kitchen facilities and
provided with individual entrances and internal staircases to serve units above
ground floor level; iii) adequate amenity space is provided for the benefit of
residents; and iv) adequate living space standards are met.

LP2 DMH 2: Housing Mix

The Council will require the provision of a mix of housing units of different sizes in
schemes of residential development to reflect the Council’s latest information on
housing need.

LP2 DMH 4: Residential Conversions and Redevelopment

Residential conversions and the redevelopment of dwellings into new blocks of flats
will only be permitted where:

i) it is on a residential street where the proposal will not result in more than 10% of
properties being redeveloped into flats;

ii) On residential streets longer than 1km the proposed redevelopment site should be
taken as the midpoint of a 1km length of road for assessment purposes;

iii) the internal floor area of the original building to be converted is at least 120 sqm;
and

iv) units are limited to one unit per floor for residential conversions.

LP2 DMH 5: Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and Student
Accommodation

A) In all parts of the Borough

Proposals for the provision of large HMOs, residential hostels, student
accommodation and secure accommodation will be required to demonstrate that:

i) there is good accessibility to local amenities and public transport;

ii) they accord with the Accessible Homes standards and provide satisfactory living
conditions for the intended occupiers; and

iii) there will be no adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties or the
character of the area.

B) In wards covered by an Article 4 Direction for HMOs

11
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 219



Planning applications for the change of use from dwelling house (Use Class C3) to
HMO (Use Class C4 and Sui Generis) will only be permitted:

i) where it is in a neighbourhood area where less than 20% of properties are or
would be exempt from paying council tax (or in the case of Conservation Areas 10%)
because they are entirely occupied by full time students, recorded on the Council’s
database as a licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning consent
and are known to the Council to be HMOs;

ii) in Conservation Areas where less than 10% of properties are exempt from paying
council tax because they are entirely occupied by full time students, recorded on the
Council's database as a licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning
consent and are known to the Council to be HMOs and the change of use does not
form a consecutive HMO use in a street frontage;

iii) where less than 15% of properties within 100 metres of a street length either side
of an application property are exempt from paying council tax because they are
entirely occupied by full time students, recorded on the Council’s database as a
licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning consent and are known to
the Council to be HMOs; and iv) where the accommodation complies with all other
planning standards relating to car parking, waste storage, retention of amenity space
and garages and will not have a detrimental impact upon the residential amenity of
adjoining properties.

LP2 DMH 6: Garden and Backland Development

There is a presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of
backland development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:

i) neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must
be maintained and unacceptable light spillage avoided;

ii) vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on neighbours
in terms of noise or light. Access roads between dwellings and unnecessarily long
access roads will not normally be acceptable;

iii) development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale and
lower than frontage properties; and iv) features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife
habitat must be retained or re-provided.

LP2 DMH 7: Provision of Affordable Housing

A) In accordance with national policy:

i) developments with a capacity to provide 10 or more units will be required to
maximise the delivery of on-site affordable housing;

i) subject to viability and if appropriate in all circumstances, a minimum of 35% of all
new homes on sites of 10 or more units should be delivered as affordable housing,
with the tenure split 70% Social/Affordable Rent and 30% Intermediate as set out in
Policy H2: Affordable Housing of the Local Plan Part 1.

12
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 220



B) Affordable housing should be built to the same standards and should share the
same level of amenity as private housing.

C) Proposals that do not provide sufficient affordable housing will be resisted.

D) To ensure that Policy H2: Affordable Housing of the Local Plan Part 1 is applied
consistently and fairly on all proposed housing developments, the requirement for
affordable housing will apply to:

i) sites that are artificially sub-divided or partially developed;

i) phased developments where a housing development is part of a much larger
development of 10 or more units (gross), affordable housing will be required as part
of the overall scheme; and iii) additional units created through or subsequently
amended planning applications, whereby the amount of affordable housing required
will be calculated based on the new total number of units on the site. Affordable
housing will be required where a development under the 10 unit threshold is
amended to have 10 or more housing units in total (gross).

E) In exceptional circumstances, where on-site provision of affordable housing
cannot be delivered and as a last resort, a financial contribution will be required to
provide off-site affordable housing on other sites which may be more appropriate or
beneficial in meeting the Borough's identified affordable housing needs.

LP D3: Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach

The design-led approach

A) All development must make the best use of land by following a design-led
approach that optimises the capacity of sites, including site allocations. Optimising
site capacity means ensuring that development is of the most appropriate form and
land use for the site. The design-led approach requires consideration of design
options to determine the most appropriate form of development that responds to a
site’s context and capacity for growth, and existing and planned supporting
infrastructure capacity (as set out in Policy D2 Infrastructure requirements for
sustainable densities), and that best delivers the requirements set out in Part D.

B) Higher density developments should generally be promoted in locations that are
well connected to jobs, services, infrastructure and amenities by public transport,
walking and cycling, in accordance with Policy D2 Infrastructure requirements for
sustainable densities. Where these locations have existing areas of high density
buildings, expansion of the areas should be positively considered by Boroughs
where appropriate. This could also include expanding Opportunity Area boundaries
where appropriate.

C) In other areas, incremental densification should be actively encouraged by
Boroughs to achieve a change in densities in the most appropriate way. This should
be interpreted in the context of Policy H2 Small sites.

13
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 221



D) Development proposals should:

Form and layout

1. enhance local context by delivering buildings and spaces that positively respond
to local distinctiveness through their layout, orientation, scale, appearance and
shape, with due regard to existing and emerging street hierarchy, building types,
forms and proportions

2. encourage and facilitate active travel with convenient and inclusive pedestrian and
cycling routes, crossing points, cycle parking, and legible entrances to buildings, that
are aligned with peoples’ movement patterns and desire lines in the area

3. be street-based with clearly defined public and private environments

4. facilitate efficient servicing and maintenance of buildings and the public realm, as
well as deliveries, that minimise negative impacts on the environment, public realm
and vulnerable road users

Experience

1. achieve safe, secure and inclusive environments

2. provide active frontages and positive reciprocal relationships between what
happens inside the buildings and outside in the public realm to generate liveliness
and interest

3. deliver appropriate outlook, privacy and amenity

4. provide conveniently located green and open spaces for social interaction, play,
relaxation and physical activity

5. help prevent or mitigate the impacts of noise and poor air quality

6. achieve indoor and outdoor environments that are comfortable and inviting for
people to use

Quality and character

1. respond to the existing character of a place by identifying the special and valued
features and characteristics that are unique to the locality and respect, enhance and
utilise the heritage assets and architectural features that contribute towards the local
character

2. be of high quality, with architecture that pays attention to detail, and gives
thorough consideration to the practicality of use, flexibility, safety and building
lifespan through appropriate construction methods and the use of attractive, robust
materials which weather and mature well

3. aim for high sustainability standards (with reference to the policies within London
Plan Chapters 8 and 9) and take into account the principles of the circular economy
4. provide spaces and buildings that maximise opportunities for urban greening to
create attractive resilient places that can also help the management of surface water.

E) Where development parameters for allocated sites have been set out in a
Development Plan, development proposals that do not accord with the site capacity
in a site allocation can be refused for this reason.

14
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 222



LP D5: Inclusive Design

A) Boroughs, in preparing their Development Plans, should support the creation of
inclusive neighbourhoods by embedding inclusive design, and collaborating with
local communities in the development of planning policies that affect them.

B) Development proposal should achieve the highest standards of accessible and
inclusive design. They should:

1. be designed taking into account London’s diverse population

2. provide high quality people focused spaces that are designed to facilitate social
interaction and inclusion

3. be convenient and welcoming with no disabling barriers, providing independent
access without additional undue effort, separation or special treatment

4. be able to be entered, used and exited safely, easily and with dignity for all

5. be designed to incorporate safe and dignified emergency evacuation for all
building users. In all developments where lifts are installed, as a minimum at least
one lift per core (or more subject to capacity assessments) should be a suitably
sized fire evacuation lift suitable to be used to evacuate people who require level
access from the building.

C) Design and Access Statements, submitted as part of development proposals,
should include an inclusive design statement.

LP D7: Accessible Housing

A) To provide suitable housing and genuine choice for London’s diverse population,
including disabled people, older people and families with young children, residential
development must ensure that:

1. at least 10 per cent of dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M
volume 1 of the Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement
M4(3) ‘wheelchair user dwellings’

2. all other dwellings (which are created via works to which Part M volume 1 of the
Building Regulations applies) meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2)
‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’.

LP D8: Public Realm

Development Plans and development proposals should:
A) encourage and explore opportunities to create new public realm where
appropriate

B) ensure the public realm is well-designed, safe, accessible, inclusive, attractive,
well-connected, related to the local and historic context, and easy to understand,
service and maintain. Landscape treatment, planting, street furniture and surface
materials should be of good quality, fit-for-purpose, durable and sustainable.
Lighting, including for advertisements, should be carefully considered and well-

15
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 223



designed in order to minimise intrusive lighting infrastructure and reduce light
pollution

C) maximise the contribution that the public realm makes to encourage active travel
and ensure its design discourages travel by car and excessive on-street parking,
which can obstruct people’s safe enjoyment of the space. This includes design that
reduces the impact of traffic noise and encourages appropriate vehicle speeds

D) be based on an understanding of how the public realm in an area functions and
creates a sense of place during different times of the day and night, days of the week
and times of the year. In particular, they should demonstrate an understanding of
how people use the public realm, and the types, location and relationship between
public spaces in an area, identifying where there are deficits for certain activities, or
barriers to movement that create severance for pedestrians and cyclists

E) ensure both the movement function of the public realm and its function as a place
are provided for and that the balance of space and time given to each reflects the
individual characteristics of the area. The priority modes of travel for the area should
be identified and catered for, as appropriate. Desire lines for people walking and
cycling should be a particular focus, including the placement of street crossings,
which should be regular, convenient and accessible

F) ensure there is a mutually supportive relationship between the space, surrounding
buildings and their uses, so that the public realm enhances the amenity and function
of buildings and the design of buildings contributes to a vibrant public realm

G) ensure buildings are of a design that activates and defines the public realm, and
provides natural surveillance. Consideration should also be given to the local
microclimate created by buildings, and the impact of service entrances and facades
on the public realm

H) ensure appropriate management and maintenance arrangements are in place for
the public realm, which maximise public access and minimise rules governing the
space to those required for its safe management in accordance with the Public
London Charter

) incorporate green infrastructure such as street trees and other vegetation into the
public realm to support rainwater management through sustainable drainage, reduce
exposure to air pollution, moderate surface and air temperature and increase
biodiversity

J) ensure that appropriate shade, shelter, seating and, where possible, areas of
direct sunlight are provided, with other microclimatic considerations, including
temperature and wind, taken into account in order to encourage people to spend
time in a place

16
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 224



K) ensure that street clutter, including street furniture that is poorly located, unsightly,
in poor condition or without a clear function is removed, to ensure that pedestrian
amenity is improved. Consideration should be given to the use, design and location
of street furniture so that it complements the use and function of the space.
Applications which seek to introduce unnecessary street furniture should be refused

L) explore opportunities for innovative approaches to improving the public realm
such as open street events and Play Streets

M) create an engaging public realm for people of all ages, with opportunities for
social activities, formal and informal play and social interaction during the daytime,
evening and at night. This should include identifying opportunities for the meanwhile
use of sites in early phases of development to create temporary public realm

N) ensure that any on-street parking is designed so that it is not dominant or
continuous, and that there is space for green infrastructure as well as cycle parking
in the carriageway. Parking should not obstruct pedestrian lines

O) ensure the provision and future management of free drinking water at appropriate
locations in the new or redeveloped public realm.

LP D12: Fire Safety

A) In the interests of fire safety and to ensure the safety of all building users, all
development proposals must achieve the highest standards of fire safety and ensure
that they:

1. identify suitably positioned unobstructed outside space:

a - for fire appliances to be positioned on

b - appropriate for use as an evacuation assembly point

2. are designed to incorporate appropriate features which reduce the risk to life and
the risk of serious injury in the event of a fire; including appropriate fire alarm
systems and passive and active fire safety measures

3. are constructed in an appropriate way to minimise the risk of fire spread

4. provide suitable and convenient means of escape, and associated evacuation
strategy for all building users

5. develop a robust strategy for evacuation which can be periodically updated and
published, and which all building users can have confidence in

6. provide suitable access and equipment for firefighting which is appropriate for the
size and use of the development.

B) All major development proposals should be submitted with a Fire Statement,
which is an independent fire strategy, produced by a third party, suitably qualified
assessor.

The statement should detail how the development proposal will function in terms of:
1. the building’s construction: methods, products and materials used, including
manufacturers’ details

17
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 225



2. the means of escape for all building users: suitably designed stair cores, escape
for building users who are disabled or require level access, and associated
evacuation strategy approach

3. features which reduce the risk to life: fire alarm systems, passive and active fire
safety measures and associated management and maintenance plans

4. access for fire service personnel and equipment: how this will be achieved in an
evacuation situation, water supplies, provision and positioning of equipment,
firefighting lifts, stairs and lobbies, any fire suppression and smoke ventilation
systems proposed, and the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of these

5. how provision will be made within the curtilage of the site to enable fire appliances
to gain access to the building

6. ensuring that any potential future modifications to the building will take into
account and not compromise the base build fire safety/protection measures.

LP HC1: Heritage Conservation and Growth

A) Boroughs should, in consultation with Historic England, local communities and
other statutory and relevant organisations, develop evidence that demonstrates a
clear understanding of London’s historic environment. This evidence should be used
for identifying, understanding, conserving, and enhancing the historic environment
and heritage assets, and improving access to, and interpretation of, the heritage
assets, landscapes and archaeology within their area.

B) Development Plans and strategies should demonstrate a clear understanding of
the historic environment and the heritage values of sites or areas and their
relationship with their surroundings. This knowledge should be used to inform the
effective integration of London’s heritage in regenerative change by:

1. setting out a clear vision that recognises and embeds the role of heritage in place-
making

2. utilising the heritage significance of a site or area in the planning and design
process

3. integrating the conservation and enhancement of heritage assets and their
settings with innovative and creative contextual architectural responses that
contribute to their significance and sense of place

4. delivering positive benefits that conserve and enhance the historic environment,
as well as contributing to the economic viability, accessibility and environmental
quality of a place, and to social wellbeing.

C) Development proposals affecting heritage assets, and their settings, should
conserve their significance, by being sympathetic to the assets’ significance and
appreciation within their surroundings. The cumulative impacts of incremental
change from development on heritage assets and their settings should also be
actively managed. Development proposals should avoid harm and identify
enhancement opportunities by integrating heritage considerations early on in the
design process.

18
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 226



D) Development proposals should identify assets of archaeological significance and
use this information to avoid harm or minimise it through design and appropriate
mitigation. Where applicable, development should make provision for the protection
of significant archaeological assets and landscapes. The protection of undesignated
heritage assets of archaeological interest equivalent to a scheduled monument
should be given equivalent weight to designated heritage assets.

E) Where heritage assets have been identified as being At Risk, boroughs should
identify specific opportunities for them to contribute to regeneration and place-
making, and they should set out strategies for their repair and re-use.

LP G7: Trees and Woodlands

A) London’s urban forest and woodlands should be protected and maintained,
and new trees and woodlands should be planted in appropriate locations in
order to increase the extent of London’s urban forest — the area of London
under the canopy of trees.

B) In their Development Plans, boroughs should:

1. protect ‘veteran’ trees and ancient woodland where these are not already
part of a protected site139

2. identify opportunities for tree planting in strategic locations.

C) Development proposals should ensure that, wherever possible, existing trees
of value are retained.140 If planning permission is granted that necessitates

the removal of trees there should be adequate replacement based on the
existing value of the benefits of the trees removed, determined by, for

example, i-tree or CAVAT or another appropriate valuation system. The

planting of additional trees should generally be included in new developments

— particularly large-canopied species which provide a wider range of benefits
because of the larger surface area of their canopy.

LP 1 BE1: Built Environment

The Council will require all new development to improve and maintain the quality of
the built environment in order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods,
where people enjoy living and working and that serve the long-term needs of all
residents. All new developments should:

1. Achieve a high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations, extensions and
the public realm which enhances the local distinctiveness of the area, contributes to
community cohesion and a sense of place;

2. Be designed to be appropriate to the identity and context of Hillingdon's buildings,
townscapes, landscapes and views, and make a positive contribution to the local

19
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 227



area in terms of layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of
surrounding land and buildings, particularly residential properties;

3. Be designed to include “Lifetime Homes” principles so that they can be readily
adapted to meet the needs of those with disabilities and the elderly, 10% of these
should be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable to wheelchair accessibility
encouraging places of work and leisure, streets, neighbourhoods, parks and open
spaces to be designed to meet the needs of the community at all stages of people’s
lives;

4. In the case of 10 dwellings or over, achieve a satisfactory assessment rating in
terms of the latest Building for Life standards (as amended or replaced from time to
time);

5. Improve areas of poorer environmental quality, including within the areas of
relative disadvantage of Hayes, Yiewsley and West Drayton. All regeneration
schemes should ensure that they are appropriate to their historic context, make use
of heritage assets and reinforce their significance;

6. Incorporate a clear network of routes that are easy to understand, inclusive, safe,
secure and connect positively with interchanges, public transport, community
facilities and services;

7. Improve the quality of the public realm and provide for public and private spaces
that are attractive, safe, functional, diverse, sustainable, accessible to all, respect the
local character and landscape, integrate with the development, enhance and protect
biodiversity through the inclusion of living walls, roofs and areas for wildlife,
encourage physical activity and where appropriate introduce public art;

8. Create safe and secure environments that reduce crime and fear of crime, anti-
social behaviour and risks from fire and arson having regard to Secure by Design
standards and address resilience to terrorism in major development proposals;

9. Not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green spaces that
erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase the risk of
flooding through the loss of permeable areas;

10. Maximise the opportunities for all new homes to contribute to tackling and
adapting to climate change and reducing emissions of local air quality pollutants. The
Council will require all new development to achieve reductions in carbon dioxide
emission in line with the London Plan targets through energy efficient design and
effective use of low and zero carbon technologies. Where the required reduction
from on-site renewable energy is not feasible within major developments,
contributions off-site will be sought. The Council will seek to merge a suite of
sustainable design goals, such as the use of SUDS, water efficiency, lifetime homes,
and energy efficiency into a requirement measured against the Code for Sustainable

20
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 228



Homes and BREEAM. These will be set out within the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2-
Development Management Policies Local Development Document (LDD). Al
developments should be designed to make the most efficient use of natural
resources whilst safeguarding historic assets, their settings and local amenity and
include sustainable design and construction techniques to increase the re-use and
recycling of construction, demolition and excavation waste and reduce the amount
disposed to landfill;

11. In the case of tall buildings, not adversely affect their surroundings including the
local character, cause harm to the significance of heritage assets or impact on
important views. Appropriate locations for tall buildings will be defined on a Character
Study and may include parts of Uxbridge and Hayes subject to considering the
Obstacle Limitation Surfaces for Heathrow Airport. Outside of Uxbridge and Hayes
town centres, tall buildings will not be supported. The height of all buildings should
be based upon an understanding of the local character and be appropriate to the
positive qualities of the surrounding townscape. Support will be given for proposals
that are consistent with local strategies, guidelines, supplementary planning
documents and Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2- Development Management Policies.

LP2 DMHB 1: Heritage Assets

A) The Council will expect development proposals to avoid harm to the historic
environment. Development that has an effect on heritage assets will only be
supported where:

i) it sustains and enhances the significance of the heritage asset and puts them into
viable uses consistent with their conservation;

i) it will not lead to a loss of significance or harm to an asset, unless it can be
demonstrated that it will provide public benefit that would outweigh the harm or loss,
in accordance with the NPPF;

iii) it makes a positive contribution to the local character and distinctiveness of the
area;

iv) any extensions or alterations are designed in sympathy, without detracting from or
competing with the heritage asset;

v) the proposal would relate appropriately in terms of siting, style, scale, massing,
height, design and materials;

vi) buildings and structures within the curtilage of a heritage asset, or in close
proximity to it, do not compromise its setting; and

vii) opportunities are taken to conserve or enhance the setting, so that the
significance of the asset can be appreciated more readily.

B) Development proposals affecting designated heritage assets need to take
account of the effects of climate change and renewable energy without impacting
negatively on the heritage asset. The Council may require an alternative solution
which will protect the asset yet meet the sustainability objectives of the Local Plan.

21
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 229



C) The Council will seek to secure the repair and reuse of Listed Buildings and
monuments and improvements to Conservation Areas on the Heritage at Risk
Register, through negotiations with owners, the provision of advice and guidance, the
use of appropriate legal action, and through bids for external funding for
improvement works.

LP2 DMHB 2: Listed Buildings

A) Applications for Listed Building Consent and planning permission to alter, extend,
or change the use of a statutorily Listed Building will only be permitted if they are
considered to retain its significance and value and are appropriate in terms of the
fabric, historic integrity, spatial quality and layout of the building. Any additions or
alterations to a Listed Building should be sympathetic in terms of scale, proportion,
detailed design, materials and workmanship.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the building and the impact of the proposals on
its significance.

C) The substantial harm to or total loss of significance of a statutory Listed Building
will only be permitted in exceptional circumstances when the nature of the heritage
asset prevents all reasonable use of the building, no viable use can be found through
marketing, grant-funding or charitable or public ownership and the loss is outweighed
by bringing the site back into use. In such circumstances, full archaeological
recording of the building will be required.

D) Planning permission will not be granted for proposals which are considered
detrimental to the setting of a Listed Building.

LP2 DMHB 3: Locally Listed Buildings

A) There is a general presumption in favour of the retention of buildings, structures
and features included in the Local List. The Council will take into account the effect
of a proposal on the building's significance and the scale of any harm of loss when
considering planning applications, including those for major alterations and
extensions. Proposals will be permitted where they retain the significance,
appearance, character or setting of a Locally Listed Building.

B) Applications should include a Heritage Statement that demonstrates a clear
understanding of the importance of the structure and the impact of the proposals on
the significance of the Locally Listed Building.

C) Replacement will only be considered if it can be demonstrated that the community
benefits of such a proposal significantly outweigh those of retaining the Locally
Listed Building.

22
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 230



LP2 DMHB 4: Conservation Areas

New development, including alterations and extensions to existing buildings, within a
Conservation Area or on its fringes, will be expected to preserve or enhance the
character or appearance of the area. It should sustain and enhance its significance
and make a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness. In order to
achieve this, the Council will:

A) Require proposals for new development, including any signage or advertisement,
to be of a high quality contextual design. Proposals should exploit opportunities to
restore any lost features and/or introduce new ones that would enhance the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

B) Resist the loss of buildings, historic street patterns, important views, landscape
and open spaces or other features that make a positive contribution to the character
or appearance of the Conservation Area; any such loss will need to be supported
with a robust justification.

C) Proposals will be required to support the implementation of improvement actions
set out in relevant Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans.

LP2 DMHB 5: Areas of Special Local Character

A) Within Areas of Special Local Character, new development should reflect the
character of the area and its original layout. Alterations should respect the
established scale, building lines, height, design and materials of the area.

B) Extensions to dwellings should be subservient to, and respect the architectural
style of the original buildings and allow sufficient space for appropriate landscaping,
particularly between, and in front of, buildings.

C) The replacement of buildings which positively contribute to the character and local
importance of Areas of Special Local Character will normally be resisted.

LP2 DMHB 11: Design of New Development

A) All development, including extensions, alterations and new buildings will be
required to be designed to the highest standards and, incorporate principles of good
design including:

i) harmonising with the local context by taking into account the surrounding:

- scale of development, considering the height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures;
- building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and established street patterns;

- building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for example, gaps
between structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of enclosure;

- architectural composition and quality of detailing;

- local topography, views both from and to the site; and

23
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 231



- impact on neighbouring open spaces and their environment.

i) ensuring the use of high quality building materials and finishes;

iii) ensuring that the internal design and layout of development maximises
sustainability and is adaptable to different activities;

iv) protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including the
safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and un-designated, and their settings;
and

v) landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and
green infrastructure.

B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and
sunlight of adjacent properties and open space.

C) Development will be required to ensure that the design safeguards the
satisfactory re-development of any adjoining sites which have development potential.
In the case of proposals for major development5 sites, the Council will expect
developers to prepare master plans and design codes and to agree these with the
Council before developing detailed designs.

D) Development proposals should make sufficient provision for well designed
internal and external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with
suitable access for collection. External bins should be located and screened to avoid
nuisance and adverse visual impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

LP2 DMHB 12: Streets and Public Realm

A) Development should be well integrated with the surrounding area and accessible.
It should:

i) improve legibility and promote routes and wayfinding between the development
and local amenities;

ii) ensure public realm design takes account of the established townscape character
and quality of the surrounding area;

iii) include landscaping treatment that is suitable for the location, serves a purpose,
contributes to local green infrastructure, the appearance of the area and ease of
movement through the space;

iv) provide safe and direct pedestrian and cycle movement through the space;

v) incorporate appropriate and robust hard landscaping, using good quality materials,
undertaken to a high standard;

vi) where appropriate, include the installation of public art; and

vii) deliver proposals which incorporate the principles of inclusive design. Proposals
for gated developments will be resisted.

B) Public realm improvements will be sought from developments located close to
transport interchanges and community facilities to ensure easy access between
different transport modes and into local community facilities.

24
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 232



LP2 DMHB 14: Trees and Landscaping

A) All developments will be expected to retain or enhance existing landscaping,
trees, biodiversity or other natural features of merit.

B) Development proposals will be required to provide a landscape scheme that
includes hard and soft landscaping appropriate to the character of the area, which
supports and enhances biodiversity and amenity particularly in areas deficient in
green infrastructure.

C) Where space for ground level planting is limited, such as high rise buildings, the
inclusion of living walls and roofs will be expected where feasible.

D) Planning applications for proposals that would affect existing trees will be required
to provide an accurate tree survey showing the location, height, spread and species
of trees. Where the tree survey identifies trees of merit, tree root protection areas
and an arboricultural method statement will be required to show how the trees will be
protected. Where trees are to be removed, proposals for replanting of new trees on-
site must be provided or include contributions to offsite provision.

LP2 DMHB 15: Planning for Safer Places

The Council will require all new development to ensure safe and attractive public and
private spaces by referring to the Council's latest guidance on Secured by Design
principles. Where relevant, these should be included in the Design and Access
Statement. Development will be required to comprise good design and create
inclusive environments whilst improving safety and security by incorporating the
following specific measures:

i) providing entrances in visible, safe and accessible locations;

il) maximising natural surveillance;

iii) ensuring adequate defensible space is provided;

iv) providing clear delineations between public and private spaces; and

v) providing appropriate lighting and CCTV.

LP D13: Agent of Change

A) The Agent of Change principle places the responsibility for mitigating impacts
from existing noise and other nuisance-generating activities or uses on the proposed
new noise-sensitive development. Boroughs should ensure that Development Plans
and planning decisions reflect the Agent of Change principle and take account of
existing noise and other nuisance-generating uses in a sensitive manner when new
development is proposed nearby.

B) Development should be designed to ensure that established noise and other
nuisance-generating uses remain viable and can continue or grow without
unreasonable restrictions being placed on them.

25
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 233



C) New noise and other nuisance-generating development proposed close to
residential and other noise-sensitive uses should put in place measures to mitigate
and manage any noise impacts for neighbouring residents and businesses.

D) Development proposals should manage noise and other potential nuisances by:
1. ensuring good design mitigates and minimises existing and potential nuisances
generated by existing uses and activities located in the area

2. exploring mitigation measures early in the design stage, with necessary and
appropriate provisions including ongoing and future management of mitigation
measures secured through planning obligations

3. separating new noise-sensitive development where possible from existing noise-
generating businesses and uses through distance, screening, internal layout, sound-
proofing, insulation and other acoustic design measures.

E) Boroughs should not normally permit development proposals that have not clearly
demonstrated how noise and other nuisances will be mitigated and managed.

LP D14: Noise

A) In order to reduce, manage and mitigate noise to improve health and quality of
life, residential and other non-aviation development proposals should manage noise
by:

1. avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life

2. reflecting the Agent of Change principle as set out in Policy D13 Agent of Change
3. mitigating and minimising the existing and potential adverse impacts of noise on,
from, within, as a result of, or in the vicinity of new development without placing
unreasonable restrictions on existing noise-generating uses

4. improving and enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate

5. separating new noise-sensitive development from major noise sources (such as
road, rail, air transport and some types of industrial use) through the use of distance,
screening, layout, orientation, uses and materials — in preference to sole reliance on
sound insulation

6. where it is not possible to achieve separation of noise-sensitive development and
noise sources without undue impact on other sustainable development objectives,
then any potential adverse effects should be controlled and mitigated through
applying good acoustic design principles

7. promoting new technologies and improved practices to reduce noise at source,
and on the transmission path from source to receiver.

B) Boroughs, and others with relevant responsibilities, should identify and nominate
new Quiet Areas and protect existing Quiet Areas in line with the procedure in
Defra’s Noise Action Plan for Agglomerations.

26
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 234



LP Sl 2: Minimising Greenhouse Gas Emissions

A) Major development should be net zero-carbon.151 This means reducing
greenhouse gas emissions in operation and minimising both annual and peak energy
demand in accordance with the following energy hierarchy:

1. be lean: use less energy and manage demand during operation

2. be clean: exploit local energy resources (such as secondary heat) and supply
energy efficiently and cleanly

3. be green: maximise opportunities for renewable energy by producing, storing and
using renewable energy on-site

4. be seen: monitor, verify and report on energy performance.

B) Major development proposals should include a detailed energy strategy to
demonstrate how the zero-carbon target will be met within the framework of the
energy hierarchy.

C) A minimum on-site reduction of at least 35 per cent beyond Building
Regulations152 is required for major development. Residential development should
achieve 10 per cent, and non-residential development should achieve 15 per cent
through energy efficiency measures. Where it is clearly demonstrated that the zero-
carbon target cannot be fully achieved on-site, any shortfall should be provided, in
agreement with the borough, either:

1. through a cash in lieu contribution to the borough’s carbon offset fund, or

2. off-site provided that an alternative proposal is identified and delivery is certain.

D) Boroughs must establish and administer a carbon offset fund. Offset fund
payments must be ring-fenced to implement projects that deliver carbon reductions.
The operation of offset funds should be monitored and reported on annually.

E) Major development proposals should calculate and minimise carbon emissions
from any other part of the development, including plant or equipment, that are not
covered by Building Regulations, i.e. unregulated emissions.

F) Development proposals referable to the Mayor should calculate whole life-cycle
carbon emissions through a nationally recognised Whole Life-Cycle Carbon
Assessment and demonstrate actions taken to reduce life-cycle carbon emissions.

LP Sl 12: Flood Risk Management

A) Current and expected flood risk from all sources (as defined in paragraph 9.2.12)
across London should be managed in a sustainable and cost-effective way in
collaboration with the Environment Agency, the Lead Local Flood Authorities,
developers and infrastructure providers.

B) Development Plans should use the Mayor’s Regional Flood Risk Appraisal and
their Strategic Flood Risk Assessment as well as Local Flood Risk Management

27
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 235



Strategies, where necessary, to identify areas where particular and cumulative flood
risk issues exist and develop actions and policy approaches aimed at reducing these
risks. Boroughs should cooperate and jointly address cross-boundary flood risk
issues including with authorities outside London.

C) Development proposals should ensure that flood risk is minimised and mitigated,
and that residual risk is addressed. This should include, where possible, making
space for water and aiming for development to be set back from the banks of
watercourses.

D) Developments Plans and development proposals should contribute to the delivery
of the measures set out in Thames Estuary 2100 Plan. The Mayor will work with the
Environment Agency and relevant local planning authorities, including authorities
outside London, to safeguard an appropriate location for a new Thames Barrier.

E) Development proposals for utility services should be designed to remain
operational under flood conditions and buildings should be designed for quick
recovery following a flood.

F) Development proposals adjacent to flood defences will be required to protect the
integrity of flood defences and allow access for future maintenance and upgrading.
Unless exceptional circumstances are demonstrated for not doing so, development
proposals should be set back from flood defences to allow for any foreseeable future
maintenance and upgrades in a sustainable and cost-effective way.

G) Natural flood management methods should be employed in development
proposals due to their multiple benefits including increasing flood storage and
creating recreational areas and habitat.

LP Sl 13: Sustainable Drainage

A) Lead Local Flood Authorities should identify — through their Local Flood Risk
Management Strategies and Surface Water Management Plans — areas where there
are particular surface water management issues and aim to reduce these risks.
Increases in surface water run-off outside these areas also need to be identified and
addressed.

B) Development proposals should aim to achieve greenfield run-off rates and ensure
that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source as possible. There
should also be a preference for green over grey features, in line with the following
drainage hierarchy:

1. rainwater use as a resource (for example rainwater harvesting, blue roofs for
irrigation)

2. rainwater infiltration to ground at or close to source

3. rainwater attenuation in green infrastructure features for gradual release (for
example green roofs, rain gardens)

28
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 236



4. rainwater discharge direct to a watercourse (unless not appropriate)
5. controlled rainwater discharge to a surface water sewer or drain
6. controlled rainwater discharge to a combined sewer.

C) Development proposals for impermeable surfacing should normally be resisted
unless they can be shown to be unavoidable, including on small surfaces such as
front gardens and driveways.

D) Drainage should be designed and implemented in ways that promote multiple
benefits including increased water use efficiency, improved water quality, and
enhanced biodiversity, urban greening, amenity and recreation.

LP1 EM6: Flood Risk Management

The Council will require new development to be directed away from Flood Zones 2
and 3 in accordance with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF).

The subsequent Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Site Specific Allocations LDD will be
subjected to the Sequential Test in accordance with the NPPF. Sites will only be
allocated within Flood Zones 2 or 3 where there are overriding issues that outweigh
flood risk. In these instances, policy criteria will be set requiring future applicants of
these sites to demonstrate that flood risk can be suitably mitigated.

The Council will require all development across the borough to use sustainable
urban drainage systems (SUDS) unless demonstrated that it is not viable. The
Council will encourage SUDS to be linked to water efficiency methods. The Council
may require developer contributions to guarantee the long term maintenance and
performance of SUDS is to an appropriate standard.

LP1 EMS8: Land, Water, Air and Noise

Water Quality
The Council will seek to safeguard and improve all water quality, both ground and
surface. Principal Aquifers, and Source Protection Zones will be given priority along
with the:

- River Colne

- Grand Union Canal

- River Pinn

- Yeading Brook

- Porter Land Brook

- River Crane

- Ruislip Lido

29
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 237



Air Quality
All development should not cause deterioration in the local air quality levels and
should ensure the protection of both existing and new sensitive receptors.

All major development within the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) should
demonstrate air quality neutrality (no worsening of impacts) where appropriate;
actively contribute to the promotion of sustainable transport measures such as
vehicle charging points and the increased provision for vehicles with cleaner
transport fuels; deliver increased planting through soft landscaping and living walls
and roofs; and provide a management plan for ensuring air quality impacts can be
kept to a minimum.

The Council seeks to reduce the levels of pollutants referred to in the Government’s
National Air Quality Strategy and will have regard to the Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy.
London Boroughs should also take account of the findings of the Air Quality Review
and Assessments and Actions plans, in particular where Air Quality Management
Areas have been designated.

The Council has a network of Air Quality Monitoring stations but recognises that this
can be widened to improve understanding of air quality impacts. The Council may
therefore require new major development in an AQMA to fund additional air quality
monitoring stations to assist in managing air quality improvements.

Noise

The Council will investigate Hillingdon's target areas identified in the Defra Noise
Action Plans, promote the maximum possible reduction in noise levels and will
minimise the number of people potentially affected.

The Council will seek to identify and protect Quiet Areas in accordance with
Government Policy on sustainable development and other Local Plan policies.

The Council will seek to ensure that noise sensitive development and noise
generating development are only permitted if noise impacts can be adequately
controlled and mitigated.

Land Contamination

The Council will expect proposals for development on contaminated land to provide
mitigation strategies that reduce the impacts on surrounding land uses. Major
development proposals will be expected to demonstrate a sustainable approach to
remediation that includes techniques to reduce the need to landfill.

Water Resources

The Council will require that all new development demonstrates the incorporation of
water efficiency measures within new development to reduce the rising demand on

potable water. All new development must incorporate water recycling and collection
facilities unless it can be demonstrated it is not appropriate. For residential

30
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 238



developments, the Council will require applicants to demonstrate that water
consumption will not surpass 105 litres per person per day.

LP2 DMEI 2: Reducing Carbon Emissions

A) All developments are required to make the fullest contribution to minimising
carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with London Plan targets.

B) All major development proposals must be accompanied by an energy assessment
showing how these reductions will be achieved.

C) Proposals that fail to take reasonable steps to achieve the required savings will
be resisted. However, where it is clearly demonstrated that the targets for carbon
emissions cannot be met onsite, the Council may approve the application and seek
an off-site contribution to make up for the shortfall.

LP2 DMEI 9: Management of Flood Risk

A) Development proposals in Flood Zones 2 and 3a will be required to demonstrate
that there are no suitable sites available in areas of lower flood risk. Where no
appropriate sites are available, development should be located on the areas of
lowest flood risk within the site. Flood defences should provide protection for the
lifetime of the development. Finished floor levels should reflect the Environment
Agency's latest guidance on climate change.

B) Development proposals in these areas will be required to submit an appropriate
level Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) to demonstrate that the development is resilient
to all sources of flooding.

C) Development in Flood Zone 3b will be refused in principle unless identified as an
appropriate development in Flood Risk Planning Policy Guidance. Development for
appropriate uses in Flood Zone 3b will only be approved if accompanied by an
appropriate FRA that demonstrates the development will be resistant and resilient to
flooding and suitable warning and evacuation methods are in place.

D) Developments may be required to make contributions (through legal agreements)
to previously identified flood improvement works that will benefit the development
site.

E) Proposals that fail to make appropriate provision for flood risk mitigation, or which
would increase the risk or consequences of flooding, will be refused.

LP2 DMEI 10: Water Management, Efficiency, and Quality

A) Applications for all new build developments (not conversions, change of use, or
refurbishment) are required to include a drainage assessment demonstrating that

31
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 239



appropriate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) have been incorporated in
accordance with the London Plan Hierarchy (Policy 5.13: Sustainable drainage).

B) All major new build developments, as well as minor developments in Critical
Drainage Areas or an area identified at risk from surface water flooding must be
designed to reduce surface water run-off rates to no higher than the pre-
development greenfield run-off rate in a 1:100 year storm scenario, plus an
appropriate allowance for climate change for the worst storm duration. The
assessment is required regardless of the changes in impermeable areas and the fact
that a site has an existing high run-off rate will not constitute justification.

C) Rain Gardens and non householder development should be designed to reduce
surface water run-off rates to Greenfield run-off rates.

D) Schemes for the use of SuDS must be accompanied by adequate arrangements
for the management and maintenance of the measures used, with appropriate
contributions made to the Council where necessary.

E) Proposals that would fail to make adequate provision for the control and reduction
of surface water run-off rates will be refused.

F) Developments should be drained by a SuDs system and must include appropriate
methods to avoid pollution of the water environment. Preference should be given to
utilising the drainage options in the SuDS hierarchy which remove the key pollutants
that hinder improving water quality in Hillingdon. Major development should adopt a
'treatment train' approach where water flows through different SuDS to ensure
resilience in the system. Water Efficiency

G) All new development proposals (including refurbishments and conversions) will be
required to include water efficiency measures, including the collection and reuse of
rain water and grey water.

H) All new residential development should demonstrate water usage rates of no
more than 105 litres/person/day.

) It is expected that major development8 proposals will provide an integrated
approach to surface water run-off attenuation, water collection, recycling and reuse.
Water and Wastewater Infrastructure

J) All new development proposals will be required to demonstrate that there is
sufficient capacity in the water and wastewater infrastructure network to support the
proposed development. Where there is a capacity constraint the local planning
authority will require the developer to provide a detailed water and/or drainage
strategy to inform what infrastructure is required, where, when and how it will be
delivered.

32
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 240



LP2 DMEI 12: Development of Land Affected by Contamination

A) Proposals for development on potentially contaminated sites will be expected to
be accompanied by at least an initial study of the likely contaminants. The Council
will support planning permission for any development of land which is affected by
contamination where it can be demonstrated that contamination issues have been
adequately assessed and the site can be safely remediated so that the development
can be made suitable for the proposed use.

B) Conditions will be imposed where planning permission is given for development
on land affected by contamination to ensure all the necessary remedial works are
implemented, prior to commencement of development.

C) Where initial studies reveal potentially harmful levels of contamination, either to
human health or controlled waters and other environmental features, full intrusive
ground investigations and remediation proposals will be expected prior to any
approvals.

D) In some instances, where remedial works relate to an agreed set of measures
such as the management of ongoing remedial systems, or remediation of adjoining
or other affected land, a S106 planning obligation will be sought.

LP2 DMEI 14: Air Quality

A) Development proposals should demonstrate appropriate reductions in emissions
to sustain compliance with and contribute towards meeting EU limit values and
national air quality objectives for pollutants.

B) Development proposals should, as a minimum:

i) be at least “air quality neutral”;

i) include sufficient mitigation to ensure there is no unacceptable risk from air
pollution to sensitive receptors, both existing and new; and

iii) actively contribute towards the improvement of air quality, especially within the Air
Quality Management Area.

TP T4: Assessing and Mitigating Transport Impacts

A) Development Plans and development proposals should reflect and be integrated
with current and planned transport access, capacity and connectivity.

B) When required in accordance with national or local guidance, transport
assessments/statements should be submitted with development proposals to ensure
that impacts on the capacity of the transport network (including impacts on
pedestrians and the cycle network), at the local, network-wide and strategic level,
are fully assessed. Transport assessments should focus on embedding the Healthy
Streets Approach within, and in the vicinity of, new development. Travel Plans,

33

Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 241



Parking Design and Management Plans, Construction Logistics Plans and Delivery
and Servicing Plans will be required having regard to Transport for London guidance.

C) Where appropriate, mitigation, either through direct provision of public transport,
walking and cycling facilities and highways improvements or through financial
contributions, will be required to address adverse transport impacts that are
identified.

D) Where the ability to absorb increased travel demand through active travel modes
has been exhausted, existing public transport capacity is insufficient to allow for the
travel generated by proposed developments, and no firm plans and funding exist for
an increase in capacity to cater for the increased demand, planning permission will
be contingent on the provision of necessary public transport and active travel
infrastructure.

E) The cumulative impacts of development on public transport and the road network
capacity including walking and cycling, as well as associated effects on public health,
should be taken into account and mitigated.

F) Development proposals should not increase road danger.
LP T5: Cycling

A) Development Plans and development proposals should help remove barriers to
cycling and create a healthy environment in which people choose to cycle. This will
be achieved through:

1. supporting the delivery of a London-wide network of cycle routes, with new routes
and improved infrastructure

2. securing the provision of appropriate levels of cycle parking which should be fit for
purpose, secure and well-located. Developments should provide cycle parking at
least in accordance with the minimum standards set out in Table 10.2 and Figure
10.3, ensuring that a minimum of two short-stay and two long-stay cycle parking
spaces are provided where the application of the minimum standards would result in
a lower provision.

B) Cycle parking should be designed and laid out in accordance with the guidance
contained in the London Cycling Design Standards. Development proposals should
demonstrate how cycle parking facilities will cater for larger cycles, including adapted
cycles for disabled people.

C) Development Plans requiring more generous provision of cycle parking based on
local evidence will be supported.

D) Where it is not possible to provide suitable short-stay cycle parking off the public
highway, the borough should work with stakeholders to identify an appropriate on-
street location for the required provision. This may mean the reallocation of space

34
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 242



from other uses such as on-street car parking. Alternatively, in town centres, adding
the required provision to general town centre cycle parking is also acceptable. In
such cases, a commuted sum should be paid to the local authority to secure
provision.

E) Where it is not possible to provide adequate cycle parking within residential
developments, boroughs must work with developers to propose alternative solutions
which meet the objectives of the standards. These may include options such as
providing spaces in secure, conveniently-located, on-street parking facilities such as
bicycle hangers.

F) Where the use class of a development is not fixed at the point of application, the
highest potential applicable cycle parking standard should be applied.

LP T6: Car Parking

A) Car parking should be restricted in line with levels of existing and future public
transport accessibility and connectivity.

B) Car-free development should be the starting point for all development proposals
in places that are (or are planned to be) well-connected by public transport, with
developments elsewhere designed to provide the minimum necessary parking (‘car-
lite’). Car-free development has no general parking but should still provide disabled
persons parking in line with Part E of this policy.

C) An absence of local on-street parking controls should not be a barrier to new
development, and boroughs should look to implement these controls wherever
necessary to allow existing residents to maintain safe and efficient use of their
streets.

D) The maximum car parking standards set out in Policy T6 .1 Residential parking to
Policy T6 .5 Non-residential disabled persons parking should be applied to
development proposals and used to set local standards within Development Plans.

E) Appropriate disabled persons parking for Blue Badge holders should be provided
as set out in Policy T6 .1 Residential parking to Policy T6 .5 Non-residential disabled
persons parking.

F) Where provided, each motorcycle parking space should count towards the
maximum for car parking spaces at all use classes.

G) Where car parking is provided in new developments, provision should be made
for infrastructure for electric or other Ultra-Low Emission vehicles in line with Policy
T6 .1 Residential parking, Policy T6 .2 Office Parking, Policy T6 .3 Retail parking,
and Policy T6 .4 Hotel and leisure uses parking.

35
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 243



All operational parking should make this provision, including offering rapid charging.
New or re-provided petrol filling stations should provide rapid charging hubs and/or
hydrogen refuelling facilities.

H) Where electric vehicle charging points are provided on-street, physical
infrastructure should not negatively affect pedestrian amenity and should ideally be
located off the footway. Where charging points are located on the footway, it must
remain accessible to all those using it including disabled people.

I) Adequate provision should be made for efficient deliveries and servicing and
emergency access.

J) A Parking Design and Management Plan should be submitted alongside all
applications which include car parking provision, indicating how the car parking will
be designed and managed, with reference to Transport for London guidance on
parking management and parking design.

K) Boroughs that have adopted or wish to adopt more restrictive general or
operational parking policies are supported, including borough-wide or other area-
based car-free policies. Outer London boroughs wishing to adopt minimum
residential parking standards through a Development Plan Document (within the
maximum standards set out in Policy T6 .1 Residential parking) must only do so for
parts of London that are PTAL 0-1. Inner London boroughs should not adopt
minimum standards. Minimum standards are not appropriate for non-residential use
classes in any part of London.

L) Where sites are redeveloped, parking provision should reflect the current
approach and not be re-provided at previous levels where this exceeds the
standards set out in this policy. Some flexibility may be applied where retail sites are
redeveloped outside of town centres in areas which are not well served by public
transport, particularly in outer London.

LP T6.1: Residential Parking

A) New residential development should not exceed the maximum parking standards
set out in Table 10.3. These standards are a hierarchy with the more restrictive
standard applying when a site falls into more than one category.

B) Parking spaces within communal car parking facilities (including basements)
should be leased rather than sold.

C) All residential car parking spaces must provide infrastructure for electric or Ultra-
Low Emission vehicles. At least 20 per cent of spaces should have active charging
facilities, with passive provision for all remaining spaces.

36
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 244



D) Outside of the CAZ, and to cater for infrequent trips, car club spaces may be
considered appropriate in lieu of private parking. Any car club spaces should have
active charging facilities.

E) Large-scale purpose-built shared living, student accommodation and other sui
generis residential uses should be car-free.

F) The provision of car parking should not be a reason for reducing the level of
affordable housing in a proposed development.

G) Disabled persons parking should be provided for new residential developments.
Residential development proposals delivering ten or more units must, as a minimum:
1. ensure that for three per cent of dwellings, at least one designated disabled
persons parking bay per dwelling is available from the outset

2. demonstrate as part of the Parking Design and Management Plan, how an
additional seven per cent of dwellings could be provided with one designated
disabled persons parking space per dwelling in future upon request as soon as
existing provision is insufficient. This should be secured at the planning stage.

H) All disabled persons parking bays associated with residential development must:
1. be for residents’ use only (whether M4(2) or M4(3) dwellings)

2. not be allocated to specific dwellings, unless provided within the curtilage of the
dwelling

3. be funded by the payment of a commuted sum by the applicant, if provided on-
street (this includes a requirement to fund provision of electric vehicle charging
infrastructure)

4. count towards the maximum parking provision for the development

5. be designed in accordance with the design guidance in BS8300vol.1

6. be located to minimise the distance between disabled persons parking bays and
the dwelling or the relevant block entrance or lift core, and the route should be
preferably level or where this is not possible, should be gently sloping (1:60-1:20) on
a suitable firm ground surface.

LP2 DMT 1: Managing Transport Impacts

A) Development proposals will be required to meet the transport needs of the
development and address its transport impacts in a sustainable manner. In order for
developments to be acceptable they are required to:

i) be accessible by public transport, walking and cycling either from the catchment
area that it is likely to draw its employees, customers or visitors from and/or the
services and facilities necessary to support the development;

ii) maximise safe, convenient and inclusive accessibility to, and from within
developments for pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users;

iii) provide equal access for all people, including inclusive access for disabled
people;

iv) adequately address delivery, servicing and drop-off requirements; and

37
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 245



v) have no significant adverse transport or associated air quality and noise impacts
on the local and wider environment, particularly on the strategic road network.

B) Development proposals will be required to undertake a satisfactory Transport
Assessment and Travel Plan if they meet or exceed the appropriate thresholds. All
major developments11 that fall below these thresholds will be required to produce a
satisfactory Transport Statement and Local Level Travel Plan. All these plans should
demonstrate how any potential impacts will be mitigated and how such measures will
be implemented.

LP2 DMT 2: Highways Impacts

Development proposals must ensure that:

i) safe and efficient vehicular access to the highway network is provided to the
Council’s standards;

ii) they do not contribute to the deterioration of air quality, noise or local amenity or
safety of all road users and residents;

iii) safe, secure and convenient access and facilities for cyclists and pedestrian are
satisfactorily accommodated in the design of highway and traffic management
schemes;

iv) impacts on local amenity and congestion are minimised by routing through traffic
by the most direct means to the strategic road network, avoiding local distributor and
access roads; and

v) there are suitable mitigation measures to address any traffic impacts in terms of
capacity and functions of existing and committed roads, including along roads or
through junctions which are at capacity.

LP2 Policy DMT 5: Pedestrians and Cyclists

A) Development proposals will be required to ensure that safe, direct and inclusive
access for pedestrians and cyclists is provided on the site connecting it to the wider
network, including:

i) the retention and, where appropriate, enhancement of any existing pedestrian and
cycle routes;

ii) the provision of a high quality and safe public realm or interface with the public
realm, which facilitates convenient and direct access to the site for pedestrian and
cyclists;

iii) the provision of well signposted, attractive pedestrian and cycle routes separated
from vehicular traffic where possible; and

iv) the provision of cycle parking and changing facilities in accordance with Appendix
C, Table 1 or, in agreement with Council.

B) Development proposals located next to or along the Blue Ribbon Network will be
required to enhance and facilitate inclusive, safe and secure pedestrian and cycle
access to the network. Development proposals, by virtue of their design, will be

38
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 246



required to complement and enhance local amenity and include passive surveillance
to the network.

LP2 DMT 6: Vehicle Parking

A) Development proposals must comply with the parking standards outlined in
Appendix C Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable development and address
issues relating to congestion and amenity. The Council may agree to vary these
requirements when:

i) the variance would not lead to a deleterious impact on street parking provision,
congestion or local amenity; and/or

ii) a transport appraisal and travel plan has been approved and parking provision is
in accordance with its recommendations.

B) All car parks provided for new development will be required to contain
conveniently located reserved spaces for wheelchair users and those with restricted
mobility in accordance with the Council’'s Accessible Hillingdon SPD.

39
Planning Committee

Part 1: Members, Public & Press Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Hillingdon
Planning Committee
Wednesday 2nd October 2024

HILLINGDON

Page 249



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: 19 BEACON CLOSE UXBRIDGE

Development: Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of two pairs of semi-detached
dwellings to provide 2 x 3-bedroom dwellings and 2 x 2-bedroom dwellings plus
associated hard and soft landscaping.

LBH Ref Nos: 17969/APP/2024/845

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 250






e LOOON oNmvaa 10-2Z-60 ‘ongor

NH a2103H0
OS  wavEa

2¢0C HOYVIN ava

[ uoneAs|3 apIS by Bunsixg uoneAs|3 apIs Yo bunsixg

SNOILVYAZT3 ANV SNY1d ONILSIX3

T
103ro¥d
N3O

—
MMOIONINNYTINMOLOITISNOO MM am
TO0ONINNYIdNMOLONISNOOBONI W3
99228616710 INOHAZAL

X4298N X3S3100IM 39qEXN
QY0¥ TTIN AT e ‘ISNOH HOONE
“GLTONINNYId NMOL OFISNOD.

ans s

Aje1ePawwI 101EUIBUO B4 0) payioda:

*(1012UBO Bu1) ‘P17 BUILIUEL UMOL OISUOD
10 1UBSUOD USRI U3 INOUIM P3IdOD JO PaUED] ‘PNSSIBI 8 10U ISTII BUMEIP SIYL.
310N

O1mng-sv ONOWONM¥LSNOOD  Ow3anar Oso3d oNiaTing

O ONINNYTd  TVAOYHddY INJMOR  AMYNINITINd
smels anss| bumeiq

SNOISIAY

31va a3X03HO  NWvda NOILI¥OS3a  AJd

ue|d Joo|4 jooy Bunsixg ue|d 1004 punols) Buisixg

fiorenosuon

= =

| wooipeg wooy uondaosy wooy Bulug
o0
db
= =
uayopy Amn
L r‘L‘L
Z wooipeg =8

Page 252




N ooy

Joqun bumeic )

( v ® 00z T ) ="
oes 78l 9vH 1984 UBH 0L
ve/e/6F 103 LIHONY
v T/715S5€ /b POSIDEN I M

'IDAr¥gxn ‘3s010 NOJv3Id 6T LY ANV

woe

“ONLINYTd 3341
a35040¥d IALLYIIGNI

‘GINIVLIY STTYL ONILSIXI

35070 NOOVIg

197055019
Bunsixg

1anossos

1an0ss01
Bunsig

|
-

£10d
20eds
Bupjred

“suiq Joj Jeas
a3 03 55920y

t 30/d

suiq 1of Jeas
a4 07 55390y

£ 30/d

uiod buibleyd
A3 paqunous jjem

Z 0/d

“suiq o) 1eas
a3 03 559201

T 30/d

Buibpoy
3 590
Supsig

sau015
3>

buibpay
3 5231
Bupsixg

1em
Bujureras
may

+Z-G-/ T'paisnipe ueid a3is - v 'NJY

Bunin v gaustose fyowsiossaun
ooy pospai A 4 HBiAGD 553 3 asiop il

rem

Bupueyas
Bunsixg

— L

eI gerz

Pageg 253

£rc

Ire




35414

KN.M&N ‘paisnipe uonesss Juold - v A3y

Z 9 T 10/d SUoiIeAs|3 pue suejdq 100/

( 2vo00r T ) e —
reresst LO3LIHONY ‘I9AI¥gXN ‘IS07D NOJVIF 6T LV ANV
([ 77=77.) (PpoeIoer M
woT wg

ws 1T

z wooygiag || € WOo¥aIE z wpoyazg

T WpoyaIg

83

punoss

NIHOLIN

FONNOT

[e107d]

yanos

EPE

~_

s9Mm

Yoy

D

Page 254




10m

' p
< &
% ™
™
3 PRE
S nl N §
Q O m] ©
v N
< R I I
L I FO
S G i J
§ £
Q n
[ )
° T ¢
5 g, 1
) 2“§§
wEd
5 8t
x I: sz
. =S5t
Q R
2 = <
w ; H
=

[ LAND AT 19 BEACON CLOSE, UXBRIDGE. ] [

West

§
I ) T
= D g :
L g D / | S
IR
I
Ll
IIHHHIHHHH T
| 1[4
i
HHIH ;
= g
IHIHHH [ E
‘ w
L m””” >
N 8 §

LOUNGE

[For3)

Ground

Page 255




-~

4 zvoooriT |\
FISIAT L, 193LIHI¥Y 'I9AI¥gXN ‘IS07D NOJVIF 6T LV ANV
([ =7=77.) (PpoePenrMm

[— S— S—— Ss— —

o1 ug 0

2uaIs 192435

vz oN
bunsixg

B € SI0/d pasodoiq

2% T S30/d pasodoid

o€1z
bunsixg
\r .V\COVVDVV
4 I
mN\ 5 wdpovmnn n\((vv_l.v
r . > P G&0
MN\ RaRVRN! g
r N2
Sh _—
I N
RN

Page 256




I vev .

I'annAnre~ .

Vo yviio |

Page 257

PLANNIPM




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: 39 PARKFIELD ROAD ICKENHAM
Development: Erection of a replacement dwelling.
LBH Ref Nos: 24825/APP/2023/81

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS Page 258



a 001d/¥d6s

- o g

ONN 05101V

C20Z N g s

SNOISIAZY

3AN30S
133LS ® SNVId (3S0d0Nd

M2 olan
WYHN3XO!
Qvo¥ T3V 65

ONITI3MA IN3W3OVId3Y Q3SOdO¥d|

=

IS P p———
:

co/s/sd_ anssassv N dos aanssi |
T t

oML

0007+

| wpoup:
* m
\ i
°  wooupeg -
P
=1 O
Buisseiq
|, TWEST
S wooipeg
e

YoLzt
Zwgst

Buipue
Kisjlen

s

5159

5559

woolpeg

R
Q]
2
0 X
SN

8
[

TWYTIT
UD]d 100[d_ puUnoly) pasodold
T
l/
,,\ , = .
,/ \\ =+ H
N ) TN Il e
o ) ( 3
L r ; I
[ \ 1 ||
v Zuiz
oung meno
(Sacz 1= =
C i
| _ _ Buissaiq
. ) I
—— H
I
o
lieH B
D omfg pano I
0S€7 _ _moEO
] I
.2 Usyany _ _
i g
g foipune L
i
I
0099 N
I
wooy )|
Buiar] ewio _ _
.. X
Il 2
8} I
sLzh _ _
—e\ i) N
Q||| |Q 1
QLo =
e
= 9 N
0G:L 3OS

0001

“Page259— — — — ——




UB10 8LW

raing
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS & SECTIONS

E

39PR/P200

P

Page 260

! 1
SCALE 1:50




B @ BE===

AAAAAAAAA
mmmmmmmmmm

Buug

sy

Page 261




37

1:200

A ISSUED FOR FINAL ASSESSMENT |16/5/23
Rev Description Date
. Project Drawing REVISIONS
KDA Designs Ltd. p~ —
Architectural & Structural Services | PROPOSED REPLACEMENT DWELLING *° A381:50 UNO °  MAY 2023
39 PARKFIELD ROAD ors: e Rev
kevin@kdadesigns.co.uk ICKENHAM PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN
UB10 8LW 39PR/P400 A
Page 262




i RN O-SRL NN N v H AN M

I vev . I'n~Anree . 1

PLANNIPM

veujuL

Page 263




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control
Address: 152 - 154 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Erection of three storey mixed use retail and 9 residential apartments with
ancillary parking, amendments to dropped kerbs, refuse and bicycle storage,
following the demolition of existing buildings.

LBH Ref Nos: 4482/APP/2022/213

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 264



MoJaq $8]eas ¥oayd ‘quid pazis paonpal e aghew siy] :9JON

0699¢r7LI0 'LB99EY LIO Sousussal
95U8|| JBPIO ‘Z20Z/ZLI6L 0ZB0YSE000} 95USD) Jauped SO) SPIojuelS
WoJy BSUBDI| Yjuow Z| Japun peseyoind ejeq dejpleise|y Aeaing eoueuplQ,,

Arepunog uoneoljdde sjewixoidde sejousp aul pay

511312m

L08U86908 |

808

wgel wgz9 0
4 | VA [ ]
[ , v/ A |
€d  NOISSINGNS ONINNV1d 0SZlL 0} | :31VOS
oL G009
cy® pajesipul w% ogcl 1
w ue|d uoed0 as
ue|d uoiedo a)s m
s aneig 5
safeH ‘peoy abpugxn ¥SLesh V)
TewnyeAsr ysaues)
ueyleuebo A UBYJBUBASIA Sll
UBJEWNMBAIS AWESEIBWNY| wg6908408
{
M
%
808
P
£
wg6808 1 Sil &

S
o
Ye)
o

wge68081L

511312m

Page 265




PY] sAAINS WeyuPIML 0207@)

5IN*03*SADAINSWR UMY MMM
A103"sAeAINSUIRYUBDIMIOIEW
08b¥ $T98 0T0-I2L
SNT ZITML X3S31QQIW
TIH NOLdWVH
133¥1S HOIH $TT
3ISNOH WALNID

SYOAIAYNS ONIATING ANV ANV

SAIAINS WYHNHIOIML

QHME A paxsyd

25 Aq umeig

020z 9quiaag 2100
pub 131 : a|eds
95107 © "oN Bumeiq

van
SIAVH
Av0oy 39drdaxn ¥S1-¢ST

NV1d 40074 ANNOYD

InvoIaN

*AlloUsR1U| PRINSEBLL 3OS S/ PUE PIEOG MOPUIN
S 31031pUI SBI2Y PR3Y PUE > MOPUIN

*pReaIpul BsiALBL0 SSBIUN QB 5/q U0 UaEY B8 SfRAE)
“pasiApe 51 UoneyAUBPI 1ede pue

onnes m po1eai 3G PITOYS (UNOYS 213y) Sa193dS 331
j01q ABAINS 8L Ul PSPNPUI J BIPS3S 8813 34y 03 SPEL 8
PINOUS 830a.2jo1 pue AU SARE3BSaICAI B SuID 311
wedinbo pue seinies

punoiBiapun Buneso] 3prul 30U pIP A3NnS SIYL

"STUST0Z BUNRIP Uo UMoYS 52 ‘PRaUiey TNLS WOO'OT WEL 0 312 s2481
“ss03 & 4q payeaipul e suonised [pna)

“pu [evonen

HBNINS 33ueUpiQ 01 p31ela: 10U s PUB AoAINS AL

“lfews o 0OT:T Jo Sale3s 3¢ BuIUBISaR/BuLEld o

5umold oy sigenns aiojeiayy 5131 0fd 0011 @

BULING3. 314G © J0j PaUSIEISS Sem ASAINS SIu) o [1e39P 3UL
“dusiaumo e68] jo aka By

Juesa1da1 100 ew S21mes; Aiepunog pIAOAINS

185003 Joud AnOUIM ssBn

e 0 o faisuodss. ou S1d20e SKSAINS WRYLOINL
*s3uBLlnbal [RUIBLIO SUBID S 03 PUNIEL LBBG BARY [N
Koeinae AanIns @y pUE UoReULIOJU J0 U@ pLE 24 BUL
“papURIUI 3fe35 31 BUPNPUI G ASAINS [2UIBLO 3 U0
2WspuSdap 5| Ao0NS i Jo SsauETfduIo) pue Adeinae YL
“shonINS weyuSpINL 0

Ap3eipoi) ojes kauedansip uasedde jo asea st Ul
“peauaLIIOD S\ o Aue a10jeq

102582300 211 AQ 211S U0 PO2RU? 24 01 BIE SUOISUBLIP 1Y

S31ON

NOY6

N096

N086

30201

30201

5
g

30001

3086

NOY6

N096

Page 266

N086




PY] sA2AINS WeyuPIML 0207Q)

5IN*03*SADAINSWR UMY MMM
A103"sAeAINSUIRYUBDIMIOIEW
08b¥ $T98 0T0-I2L
SNT ZITML X3S31QQIW
TIH NOLdWVH
133¥1S HOIH $TT
3ISNOH WALNID

SYOAIAYNS ONIATING ANV ANV

SAIAINS WYHNHIOIML

QHME A paxsyd

25 Aq umeig
020z 9quiaag 2100
pub saja1 ajeds

L5107 ¢ "ON Bumeiq

van
SIAVH
Av0oy 39drdaxn ¥S1-¢ST

LNI¥d1O04 Y0014 LS

InvoIaN

*AlloUsR1U| PRINSEBLL 3OS S/ PUE PIEOG MOPUIN
S 31031pUI SII2Y PR3Y PUE > MOPUIM

*pReaIpul BSiAUBL0 SSBIUN QB 5/q U0 LaEY B8 SfEAE)

“pasiApe 51 UoneyAUBPI 1ede pue

onnes m po1eai 3G PITOYS (UNOYS 213y) Sa193dS 331

j01q ABAINS 8L Ul PSPNPUI J BIPS3S 8813 34y 03 SPEL 8

PINOUS 230R.8j81 pue AU SARE3BSaIdRl e SIS 3311

wedinbo pue seinies

punoiBiapun Buneso] 3prul 30U pIP A3NnS SIYL

"STUST0Z BUNRIP Uo UMoYS 52 ‘PRaUiey TNLS WOO'OT WEL 0 312 s2481
“ss013 & 4q payeaipul e suopised [pna)

“pu fevonen

HBNINS 33ueUpiQ 01 p31ela: 10U s PUB AoAINS AL

“lfews o 0OT:T Jo Sale3s 3¢ BuIUBISaR/BuLEld o

5umold oy sigenns aiojeiayy 5131 0fd 0011 @

BULING3. 314G © J0j PaUSIEISS Sem ASAINS SIu) o [1e39P 3UL

“dusiaumo e68] jo aka By

Juesa1da1 100 ew S21mes; Aiepunog pIAOAINS

185003 Joud AnOUIM ssBn

e 0 isuodsai ou Sidee SBAINS WeULSINL
Syusuainbal [BUIBLO S UBIE 8 o) AR LBeq ALY [
Koeinae AanIns @y pUE UoReULIOJU J0 U@ pLE 24 BUL

“popuIuI ofe3s a1 BuPPL
2WspuSdap 5| Ao0NS i Jo SsauETfduIo) pue Adeinae YL
“shonINS weyuSpINL 0

Ap3eipoi) ojes kauedansip uasedde jo asea st Ul
“peauaLIIOD S\ o Aue a10jeq

102582300 211 AQ 211S U0 PO2RU? 24 01 BIE SUOISUBLIP 1Y

1a Aanins [euiBLi0 41 U0

S31ON

NOY6

N096

NOS6

30201

30201

5
g

30001

3086

NOY6

N096

Page 267

N086




Existing tarmac
footpath

New hedgerow / wall
shrubs to soften
north-eastern elevation

Existing
unmade
access

Existing double metal
gates

New flat bar vertical
metal ralings 1.2m high,
hedgerow and shrub

planting to enhance
road frontage and
provide defensible space
for he ground floor flat

'

== New maintenance
access gate and

New access - dropped kerb
I crossover to Local
Authority specification &
details

\

|

|

Dashed line indicates
existing access alignment
\

|

|

\

|

New tarmac footpath

Existing tarmac
pedestrian areas’

Existing bicycle
stands (2no.)

“oﬂ“

432 10 2 4 om
[— — |
[

SCALE 1:100 @ Al

Raised planter 450mm high
with small tree/ large shrub
and under storey planting

Proposed wall shrub/ climbers

Proposed clipped instant
hedgerow planting to provide
endlosure and privacy
between the car parking and
amenity private area

NOTES
Copyright: [

Bradford Smith Lt

'g Al contractors

worlks shown on the drawing, Alllevls n meters:

Flace It s ©
Iocate llinderground sevices prio to constuction.
Drawings: Al ravings and levdls to be checked on it prior to the constructon werks

specifeatons
crepancies: par

LEGEND

SOFT LANDSCAPE WORKS

Proposed small feature tree / large
shrub- multi-stem species

Proposed hedgerow/ wall shrubs
lanting

Proposed structure shrub planting

Proposed ornamental shrub &
groundeover planting

Proposed dlipped hedgerow planting

Proposed dlipped instant hedgerow
planting

HARD LANDSCAPE WORKS

Macadam areas: suitable for
pedestrian and vehicular use

Access drives: Porous macadam
areas: suitable for pedestrian and
vehicular use

Private Amenity Areas: Pai i
Mo geled by Tobermare o b equler:
oo, sanstons, nonelp srured i el
cordance wih e e osmcsons

Access / Turning Area: rermeable Hlock
Paving: Marshal o Tobermre or simbr equnclent
colour TBC; nsaledn accordance with the
mandfacturersinstructions

Car Parking Bays: permestle tlock Paving
Marshls or Tobermorsor simda squser,
colour TBC,installd n acordince with the
manfcture’s inseuctions

Metal Railings: verta e ear Raigs: 1200mm
g

Colour Bhadc
Suppler: Alpha Rl or simdar equivilent

Raised Timber Planter: 4somm high
Woodscape or simlr equivalent

Existing building demolished

Site Boundary

NOTES
Hard landscape details and drainage - refer to

Architects and Engineers details. For detals on retaining

structures, please refer to engineers / architects details.

PLANNING

UXBRIDGE ROAD (A4020)

TYPICAL IMAGES FOR THE HARD & SOFT PALETTE ON GROUND FLOOR

Paving shabs: Mayfield supplied by Tobermore or similar equivalent: Colour:
sandstone: noneshp textured slabs installed in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions

Vertical Flat Bar Railings: Colour: Black: 1200mm
high (circa)

5 THOROLD
FARNHA
SURREY

GU9 7)Y

ROAD
M

TEL&FAX01252 714607

EMAIL: mo@bradfordsmith.co.uk

Project
152-154 UXBRIDGER ROAD, HAYES,
MIDDLESEX, UB4 0JH

Permeable Block Paving: Marshalls or Tobermore or simikr equivalent
colour TBC; installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions

Page 268

Client

Kumarasamy Sivakumaran, Visvanathan Yoganathan and
Ganesh Jeyakumar

Drawing Title

Landscape Proposals Plan

Scale Date Drawn
1:100@ Al December 2021 MS
Drawing No. Status Revision
887-LA-P-01 PLANNING B

g 0

[ o g oot

osuedor Despltomtion
bundor Tendr

s

[t torconamsien




Anorsy
€ ' |
§ l |

Ld NOISSINENS ONINNY1d

00z S00S
LY@ 00l : L

ueld 100]4 punoJs) pssodoid

sl Bumeig

sefeH ‘peoy 8bpuaxn v5L-25L

apLgor
JewnyeAar ysaues
ueyjeueboA UeYJRUBASIA
uesewnyeAls Awesesewny

owen syl

uonduoseg _uoisinad

@510z
24 BMQ) sUoReSI3 § (57,6107 2 Bg) Bupnjou ‘uoseLoyl
fonins a1udei6odo) sASAINS weyuaom 1, uodn pases TON

(yun 12 soeds |) sa0eds safofo )

(4un 1od 1) saoeds Bupyied 1es

SEEI AR
(wbs £50°04) ;Wives. [

Ejes gez.
renuepises - (S Gv6') WLOL [Ei0L4ns,

Suapies Ayuauy [eunuwos

TR
Ead (wbs 526) (g8 (dsqg) y0c0 0kd.
wg's (4bs g52) oL (Ar) £0720 0
oL (4bs 9g8) ws8 (d54€) 20720 10l
g (S £51) 0L (Gr2) 10720 0l

ToreT pUoss.
Ed (Wbs 626) 18 (dsdg) p0”10 10kd.
‘weg (S £51) oL (Gr) €010 0l
wgp (DS 985) L8 (d59€) 2010 Wl
Al (DS £52) w0z {dyaz) L0710 1okd.
TR
iz (wbs 06£D) Wwezz (re124) 20700 1
g9k (s e52) :woL (@vaz) LOT00 ¥old.
Y FRETROS

3INA3HOS NOLLYAOWWODOY
somos; [eunuwon,
N 12y ferosauoD
eunedy poog
wawpedy uosiedrPeRz ||
aN3931
‘sesodind Jajsues) pue] 10} pesn aq ou Jsnu BuMEIp SIL -
sosnep uoeayoads
1ueA2fa BU} U UONIUNTUOO Ui PEal 3 SN BUmeip Sy =

POULIUOD WNIEP 118y} PUE BYS U0 P808ya aq Jsnul sjona] fiy =

45 o pavoayo 2 0} 110 BuSS Iy -
1S U poyoalo o isnu -

wol

mojoq safeas Yoayo jud pazis paonpes e aaAew S 20N

wg

z
“sBuwiesp doys Aue Bupfeus 1o ‘yiora BuouEWILID ‘N0

0

1 V72 s\

Bus 810jaq BYS U0 SUOISUBLI 2 AJLIBA |SNLU SI0PEU0D

“uoyieatiqe; 810joq oS U0 PaYIBYD 8 0} SuoISUSWIP
IV 1999 24} 0} SUOISSILIO puE S10113 [l Hodey :3LON

Lz vZ4 223

0oL o}

37908

Auepunog uayeaydde ssjousp auj poy

psi-z8LoN

20¥v1S
o
1
®
o
xox

B

K

2

'
z
G
sosiy
soes an
il
Aoy
Sreni G 91 e
W
s un,
oy (0% iov
9910195 [eatndal3 m
NOLLV1S-Ens weg 3
i

_ _ ”

soueque

5035 tum

981 efoh1q oUO}

ssnjzy

10
viS

sox0q
190

builing ine 0"

oM

no Bu

spueis
ephaig X3

avoy

3aIsioous

‘sjousp sau payseq

sBues Ejou yim
sbeuoy pojue

)
'
'
\

—

00} L
|9A97 punoi9 o

R\

Page 269



i

gd NOISSINENS ONINNYTd

10z 5005
LV® 00l : L

ue|d Joo| }sJi4 pasodoid

sl Buweig

sefeH ‘peoy abpuUaxn ¥51-2G L

oL gor

Jewnyefar yseues
ueyjeueBo A ueyjeuBASIA
uelewnyeAls Aweselewny)

sweN sslo

osu e

Uonduossg _uoisinay

Te2/50/12 Bugeaw) 1230
ubsaq |9UnoD padofensp UBSSQ

swnl vzozs0z0] svij

48y Big) SuohENR3 R (S72610Z 48 Bm) Buipnjour ‘uo
onuns oideiBode) skaning iweyuaxow L, uodn peseg TION

(3un 100 a0eds 1) seveds sepoko o)

in 124 |) ssoeds Bupiied 189 6

WE3 ATEB0Y
bs £5004) uives EoL

e+ weez
[enuspisal - ('bS GvS's) AULOL [E01-ans

suspieg fyuswy [eunwiwion

TP

(wbs 526) oy (ds

2010l
0720 ol
0720 vl
@) 40720 i

(s 9g6) wze
(wbs £52) oL

TERTPUOSS
(wbs 6.6) wie
(wbs £52) oL
(4bs og6) wig
(wbs £82) oL

(dsag) v0710 100
0710 ¥l

10l
(dvaz) L0710 0K

BETED

(s 06) wuzzz (1) 20700 1k
455 6525 woL @932) 10700 1l
RSy

TRTPIeTS
31NG3HOS NOLLYAOWHOOOY
Sanoe) feunwuiod
i [mey feiewiioo
weunedy padg.
wewniedy wosisdroeaz ||
anaom

sasodind Jejsuel; puef 1o} asn eq jou SN Bumeip siyL -

sesnep uoeayoads
Wenafal oy} Ui UoyoUN[oD Uy peas 8q Jsnu BUMEIp SIUL
POWJUO WNJEP 119U} PUE BYS U0 PaY98YD aq 1SNl S[o;
aUS U0 paxoaUD 0 0} 1N BUS Iy
oUs uo paxoed oq jsnus

wol wg
P - e 1
“sBuweip doys Aue Bupfew 1o “Yiora BuIUBLILIOD ‘Ino

Mojeq seleas Yoayo ‘Juiid pezis peonpal & sqAeLL SIUL (210N

Vza 1771

|V}
Buos 010j0q o1S U0 SuISUOWIP [I2 AjioA 1SNU SIOJEIUOD

“UolIEOUqE] 010jaq OYS UO PaYIYD 04 0} SUOISUBLIP
1031401 2U) 0} SUOISSIULO PUE 1015 le Hoday ‘ILON

@)
Auspuncr uoneayide sejousp ou poy
Osb-arioN  belezsioN
we
ere s
Zro
Buuig 5
i fBunry >
e Sened
g
cusge - asee
0710 107 g s eoeuey
sron 9
o s
S foun
3 [
s
s
oseiey -
sieni e
wes "
gy - v
070 1074 f
wrey
" e s
ren
oo et
wesios w
pozers
parerans
an
20wvis wwea
oo 11 fuoarg oo
croni o \
cuse-asae
w0 Lot
-
s
i
chon
wz
rea
wz
&
- e
ek
g
10
- MVIS g
s n
pr—
e )
o w
gy
Zrea
o
w
ez 5S "
Suug fann cuos - v
[ W00 o7
saaIas feouoal3
NoLLvis-ans
44 i
A s s =4
|
L — zon

opum pasopp
o + ono)
ool oroge.

ssefs painasco
o w L

avoy
3aIsyoous

0oL - L
(1amo) [anaT 38414710

Page 270



i

gd NOISSINENS ONINNYTd

20z 5005
LV® 00l : L

ueld Joo|4 puooag pasodold

sl Buweig

sefeH ‘peoy abpuUaxn v51-2G L

ot aor
Jewnyefar yseues

ueyjeueBo A ueyjeuBASIA
uelewnyeAls Aweselewny)

sweN sso

osu e

Uonduossg _uoisinay

Te2/50/12 Bugeaw) 1230
ubsaq |9UnoD padofensp UBSSQ

swnl vzozs0z0] svij

Ylmee o
"Gusr0z
Job B1) suonerdt3 3 (S7461402 fou BG) Bupriou ‘wonewsiogn
Aanins odeiBodo) sAAAINS Welusyom L, Uoch peseg TGN
(4un 1ad soeds |) saoeds sajoko 0}
(yun s2d |) saoeds Bupped jeo g
(4bs £90°04) 2wivee
eres- awgez
[eyuspisa) - (WbS GpS'L) \WLOL [ew1-gns
suapies Ayuowy feunuiuon
FRTPIT
wpe (s 576) wgg (dsag) p0e0 1ol
wgs (S £52) oL ) £0720 10k
e (v 985) wis X
duyg oS es) woz (6992) 10 c0 ol
TR
g (d5ag) p010 Wl
g ) 6070 01
gl (dsqg) 207100k
wy'g (Wb e52) WoL (dyag) L0710 ¥old
TR
anz  Gybsoeed) wezz (=19 20700 0l
uig'sl oS es) wor (d992) 1000 ol
NN TeAST pUnoIS
FINAZHOS NOLLYAOWNOOY
Pr——
0 e feiowon
wwpedy page
wowpedy uosisgppegz ||
anzom
sasodind 1ajsuel) pue| 10} pasn aq jou Jsn Bupelp si -
‘sesnef uoyeoyoads i
\UEAB|a1 BU) Y UooUR[UOD Ul PEBI B4 1SN BUMEIP SIY) = #mojeq seleas yoayo ‘juud pazis paonpal & aqkew siy) :3JON
POWIUOD WNJEP 11Oy} PUE BYS UO PaXOBYD o] IS S|/ -
1S Uo paxoaya aq o} no Bules Iy wol wg 0
oJis U0 paxoaYo aq SN 1PN - [ra ) )
|V R .. .5
~sBumesp doys Aue Bupjew 1o ‘yior BulpUBWIWIOD ‘IO 001 O} 1 3OS
Bums 810Jq S UO SUOISUBWIP [[E AJIBA 1SNUI SIOIORIU0D
“uoljeouqe) e10jeq Al U oA o o) SuoISUBLLIP

1031401 2U) 0} SUOISSIULO PUE 1015 le Hoday ‘ILON

.._4“_31 woz fpmig

w
zpeg
wy
Lpog
e - arez
020 10d
Lwog
ey weg s3
[
e sz
ey e
4 et
s
2
000y wooy
e e
ieg M
g - vz
€020 107d
iz
w Lpea
ussios foentud
ssmb panosao >
uoasos w
pezeib ueens
poje a1y
foonig an
20 ¥vis
Auooreg AoeAg
oo g
e - dsge
2020 10d
Bung Buny
sy
EE
as
ws
epeg
w
zpeg
wzy
. Ipog
eg e
10
sy S e
somies
fuoopeg
gt
zpen
e
W
w9z s M
Buiq fBuny 2wg, - dvaz
vy 10720 107d
So0MmaS [R0L93
NolLvis-ans
. A gy
i wea s3 =

WooipesH WS
WooipesH WO

wooipEsH W0z
wooipesH g,

Mopum pasofp

ssejp painosqo

P iy

avoy
3aIsHoous

00l 1
,, (49mo07) |9Ad pU0O29S~ 20

Buug
[BuINT puBL

Page 271



m oy |

00} b
, (1amo7) [anaT pAIYL €0
e

Ld NOISSINENS ONINNY1d

s

o —
st
€02 S00S

R —

oNdor A | |
LY@ 00l : L - - |
\aouvo —\/ | .
ue|d Joo|4 jooy pasodold | \
s Buweig 1 | —
oo J , ,,
sofeH ‘peoy abpUAXN ¥51-2S ) , ,
L gor |
JewnyeAar ysoues nov \
ueyjeuebo, ueyjeueasin \ avoy \
00 ,
ueJewnyealg Awesesewny| \ —
M40 _aleq  uweig uonduosag _uolsinay \ \ 2
0 0 ) 1T \ , N~
Swn|_zzociger | \ D
TYZ0TZ0/10 WS Apeia S0 \ \
. — e e b | \ o
swn] vzozsosz]| swmf fpesg siuD o) padofensp ubisaq| | \ \ \ a
. ,
Sqssencetoy > |
opeusniea : \ =
“Gus10z SSEIB Uby wi N3Q¥VO ~ |
Jox1 BG) suoneAd(3 B (76107 jo4 BMG) BuIpnjoul “uonewwiojul ALINZWY TYNDAWGO | | -
Aanins oydesBodo) skaning weyuayow 1, uodn paseg BION. \ |
in 1ad soeds |) ssoeds sajoko 0L | \
(3un Jad 1) seoeds Bupyied 123 6 |
rbs £3001) zuves woa \ \ \
rerei- ez | \
[PAuEPISS1 - (4D GG 1) AL0L f=01ans ! \ \
Suspies Auawy euniwog | ' \
AOV \
(uds 526) 9B \
(4bs £52) W0 w1
(ubs 9¢6) wi/g \
(wbs e5/) ;wioz. \
wp's (ubs 626) :wiLs \
wg'g Mgﬁm nﬁw WL .
iz (wbs 08£'7) wizzz (re124) 20700 04 \
Jwg'gL (s e52) woL (dyaz) L0700 I
3INQ3HOS NOLLYAOWINODDY | NOlLV.is-Ens [r———
‘seyjoe feunuiwion |
——

|
anzez

sasodind Jejsuel} puef 10} asn oq jou 1SN Bumeip SiyL -

sosnepo uoeayeds
Wena{a1 oy} Ui UooUN[OS Uy pea1 8q 1SNU BUMEIP SIL =
POULIUOS WINIEP 10U} PUE BYS U0 PeYIRYD o] 1SN S|oA3 Iy =

| \ \
| \
#mojaq sajeas Yoayo ‘juuid pazis paonpal e aqhew siyL (330N |
|
5US U pexoaLD 24 0} 1N BUBS Iy - wol wg 0
OUS U0 POXDOLD 0 ISnul Iy - e (. B |
|V} | o) Z2
“sBuwiesp doys Aue Bupfeus 1o ‘yiora BuouEWILID ‘N0 Tor) avos
Bues o10}eq oy U SUOISUALUIP 12 AYiA 1SNl SI0jENUOD oobor) -
“uoyieatiqe; 810joq oS U0 PaYIBYD 8 0} SuoISUSWIP
IV "192U41Y 3 0} SUOISSIWO pue So1a fle woday 310N




— Raised planter with
climbing plants

Proposed -
wildflower
green roof

Vegetation

pebble barrier -
300mm wide

Raised planter \

with climbing
plants

' Communal Ameni

| Areas: consisting of

| raised planters of

| varying heights
(between 300 -

500mm high) with

timber seating

|
|
\

\
|
|
\
|
|
|
| Raised planter
with climbing
| plants

Communal Amenity
| Areas: consisting of
| raised planters of

AoV

varying heights
! (between 300 -
V' 500mm high) with T
| timber seating )

Glass balustrade
to architects
V' details

|
\
|

Maintenance gate

Proposed -
wildflower green
roof

\
1
1
1
1
\
1
1 getati
V' pebble barrier -
1| 300mm wide
\
\
1
1
1
1
\

“oﬂ“

432 10 2 4 om
[— —

SCALE 1:100 @ Al

NOTES
Copyright:

Bradford Smith Lt

'g Al contractors

worlks shown on the drawing, Alllevls n meters:

Flace It s
Iocate allinderground services prio to constructor
Drawings: Al ravings and levds to be checked

on siteprior o the construction works

specifeatons

LEGEND

SOFT LANDSCAPE WORKS

floor)

planting (on ground floor)

ground floor)

Proposed ornamental shrub &

(on ground floor)

planting (on ground floor)

ornamental shrub & herbaceous
planting

HARD LANDSCAPE WORKS

Macadam areas: suitable for
pedestrian and vehicular use
z

Access drives: Porous macadam
areas: suitable for pedestrian and
vehicular use

it the manscurer' nstuctons
Car Parking Bays: (on ground floor)
Permeste Bock Paing, Marshall or Tt

the manufacturer’s instructons.

s rstalled n accordince with the o
retucsens

Communal Amenity Areas: Timber
o simir quvalent: Clss A fre-rated externd

nstructons.

Varying szes & heghts 300-500mm W supplied by
Europlantes or simiar equvalent

Benches: umber datted seas supplied by
Europlantes or simiar equivlent

Vegetation Pebble Barrier: 200mm wie

Site Boundary

e details: refer to Architects and Engineers
details. For details on retaining structures, please refer to
engineers / architects details.

Surface drainage: to be provided by engineers.
Surface materials: to be installed in accordance with the
manufacturers instructions. Laid to falls.

For details on retaining structures: refer to Engineer's
details.

Raised GRP Planters:

Al raised planters: Water reservoir & filler pipe to be
installed.

Plant Irrigation: Mona Plantsava Tanks; sizes and numbers to
be confirmed; supplied by Green - tech Ltd
Lightweight Topsoil to all planter subject to confirmation of
weight and drainage by engineer. gt Growlite Roof Garden
Compost; Drainage layer: GT Leca (5-8mm) - 100mm deep.
Al supplied by Green-tech Ltd or similar approved
(www green-tech.co.uk).

PLANNING

Proposed Raised Planters: varying
heights (300-500mm high) with mixed

Private Amenity Areas: (on grou

Paung dabs Maytdd supeled by Tobermore r s
equviert. Colour: sndrtone:non-p texured i
Inselled n accordince with the manfacrer's mcsons

Access / Turning Area: (on ground floor)

Raised Planters: fre-bricsted GRP panters of

Discrapancies: Any discrepancy on the drawings shall be referred to the CA immediatly.

Proposed small feature tree / large
shrub- multi-stem species (on ground

Proposed hedgerow/ wall shrubs

Proposed structure shrub planting (on

groundcover planting (on ground floor)

Proposed dlipped hedgerow planting

Proposed dlipped instant hedgerow

Proposed Wildflower Green Roof

simir quvaent;colour TBC: installed i accordance with

Communal Amenity Areas: Paving external
tles on pedestals - Aven Ceou: i nonelp tured

decking; snusp: supplied by Outdoor Deck Company

tooring
system nstalled in accordance with the manufcturer’s

TYPICAL IMAGES FOR THE HARD & SOFT PALETTE FOR ROOF GARDEN

Paving Tiles on Pedestab; Colour: the; noneskp textured shibs installed in
accordance with the manufacturer's instructions

Drawing Title
Roof Garden Areas
Scale Date Drawn
GRP Raised Phnters Wildlower Green Roof 1:100@ Al December 2021 Ms
Drawing No. Status Revision
887-LAP-02 PLANNING
0 e [ teedtor esrtormaion
Timber Decking & Paving Tiles P ag e 2 7 3 GRP Planters and timber benches s for Haming Agprovl [ tuedtor Tnder
[ testorcomrcon [] e

Wildflower Green Roof

5 THOROLD ROAD
FARNHAM
SURREY
GU9 7)Y

TEL&FAX01252 714607

EMAIL: mo@bradfordsmith.co.uk

Project

152-154 UXBRIDGER ROAD, HAYES,
MIDDLESEX, UB4 0JH

Client

Kumarasamy Sivakumaran, Visvanathan Yoganathan and
Ganesh Jeyakumar




gd NOISSINENS ONINNYTd

00t S00S

LV® 00l : L

seos

| 188YS - suoljeas|3 pasodoid

sl Buweig

sefeH ‘peoy abpuUaxn v51-2G L

oL gor

Jewnyefar ysaues
ueyjeueBo A ueyjeuBASIA
uelewnyeAls Aweselewny)

sweN sso

opsu _eieq

\zzzr |
22071061
Te2/50/12 Bugeaw) 1230
£20210'50] ubsaq |9UnoD padofensp uBSSQ
Ty20e/L01 | Teua) siusuwos|
swnl veozsoez] s fpeig siu0 o1 padonep ubisaq| 54l

SUUM - sfoued Buippep (3o

[l
sy
Siowiop BunoauBieu uoieus o BuppeD )
susaios suiied BRIS 100 7]
Suzep envedo  [jy)
et - seddumon 3 s ond [of]
0elg - spensnieq [N [
FepuRy foais Sselus U apensnied pozelD (5]
Ao - Budos wnumye possaid |1
o - sap Joos ureid Buspoopew aerouod (9]
fo1 io0p jopupn wniasy [5]
sy - swopum wnuwnty  [¥]
foi-Buppepouz €]
enigikei -youg poelo (2]

(Buysixe yojew of) pay = powvjoiiq Buce:y

ONZO3TSTVRELYA

sasodind sajsuei) pue 1o} pasn aq Jou jsnus Bumelp s -
‘sesnep uoijeaoads

JuEAS{a1 B} YA UONAUNILD Ui PEB1 5 JSNL BUIMEID S|
PaWLIJUOD WNJEP J1aY) PUE B)IS UO PaYILYd oq SN S|o;
Y U0 paxoalo 2q 0} INo BUNIBS iy

o5 U0 PaXYD 8q 1SN SUOISUBIP Iy -

“sBuwiesp doys Aue Bupfews 1o “yior BurouaWILID o
Buos 010j0q o1S U0 SuISUOWIP [IE Ajion 1SN SIOJEIUOD

“UolIEOUqe] 010jaq OYS U0 PaYIYO 04 0} SUOISUBLIP
1031401y 3U) 0} SUOISSIULIO PUE SI01a l2 Hoday ‘TLON

Mojoq sefeos %0yo ‘juid pozis peonpes e qkew siy L :9JON

wol wg [
C 1 [z F 72

) ZZ Za

00} O3} 3OS

Ssey6 painosqo Uty wiz'y
Sl0usp Sesie pausIEy SIS

fo19 - siopnys wniuwnly ds

e

ool -1
(yo7) uoneas|3 apis

ool L
uoneAd| Juoi4

Page 274



Mojaq sejeas yoayo 'luuid pezis peonpal & sqAew SIy | 130N

wol wg 0

g
00L 0} :37v0S 0L 1

(3ybry) uonens|3 apig

punouBesoy ul uoners.

-ans ssjousp suy paiiseq
-

gd NOISSINENS ONINNYd

. e
1o¥ 5005
LV® 00l : L S ,
s o .
Z 199US - suoneas|3 pesodoid s Sownig oumia
oL Bumeiq T i3 JuByoEy fpms
.
sefe ‘peoy abpuUaxn v51-2G L S : .
Byl gor k] L
s
JewnyeAsr yseues
ueyjeueBoA ueyjeuensip
uelewnyeAls Aweselewny| .
.
oAl iz gl ]
uolssiwgns 10ddy-aid|
P R
220Z'10°6L| SV 10 uosisiugns Buiuueld| 9d|
[ (290112 Buneaw) 2auio| B
e 00k : b

swn veozs0ez| sl #peig suuD o1 padojenap ubisag| sl u o_u e, >0_ m e Om

Se0IAJeS [e0L9013

NOLLY1s-8ns
i
SN - Sfoued BuppEp IR (g
EIr T
Siouiop SunoauBiau e o1 -BUPPID [cy]
sussios suneg oIS W00 ()
Buizeip enbedo (] o
o - sadiduncp B SEWBNONG (03] s
speig - opensoied feion 5] v
Ieipuzy [oa1s SSoluITS U apersnied pozelo (8] — v
fo19 - Budos wnuwne possaig |1 o

wnoug - 5o oo weid Suppopiews swiuco (3]
foig - si00p /swopum wnuwny (8]

LA - SMOPUM WUy

fo19 - Buppep Uiz

2]

anigikaI0 - youg pazeln

(Buysixe yojew of) payi - Wowvioiq Buoe:y

=]

QNZOITSTVRELYA

sasodind Jejsuel} puef 10} pasn aq jou SN Bumep siyL -

sesne uoeayoads

JeAaja1 oy} Ui UooUN[OD Uy Peal 8 JSnu BUMEIp SIUL
POWJUOD WNJEP 119U} PUE BYS U0 PaY29YD aq 1SNl Sio;

B)S U0 Pa3j03Ya 84 0} 10 BUISS Iy

oS U pax98LD 0 SN SOISURWIP Iy -

“sBuwiesp doys Aue Bupfews 1o “yior BurouaWILID o
Buos 010j0q o1S U0 SuISUOWIP [IE Ajion 1SN SIOJEIUOD

“UolIEOUqe] 010jaq OYS U0 PaYIYO 04 0} SUOISUBLIP
1031401y 3U) 0} SUOISSIULO PUE 105 l2 Hoday ‘TLON

Page 275



i

zd NOISSINENS ONINNYTd

(404 S00S

LV® 00l : L

seos

€ 188Ug - suoljeas|3 pasodoid

sl Buweig

sefeH ‘peoy abpuUaxn v51-2G L

oL gor

Jewnyefar yseues
ueyjeueBo A ueyjeuBASIA
uelewnyeAls Aweselewny)

sweN sso

paosuo_areg Uonduoseq _uoisineys

TyZ0e/L01 b Tewa) siusuwos|
swnl veozsoez] sij fpeig suu0 o1 padofenep ubisaq| 2|

S - sfaued Buppep [

sy - sapusy

Siauii0p BuliNoqyBiau yotews o} - Buippelo.
Susalog suIsTEd RIS UaUOD

6uizefb anbedo

soug - sadidumop B S1aRnG NOAJ

0eIg - apensneq el

Feipuy 001 SSaUIEIS Yk opexsnieq pazelD
faug - Buidoo wnyuwnle passaig

unoig - ssi Joos ured Bunyoopielul sje1ou0D

o19) - $100p jSMOPUIM WUy

[v

UM - SmopUm WUy

fo19 - Buppep ouiz

anlgiaio - youg pazelo

(Bugsixe yojew of) payi = Wowvioiq Buoe:y

aNEOFTSTVRELYA

sasodind Jejsuel; puef 1o} asn eq jou SN Bumeip siyL -
sesnep uoeayoads

Juenafa1 ) U uolaUNILCD Ui Peal 5 1SN BUMEIp
POULIUOD WINIEP 19U} PUE SIS UO PaYIRYD aq 1SN S{an)
SUS U paxoaLD 24 0} N0 BURS Iy

S U0 PoX98LD 0q JSnu SUCISUBWID [y -

“sBuwiesp doys Aue Bupfews 1o “yior BurouRWILID o
Buos 010j0q o1S U0 SuISUOWIP [I2 AjioA 1SNU SIOJEIUOD

“UolIEOUqE] 010jaq OYS UO PaYIYD 04 0} SUOISUBLIP
IV “108)01Y 5U) 0} SUOISSIULO pUE 1018 e Hodey ‘3LON

Mojoq seeas yoayo 'luuid pezis peonpal & aqAew SIY | 130N

wg 0
1 [z F 72

) ZZ Za
00} O3} 3OS

uspien JOOY UIBYINOS - MIIA dAI3adSIad

avoy
3aIsxoous

puOaq WLZ BoLD G L-bir 40U SMOPUMA 100} 181

ook -1
(ynog) uoneas|g pieAunos jeulajul

1oy
lepiowiioo

sosy 10
soinies. alvis avoy
aaissooxa

avoy
3aisooxs

20 ¥Iv1S w

usaios pazelf p

[o[o] "
X - X uonseg

emp
i

woon 6uzers
P8 onbodo)
ey

00l - b

(yuoN) uoneas|3 prefunog jeusajul

usaios koenig

Page 276



I vev .

I'annAnre~ .

cojero |

Page 277

PLANNIPM




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: YEADING INFANT SCHOOL CARLYON ROAD HAYES
Development: Installation of solar panels on the school roofs.
LBH Ref Nos: 17997/APP/2024/1610

Hillingdon Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 278



Yeading Infant

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 OS 100054135. Map area bounded by: 511042,181369
511324,181651. Produced on 30 May 2024 from the OS National Geographic Database. Supplied by
UKPlanningMaps.com. Unique plan reference: p8f/uk/1105746/1488213

Page 279




05z} 3[pog

UE|d UOBBAS|T UIBUHON - [0040S AISSINN PUE jueju] SBUIpEss

BsWDN 308[0.d

¢ -OMd

0c

AE i O O Eiﬁﬁﬁk

Page 280




0 oo

Page 28

B

nn\“

DWG: 2

‘Yeadings Infant and Nursery School - Southern Elevation Plan

1:250

Project Name

20




0sLiL

UB|d UOREAS| WIB}SET - [00UOS A1sSINN PUB JuBjU| SBUIPEas

BsWDN 308[0.d

¢ ‘OMd

wocl

Page 282




DWG: 2

Elevation Plan

Yeadings Infant and Nursery School - Western

HE

Project Name

20m

Page 283




Www ul suoisuswiIp __<_ 00¢ “1 9|D0S

ue[d Jooy Sunsixy - [00YDS AISSINN 3 SJUBRJUL SUIPLIX

wol [}

Page 284



0sziL

a|pog

UE|d UOBBAS|T UIBUHON - [0040S AISSINN PUE jueju] SBUIpEss

BsWDN 308[0.d

L -:OMd

0c

Page 285




I
000

B

Page 286

DWG: 1

‘Yeadings Infant and Nursery School - Southern Elevation Plan

1:250

Project Name

20




0sLiL

UB|d UOREAS| WIB}SET - [00UOS A1sSINN PUB JuBjU| SBUIPEas

BsWDN 308[0.d

I :OMA

wocl

Page 287




DWG: 1

Ele

Yeadings Infant and Nursery School - Western

Project Name

20m

Page 288




00l :3VIS - WO NI 34 SNOINFWI

0314133dS ISIMY3HLO SSINN

1011335 $504] - 100U3S AJasany 3 sjunju| Buipoay dddi 4N
) . J1LIL dddv N3 Wy X ZZLL X el m/
(3%]3H] M3IA 3PIS
070 1t Buyunow pup jaund pg
W._ 0 O—._Um .._OH_ r_d._ Om EIV m_m_\“,__<z_ > NAvHD {00y paudLIg 7l

[S3M UINOS M3\

Buipiing A3Jols a1buis

,\Q)\.X

70 4004

_ _
< _

f=— A3uwiy]
_

_
_ _
L — 1

.| 1S3 Y4nos M3l

00€
0

Buipiing £3Jols a1buig

i G0 00y

7D
2 /
NV
14bnAxs

N
/S

00 0011 935

Page 289




Page 290

Yeading Infants & Nursery School - Roof Plan with Proposed
Installation

1: 300

Scale

DWG: 4



0051 -33S

A REVAN

dojy pa1o3s - As3suny 78 sjuojul Buipoa )

e

NI NI 3d¥ SNOISNIWIO
0314133dS ISIMYIHLO SSTINN

$10043S Jo- JD)0S

dddv 43
dddv ON3
0HJ3H]
S44010§ NMydd
11¥0 JWYN

W3l XL X el

MIIA 3PIS

11 Burjunow pup 13und pAd
400y Pay3tid

T

=
o
N

0

G |

Page 291




Page 292



Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: PINKWELL PRIMARY

Development: Replacemer_1t of thg existing timber fence with 3.0m high V
mesh security fencing.

LBH Ref Nos: 11242/APP/2024/1302

Page 293



Lv43L
TTIVOINII NZA3 - Ly43L | 1T9NMONE LL3ATT ¥3aK

0S¢l 13TvOS

NVY1d NOILVOO1 3lLIS

woo'guN@Jeleys-uely YO
woogun@eeAerey ioyny
WOO'GEHN@UOSUIYIINHHOBL 10BIUOD

woorgly @ MnEW LY 00e886€L0Z @ v+ @
956 135 '1oas 9Bpug Uopuo zg ‘preus UL ‘L1 Rl [

0scl:L ev ¥20¢/50/¢C

‘o[eos ez1g oleq

cod 0s ONINNY1d

wwwwwww N snmes abelg

NV1d NOILVOO1 31IS

‘apL Bumelq

10 ¥€¥800

“sequinN Bumelq algy

Page 294

TT3MMNIA N3A3 - 1v43L

‘oL osloid

1vd3l

el

¥202/50/51 “enssiisid  Lod
¥20eIS0eT ‘pesinel ko aus  z0d

aleq uopduoseq A9y

eale Aeld

Kepunog diysiaumQ o)l e

Kiepunog ealy sous4

AN




g, o
N BN 32421 19D 1207 @ WBUKdOD' AT

W (IAKD) %0840 N0jo3 uid
5 01295 0430 “ojoa U P 0} sBuNEIG
“G402 (NQD) 1uewaBeUBH UBISSQ LOaNISUOD Uy KIGWOD 0} 3ioM Iy
“suopepBes

e . oM Iy
“ewong yore1

‘suogeaypads paierosse oo

woo'guN@.elays-ueky YO
woogun@eeTAeney ioyny
WOO'GEHN@UOSUIYIINHHOBL 10BIUOD

woorgly @ MnEW LY 00e886€L0Z @ vh+ @
956 135 '1oas 9Bpug Uopuo zg ‘preus UL ‘L1 Rl [

00g:1 ev ¥20¢/50/¢C

‘o[eos ez1g oleq

cod 0s ONINNVY1d

uoIsiney snmes abelg

NV1d 31IS ONILSIX3

apiL Bumelq
c0 ¥€¥800
“sequinN Bumelq algy

TT3MMNIA N3A3 - 1v43L

1L peloid

1vd3l

JusID

$202/50/5 1 “enssiisid  Lod
¥20T/S0rZT ‘pasinal key s Z0d
ejeq uonduoseq  Asy

Kepunog diysiaumQ o)l e

Kiepunog ealy sous4

AN

Lv43L
TTIVOINII NZA3 - Ly43L | 1T9NMONE LL3ATT ¥3aK

00S‘L 1 3TVvOS

NV1d 31IS ONILSIX3

LT

Page 295




o051

wor 3 gy oy, e o
PSIIT 1N 9NN NS 9PIY 1202 @ WEWAOOTTY

£ WWE o o0 928 i WO OAn0) 09 o2 i

suonepbas

“ewpng ko

loNca

“panss: Lol pUE SOUME SoIDIRS
e

woo'gEHIN@1eieys ueky VO
woorqun@saTAsnieH  louny
Woo'qUN@UOSUIINHBOEF 1981U0D

worEly @ MEN Ly 00eseess 0z (0)vhr @
56 138 ‘199115 960G UOpUOT 26 PIRUS UL LLINeT [

00G:1 ev ¥202/60/61

ajeos szs sleq

€0d 0s ONINNY1d

uorsiney smeis Beis

NV1d ONION34
a3S0d0O¥d ANV ONILSIX3

S Bumeiq
€0 €¥800
JaquinN Bumesq -argm

TI3MMNIA NIA3 - LvY431

‘3L paloid

lvd43l

WD

YZ0TIS0/S “enssisid 1od
¥202IS0ZT “pasinal kay s Z0d
¥20T/60/8 “pasinal kay s €0d
2geq uopduoseq  AsY

Jsjewlad 99ua pasodoid

Jojawia @aua4 bunsixg
Kiepunog diysisumQ ays

AIM

1va3L

TIIMHNIG NIOT - Lv43L | TIYNMONG LI3ATT 630k

00S:} :3TvOS

NV1d ONION3I4 d3SOd0dd ANV ONILSIX3

©

Page 296



o5t
V3L
wsT 3 TIIWOINIG NIAT - L¥33L | TIVNYONE L13ATT ¥3aR
powan sn

,outs o peszsua B

5102 (WGD) WaaeuBA UBiSaq o)

wooqurin@iziausueky Vo
woorquin@ssT AeAted  tlouny
W' qNDUOSUIYAINH YO 108100

worely @ MNEN Ly 00e8eesl 0z (0)vhr @
©S6 138 19918 aBpug uopuoze preus auL Lierel

0G:} *3TVOS 0§} 1 3TVOS

(NOILJO NIF9IQ) 3DON34 d3S0d0dd (NOILdJO NO-1109) 3ON34 d3S0d0dd

;\
0G:1 eV ¥202/50/22
aleos sz218 sjeq T -\
cod 0sS ONINNYd
Uorsiney smeis obeis
SNOILO3S N
3IdAL 3ON34 A3SOd0dd ©
apL Bumelq =3
3
3
70 €¥800
1aquinN Buimelq argy
TIEIMMNIA N3d3 - Lv43L
pL sloid
U L LA
1v43L H—wwog
wsio
¥Z0TIS0/S L ‘enssiisig  10d v Y HH@ @Hﬂu
¥202/50/2T pasinal Ay a)s  Zod

areq opduoseq Aoy

Page 297



i

i

S
W
/)
il -
T [
s
NS - -

)
[
.’
LN

i

7

:

(]

[ ]
il

U]
\NSEN

KEY :

=3 Site Boundary

ADDRESS :

Pinkwell Primary

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2024 Ordnance Survey
AC0000810857

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON

RESIDENTS SERVICES
PLANNING SECTION

CIVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, UB8 1UW

DISCLAIIMER : PLANNING APPLICATION SCALE :
REFERENCE :
1:1,250
11242/APP/2024/1302
PLANNING COMMITTEE : DATE :
1:2,800

Pagé 298 October 2024




Report of the Head of Development Management and Building Control

Address: LBH CENTRAL DEPOT 128 HARLINGTON ROAD HILLINGDON
Development: Installation of an acoustic wall around service yard.
LBH Ref Nos: 4501/APP/2024/1618

Page 299



ld A3 oGzl VO

a|eog

1001-v-40-ZZ-00-00v-81 L9
‘ON Buimelq

0'd Aq paxoay9

) Z O Aq umelq

¥¢0¢/S0/0C eed

81/9 ‘ON J08loid

Ue|d UoRedoT sis

aweN bBumelqg

N3€-89N SHIOMA
Juswysiginay 20O
Joda( - uopbul|iH
1o ybnoiog uopuo

108loid

uopbul|iiH
1o ybnoiog uopuo

sl

wooryn-uajje®@ojul

0062 592 121(0) v¥+ 191

aNv 069

‘inyyjos ‘Aspiys

peoy spue|ybiH ‘@snoH spuejybiH

6atoon fouspnsuog uopnASUEO SilviSe)

|jed juswwo) ASY

*SB8OUBLILIOD YI0M
peloaye ey 210jeq 017 AONYLINSNOD NOILONYLSNOO
N3T1V 1 PeUliou 8q 0} aIe SuoneLe Jo seppuedaiosip

Auy "syuswwNoop pue SBUMEIP Sjsi[eoads Jo/pUE SIUBJNSUOD
JUEAS|al [ Yl UOROUNIUCD Ul Peal 8 0} S| BUIMEIp SIyL
“Juesuoo Joud Jnoym peanpoidel 1o pasn aq jou ew pue
a1 AONYLINSNOO NOILONYLSNOO NIV 40 Aiedoid
au aue ulslaLy spuejed pue S)yBLAdoD eL pue Bumelp siyL
SV 18n0A NI 41 "ONIMY¥A SIHL WO¥4 31¥OS LON 0a
*8)iS U YJom

10 JusWeOUSLIWIOD pue sBumelp doys Jo uonesedaid o} Joud
10}0B23U00 Ag SIS UO Pa303Yo 84 0} S|9AS| PUE SUOISUSLIP

LML)

Page 300

A7




ld A3 |gog:) V@

9|eog
2001-V-40-ZZ-00-00V-81 29

‘ON Buimelq
0'd Aq paxoay9
‘N'D Ag umelq

¥20¢/50/0C eed

81/9 ‘ON J08loid

Renung eoiydesbodo |
9IS Bunsixy

aweN bBumelqg

SHIOAA
Juswysiginay 20O
Joda( - uopbul|iH
1o ybnoiog uopuo

108loid

uopBuliiH
Jo ybnoiog uopuo

sl

wooryn-uajje®@ojul

0062 S92 1Z21L(0) ¥+ 191

aNv 069

‘inyyjos ‘Aspiys

peoy spue|ybiH ‘@snoH spuejybiH

6atoon fouspnsuog uopnASUEO SilviSe)

|jed juswwo) ASY

"S80UBLILIOD YoM
pejosye ay) 810j8q L1 AONYLINSNOD NOILONYLSNOD
N3V Ol Peuiou aq o} a1e SUOHELEA 10 SalouedaiosIp

AUy "SJUBWINOOP PUE SBUMEIp SSI[EI08dS Jo/pUE SJUBHNSUOD
JUBABJ8I |[E UM UOROUNUOO Ul PEa) 84 O} S| BUMEIP SIYL
“Jussu Joud JnoLm paonpoidal 1o pasn aq jou kew pue
aL11 AONYLINSNOD NOLLONYLSNOO NI TV 4o Auedoid
el ale uleleL sjusjed pue sjybuAdoo eup pue Bumelp siyL
MSY 19N0a NI 41 "ONIMY¥A SIHL WO¥4 31¥O0S LON 0a
“a}is U0 YIom

10 JUsWSOUBLIWIOD pue sBumelp doys Jo uonesedaid o} Joud
10}0BJUOD AQ B)IS UO PaXO3YD 8q 0} S|9AS| PUE SUOISUSWIP

009:} 37v3S

]H]H]

wog 0¥

0€

0¢ 0l 0

T T

fiepunog
aulen|g
SAedIpY|

fiepunog
oUlIpay SARedlpu|

s "\
HisY.

g

e

e ppoins

s L woura
weoisY \.ﬂ\ma
ot e

weunia

Page 301

ev




ld A3 |oog:| V@

9|eog
€001-V-40-ZZ-00-00V-81 29

‘ON Buimelq
0'd Aq paxoay9
.Z O Ag umelq

¥20¢/50/0C eed

81/9 ‘ON J08loid

ueld
¥oo|g aus pasodold

aweN bBumelqg

SYJOAN
Juswysiginay 20O
Joda( - uopbul|iH
1o ybnoiog uopuo

108(01d

uopBuliiH
Jo ybnoiog uopuo

sl

wooyn-uajje@oyul :jlrewy
0062 S92 121(0) by+ 191
aNv 069

‘linynos ‘Aapiys

peoy spuejybiH ‘@snoH spuejybiH

oo foumpeuog uoponasUOO LBV SEBIESLY”

|jed juswwo) ASY

"S80UBLILIOD YoM
Pajoaye 3y 810jeq ALT AONYLINSNOD NOILONYLSNOO
NITIV 0} Payiiou aq 0} aie SuojeueA 1o sepuedaiosip

Auy puE sBumelp sjsijeioads Jojpue 5
JuBASJal ||B Yavm uonounfuoo ul peal aq o} si Bummelp siy|
“Jussu Joud JnoLm paonpoidal 1o pasn aq jou kew pue
L1 AONYLINSNOO NOILONYLSNOD NITTV 40 Auedoid
ey} ale ulaialy sjusjed pue sjybukdoo sy pue Bumelp siyL
MSY 19N0a NI 41 "ONIMY¥A SIHL WO¥4 31¥O0S LON 0a
“a}is U0 YIom

10 JUsWSOUBLIWIOD pue sBumelp doys Jo uonesedaid o} Joud
10}0BJUOD AQ B)IS UO PaXOBYD 3G O} S|9AS| PUE SUOISUBWIP ||y

009:} 37v3S

wog 1l 0€ 0¢ 0l 0

fiepunog
oulen|g
SAREdIpU|

fiepunog

aulpey
SNjedIpU|

\\ C
==

N\
N

[oA9] BuIs Buljsixa anoge
(Buo w oy x ybiH wy)
U88.10G 21}SN0aYy- |lBAN
djalouo) pasodold

Page 302

ev




ld A3 logL 2

a|eog

09} 37v3S

¥001-V-d0-ZZ-00-00V-81 L9

‘ON Buimelq
0'd Aq paxoay9
) Z O Aq umelq

¥20¢/50/0C eed

| 0

81/9 ‘ON J08loid

[lIeAA pasodold ay)
10 [eNnSIA SAREDIPU|
pue uolleAs|q ‘Uol}oes

aweN bBumelqg

091 3¥0S
N3340S J1LSNOJY - TIVM 3LIHONOO

® (3S0d0dd 3HL 40 NOLLYAT T3 FAILYOIANI

N
N

SHIOAA
Juswysiginay 20O
Joda( - uopbul|iH
1o ybnoiog uopuo

108loid

N
N

091 37v3S
N3343S J1LSNOJY - TIVM 3L34INOD

(3S0d0dd 3HL 40 NOILI3S SSOHD JAILYIIANI

uopbul|iiH
1o ybnoiog uopuo

sl

wooryn-uajje®@osul :jlrewsg
0062 592 121(0) v¥+ 191
aNv 069

‘inynos ‘Aepiys

peoy spue|ybiH ‘@snoH spuejybiH

oo foumpeuog uoponasUOO LBV SEBIESLY”

|jed juswwo) ASY

*SB8OUBLILIOD YI0M
peloaye ey 210jeq 017 AONYLINSNOD NOILONYLSNOO
N3T1V 1 PeUliou 8q 0} aIe SuoneLe Jo seppuedaiosip

Auy "syuswwNoop pue SBUMEIP Sjsi[eoads Jo/pUE SIUBJNSUOD
JUEAS|al [ Yl UOROUNIUCD Ul Peal 8 0} S| BUIMEIp SIyL
“Juesuoo Joud Jnoym peanpoidel 1o pasn aq jou ew pue
a1 AONYLINSNOO NOILONYLSNOO NIV 40 Aiedoid
au aue ulslaLy spuejed pue S)yBLAdoD eL pue Bumelp siyL
SV 18n0A NI 41 "ONIMY¥A SIHL WO¥4 31¥OS LON 0a
*8)iS U YJom

10 JusWeOUSLIWIOD pue sBumelp doys Jo uopesedaid o} ol
10)0BJU0D AQ 8)IS UO Pa)03y2 9 0} S|2AS]| pUE SUOISUSWIP |l

00000 |— 6'66 | |-

S3NPOIA 11EAA U3 4O [BNSIA SABIIPU| © 00'00gH

00°Qoo¥
“JeInjoBjnUBW au} Aq PasiApe
e aX-punoi &q o} Uoijepunoj ayL

“Uojjepunoj pay ssew 6 desp W'} @

“UjuB) [[E10A0 W O PUE ‘UoRePUNO} Paijy SSEWW GE7) dasp WG| Uo
‘apu W, ‘sejnpou [ler passansaid e} wy

;puaba

Page 303

A7




KEY :

I LU ULy

ADDRESS :

LU LOliudl wopuL

DISCLAIIMER :

AC0000810857

PLANNING APPLICATION

PagT 304

SCALE :

LONDON BOROU

RESIDEN™" =777~
PLANNING ceciavs

CIVIC CENTRE, U




	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	 Planning Committee Report Part 1_Standard Information
	6 19 Beacon Close - 17969/APP/2024/845
	7 39 Parkfield Road - 24825/APP/2023/81
	8 152-154 Uxbridge Road - 4482/APP/2022/213
	9 Yeading Infant School - 17997/APP/2024/1610
	10 Pinkwell Primary - 11242/APP/2024/1302
	11 LBH Central Depot - 4501/APP/2024/1618
	 Planning Committee Report Part 3_Policy Appendices
	 Plans for the Hillingdon Planning Committee

